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Dear valued shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Kin Yat Holdings Limited (the “Company” or
“Kin Yat”, and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
| am pleased to present the results for the year ended 31
March 2021 (the “Year”) to our shareholders.

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 in early 2020, it has
created significant impact to the entire world, and has
subsequently led to notable changes in our everyday lives.
Many countries imposed measures such as lockdown,
business closures, work from home, and social distancing
in an attempt to control the pandemic. Yet, in addition
to such short-term disruptions, people also started to
fundamentally shift their living styles as the fight against
COVID-19 dragged on. It is expected that remote working
arrangement, online shopping and other new living
patterns would become increasingly prevailing. In turn,
this revolutionary change could boost the performance
of some business sectors where the Group focuses,
including office equipment, home appliance, juvenile
product, children’s toy, video games and etc., in which
some of them may directly benefit our business.

Meanwhile, the Sino-U.S. trade war continued to cast
doubts over the prospect for both brand owners and
manufacturers. Some brand owners have considered
diversifying their production sites in order to mitigate the
macro risk. There has been a trend for manufacturers in
China to relocate some of the productions to outside of
China. Despite China continues to be a good place for
manufacturing due to its complete supply chain system,
some brand owners also consider a “China Plus One”
strategy to be more sustainable, favoring manufacturers
with diversified production solutions over time. While the
move of supply chains out of China is underway, we have
seen cases of coronavirus-induced pivot back of supply
chains to China as the spike in coronavirus cases in some
Asian countries has forced manufacturing facilities there
to shut down, which helps support the demand for our
production facilities in China.
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The Group recorded a decline in revenue by 13.5% year-
over-year (“YoY”) to HK$2,693,865,000 (2019/2020:
HK$3,114,221,000). In spite of the difficult operating
environment due mainly to the rising cost of materials and
the Renminbi (“RMB”) appreciation, the Group continued
its commitment in optimising management and operation
flows and implementing a series of stringent cost control
measures during the Year, including its efforts in stabilising
raw materials cost and labour cost, as well as continuing
the diversification and optimisation of product mix. Riding
on the Group’s genuine efforts in maintaining a lean
cost structure even facing the fluctuation in raw material
prices and appreciation of RMB, the Group’s gross profit
margin improved 1.2 percentage point to 11.9% during
the Year, although the overall gross profit decreased
from HK$333,341,000 of last Year to HK$319,645,000 of
the Year due to lower turnover scale. This, together with
the increase in other income which is more than offset
by the impairment loss from changes in fair value of the
Group’s first real estate development project (The Royale
Cambridge Residences) in Dushan County, Guizhou
Province (“Dushan”), the People’s Republic of China
(“China” or “PRC”), has resulted in the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company decreasing by 39.1% to
HK$103,626,000 (2019/2020: HK$170,049,000).

While the Group’s performance is affected by
extraordinary events, the situation also gave the Group
an opportunity to review its business model and to plan
ahead. Over the past years, Kin Yat has been focusing
on topline expansion with the aim to grow its scale and
achieve efficiency. Since then, the Group has successfully
gained a good reputation in the industry for its outstanding
manufacturing and research and development (“R&D”)
capabilities. To further boost our business sustainability
in the long run, we believe it is important to review our
customer mix and slowly phase out lower-margin orders,
in order to boost pricing power and hence financial
performance. Such change in business direction may
cause certain fluctuations within a certain period of
time, but the Group has also been actively exploring
new customers and a better mix of products portfolio to
expand revenue streams, thus minimising such short-term
impact.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

ERHE

RESULTS OVERVIEW (continued)

Key Achievements in FY2020/21 (continued)

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 in early 2020, Kin Yat
has swiftly upgraded its production facilities and started
the manufacturing of face masks within short notice.
During the Year, we continued to produce face masks
and distribute via various online and offline channels,
including HKTV Mall, receiving positive feedback from
our business partners and end users. In November 2020,
the Group was granted the Medical Device Registration
Certificate from the Guangdong Medical Products
Administration of China, opening up the opportunities to
expand our product portfolio as well as customer base
in the healthcare sector, an industry typified by higher
entry barrier, higher margin and higher resistance towards
economic cycle. We are glad to have taken this first step
and tap into the healthcare sector. Going forward, we
will actively explore new medical consumable products to
enhance Kin Yat’s product mix.

Future Development Strategies

Looking ahead, Kin Yat will continue to embrace our
diversification strategy in order to mitigate the risk from
concentrated customer portfolio and production base.
Since the Sino-U.S. trade war outbreak in 2018, many
brand customers have been requesting for flexible
production solutions. Although the Group is already
equipped with multiple plants in China and Malaysia, we
have been planning to set up another new production
site in Southeast Asia, catering for the demand from our
customers with a lower direct labour cost and a faster
go-to-market. However, the plan was being put on hold
due to the development of the COVID-19 as well as
the unstable political situation in the target country. As
such, the Group is proactively looking into other sites in
Southeast Asia as an alternative in order to complement
our existing production solutions in China imminently.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

RESULTS OVERVIEW (continued)

Future Development Strategies (continued)

As a leading manufacturing solution provider with
a good reputation and track record in the industry,
we will continue to expand our customer portfolio by
exploring various potential customers, and at the same
time, enhance our revenue streams. As mentioned, the
COVID-19 has boosted the demand of some businesses.
We will specifically target those sectors, together with our
newly-developed healthcare business platform, to increase
our market share and scale.

On existing customers, the Group will look to maintain a
good relationship with exiting brand owners in order to
ensure a stable cash flow, while exploring the possibility
of tapping into the Original Brand Manufacturing
(“OBM”) business by leveraging its excellent R&D and
manufacturing capabilities. Under its house brand product
portfolio, Kin Yat has already housed its ‘Standard Motor’
from our Motors segment as well as ‘Kin Yat Health’ for
face mask products. In the medium-term, the Group will
actively seek OBM opportunities on products that are
complementary to our existing clients to enhance profit
margin, and the evolvement into a brand and patent
owner should greatly increase the sustainability of our
businesses.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

| am grateful for the support of our shareholders,
customers, suppliers and business partners. | would
also like to thank my fellow Board members, our senior
management and staff team for their devoted services
and contribution. With a strong foundation and vision for
further development, let us move forward hand-in-hand
with confidence and dedication.

Cheng Chor Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERNWR DN

Kin Yat is one of the leading industrial enterprises
primarily engaged in the development and production
of niche, technology-driven and quality electrical and
electronic products. Leveraging its close to four decades
of experience in the industry and strong R&D capability,
the Group has established a wide portfolio of products in
the areas of robotics, juvenile products, smart products
and motor-driven products, able to satisfy the needs of
end users through cycles of macroeconomic changes. At
the beginning of 2020, the Group has also established its
house brand production line, “Kin Yat Health”, with the
aim to further diversify its product portfolio in medical and
healthcare products sector, supported by the existing core
advanced production equipment and technological know-
how.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year”
or “FY2021”), the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
coupled with the geopolitical tension, brought about
significant, cross-industry and unprecedented impact
to the global economy. Compounded by the social
distancing measures and pessimistic market outlook,
this has led to sluggish consumer demand. As the
pandemic began to spread in Europe and the United
States of America (“U.S.”), two of the key contributing
markets of the Group, since March 2020, procurement
orders were curtailed as their economic activities were
adversely affected. In response to the tremendous
financial pressure they faced, many customers decided
to adopt extra cautious approaches on orders and
postponed the commencement of new projects. As a
result of the conservative orders and delayed shipment
scheduling, the Group’s turnover during the Year
recorded a YoY decrease of 13.5%, from approximately
HK$3,114,221,000 to HK$2,693,865,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

In terms of segmental breakdown of total external
turnover:

° Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment: amount to HK$1,639,837,000,
representing 60.9% (for the year ended 31 March
2020 (“2020"): HK$2,202,402,000, 70.7%) of the
Group’s consolidated turnover for the Year;

° Motors Business Segment: amount to
HK$1,048,551,000, contributing 38.9% to the
Group’s consolidated turnover for the Year (2020:
HK$836,745,000, 26.9%);

o Real Estate Development Business Segment:
amount to HK$5,477,000, representing 0.2% of the
Group’s consolidated turnover for the Year (2020:
HK$75,074,000, 2.4%).

Despite the extreme business environment, the Group
continues to remain steadfast in optimising management
and operation flows and strengthening its production
layout in the pursuit of a sustainable growth. The Group
was also proactive in implementing a series of stringent
cost control measures during the Year, including its
efforts in stabilising raw materials cost and labour cost,
as well as continuing the diversification and optimisation
of product mix. Although overall gross profit decreased
from HK$333,341,000 of last year to HK$319,645,000 of
this Year due to lower turnover scale, gross profit margin
improved 1.2 percentage point to 11.9%, riding on the
Group’s genuine efforts in maintaining a lean structure and
in enhancing product mix even facing the fluctuations in
raw material prices and appreciation of RMB.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company also
recorded a decrease of approximately 39.1% YoY from
HK$170,049,000 to HK$103,626,000, mainly attributable
to the combined effects of: (1) the absence of one-off gain
of approximately HK$16,842,000 and HK$31,416,000
on disposal of the properties and of the subsidiary of the
Group in Hong Kong recorded during the last financial
year respectively; (2) increase in other income which is
more than offset by the decrease in the operating profit
of our manufacturing business segments as a whole due
to the appreciation of RMB against the dollar particularly
during the second half of the Year and the decrease
in purchase orders from a significant customer in the
Electrical and Electronic Products Business Segment
during the Year; and (3) the impairment loss from changes
in fair value of our first real estate development project,
namely The Royale Cambridge Residences, in Dushan, of
approximately HK$16,938,000, recorded during the Year
(2020: HK$229,000). Basic earnings per share for the
Year were HK23.61 cents (2020: HK38.74 cents).
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The Group operates two manufacturing business streams
on three major production centres in the PRC. Two of
which are based in Songgang, Baoan District, Shenzhen
City (“Shenzhen”) and Shixing County, Shaoguan City
(“Shixing”), Guangdong Province, respectively, with the
third situated in Dushan. The Group’s production bases
are also supplemented by an additional facility in Malaysia
for motor and motor related products.

During the Year, the Shenzhen centre continued to be
focusing on the high-value-added processes for robotics
and smart products manufacturing, while the Shixing
centre remained as the major production base for motor
drives and other electrical and electronic products. The
Dushan centre currently houses motors production, and
sub-assembly business.

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment

The segment engages in the development, design, and
manufacturing of three main product categories: (i)
robotics, (ii) juvenile products, and (iii) smart products.

During the Year, this segment adopted scrupulous health
precautionary measures and hence, production lines in
the PRC has quickly resumed operation since February
2020, allowing the segment to seize the opportunity
of uprising orders for juvenile products and baby care
products, particularly arising from the stay-at-home
economy. Turnover from these two sectors recorded a
significant increment. However, this positive impact on
the turnover arose from the said increase in orders was
more than offset by the strategically planned reduction
in orders from a significant customer and the order
postponement or reduction from other customers amidst
the COVID-19 pandemic. Therefore, external turnover of
this segment decreased by 25.5% to HK$1,639,837,000
in the Year (2020: HK$2,202,402,000), while this segment
remained the major contributor to the overall turnover and
accounting for 60.9% of the Group’s turnover.
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Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment (continued)

In view of the effects of concentration on a number
of major customers, the segment has been devoted
to implementing multiple strategies to enhance its
profitability, ranging from directing product portfolio
towards a higher margin and more diversified structure,
to enhancing cost-effectiveness, and optimising labour
efficiency. While the segment’s product portfolio has
been under reshuffle to become more flexible and
diversified mix. It can, in the short run, balance the
production schedule, while in the long run, better utilise
existing production capacities and enhance the adoption
of automation in production, and hence, enhance the
segment profit. On the other hand, since the latter part
of 2020, the price of several raw materials has been on
an upward trend and their supply has been impacted. In
face of the situation, the segment took active measures by
effective communication with clients, ongoing localisation
and diversification of suppliers to maintain a comparatively
steady supply in raw materials. Positive responses
have been received from clients in terms of adjustment
on product price and delivery time. As such, segment
operating profit decreased by 14.6% to HK$138,447,000
during the Year (2020: HK$162,172,000).

Robotics sector

The sector has successfully established a strong
foundation in niche home-use robotics through a long-
term partnership with its U.S.-based, market-leading
client. However, ever since the Sino-U.S. trade tension
escalated and continued to fluctuate, the planned
reduction in order placement and downward pricing
pressure on robotic vacuum cleaning products, coupled
with the uprising operation costs in the PRC, especially
the labour cost, have burdened the sector’s profitability.
The sector has been committed its efforts to rebalancing
the production schedule and improve production efficiency
in order to stay competitive and empower the sector’s
capability in profit margin enhancement in the long run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment (continued)

Robotics sector (continued)

In consideration of the planned reduction in orders from
a significant customer, as well as the minimising room
for further cost improvement of particular products for
the Year, turnover contribution of the sector is likely to
become more conservative. In light of the development
of our business relationship with the significant customer
in this sector, the segment continues to leverage its
existing network, extensive industry experience and long-
term partnership with internationally renowned consumer
electronic products brands, to further diversify and expand
its customer base to achieve sustainable growth.

Juvenile products and smart products sectors

Juvenile products sector focuses on baby gears and
juvenile education products, particularly targeting STEAM-
related smart products which can be connected to
computing devices such as smartphone and tablet. The
segment is in an advantageous position to enjoy the
Group’s full-ranged OEM+ services platform, able to
gain business opportunities with start-ups brands from
diversifying industries and to grow with these potential
rising stars.

Due to worsening market sentiment arisen from the impact
of COVID-19 pandemic, during the Year, the demand of
certain product lines were inevitably impacted, and the
development of some new projects was slightly delayed.
However, the segment’s diversified product portfolio was
able to mitigate the impact from these factors, thanks
to the rising orders benefited from the stay-at-home
economy, with baby gears and juvenile STEAM education
products becoming the major growth drivers of the
segment. And due to the accelerating order demands,
the sector continued to benefit from introduction of
new product generations from existing clients, as well
endeavoured to establish a good mix of new clients.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERNWR DN

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment (continued)

Medical and healthcare products sector

Since the beginning of 2020, the Group has successfully
grasped the opportunity in establishing a healthcare
product business line under its house brand, “Kin Yat
Health”, commencing the production and sales of adult
and child disposal facial masks in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The sector has been able to offer
EN14683 TYPE IIR and ASTM-F2100 Level 2 & 3 qualified
(including but not limited to both BFE and PFE > 98%)
non-medical face masks for adults and teens.

The Group believes that face mask production would
well be served as the first step of the Group’s strategic
planning in tapping into the medical and healthcare
products sector, a sector with higher entry barrier. In
November 2020, a subsidiary company of the Group has
successfully been granted the Medical Device Registration
Certificate and the Medical Device Production Licence
from the Guangdong Medical Products Administration of
the PRC, which has laid a solid foundation for the Group
to develop new products, expand its sales channels and
broaden customer base in the medical and healthcare
areas, especially in medical disposables products. Being
a reputable and efficient manufacturer together with our
existing ready-to-go production lines, the sector has
gained some opportunities to engage in initial discussion
with different players in the industry for new projects co-
operation. To support the sustainable development of
the sector, the Group will prudently place more available
resources and production capabilities on the development
of new products in an orderly fashion, with the aim of
further diversifying its macro and geopolitical risks.
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Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment (continued)

For future view

Going forward, the segment will continue its ongoing
development of new and more profitable products,
advancement of R&D capability and further diversification
of client portfolio, particularly towards less cyclical
industries, in order to mitigate existing and potential
risks, while maintaining a stable production allocation and
schedule and sustaining the segment’s competitiveness.
The Group believes that these products will become
new rising stars to the market, and will stay devoted to
uncovering more potential ones in the future ahead.

As most capital expenditures were either suspended or
postponed in order to accumulate additional resources
for crisis management purpose. In view of such initiative,
the expansion plan of the Group’s Dushan manufacturing
plant has been temporally postponed. Yet, looking
forward, the Group believes that as geopolitics bring
changes to the market, the geographical diversification
of production centre would be essential to expand
the Group’s production networks, ease the impact of
geopolitical tensions, and even bring new business
opportunities arising from greater market exposure.
The long-term strategy of diversifying production base
to countries outside of the PRC, and in particular, to
Southeast Asian countries, remains in the pipeline. In late
2021, a few production lines dedicated to the Electrical
and Electronic Products Business Segment for simple
assembly will be set up in Malaysia. Given its proximity
with other production facilities of the Group and the
maturity of its infrastructure, the new production lines will
be a good support to the Group’s capacity to gain trust
and capture orders from global brand customers.

With the market expecting an upward trajectory on raw
material prices in 2021, the Group will also strengthen its
ongoing communication with suppliers, and strategically
secure sufficient inventories of key raw materials in order
to ensure a stable supply and reduce the burden on
segment’s profit.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERNWR DN

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Motors Business Segment

The motors segment focuses on the development,
design, manufacturing and sales of electric motor drives
and related products, ranging from direct-current (“DC”)
motors, alternating-current (“AC”) motors to encoders and
related products. Its product offerings have continued
to evolve to capture market and technological trends,
including the continued development of larger-sized motor
drives and brushless DC motors. The segment’s major
facilities are currently located in the Shixing centre and the
Dushan centre, supplemented by the production facility
in Malaysia. Equipped with high-precision equipment and
advanced technologies, this robust production and R&D
platform enables the segment to roll out innovative and
reliable deliverables for customers. The segment business
has been categorised into four sectors for separate
markets of motors, namely automobile, office automation
equipment, toy, and household appliance.

Although the COVID-19 pandemic has brought adverse
impact to the global economy, particularly consumer
confidence and sentiment, it has also been reshaping the
market landscape of various industries, for instance, the
risk profile assessment on players in terms of reliability,
sustainability and financial worthiness, as well as the
accelerating introduction of new product generation,
which hence, bring new market opportunities to players.
The segment has quality products, strong R&D and
manufacturing capabilities, and a reliable customer service
team to expand its client mix and market share amid the
market consolidation period. We believe that, with our
comparatively low market share at the moment, there are
enormous market potential and business opportunities in
different fields for the segment to further explore.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Motors Business Segment (continued)

Although sectors’ performance varied amid the COVID-19
pandemic, the segment, as a whole, achieved outstanding
results. The pandemic’s consequential city lockdown
and economic downturn in 2020 have significant impact
to the usual pattern of both supply and demand sides,
leading to more conservative orders from automobile,
which were overweighted by the escalation on orders the
office automation equipment and household appliance
sectors who captured the opportunities from the ever
changing buying patterns and consumer demand arisen
from the work-from-home measures and the replacement
demand induced by product generation upgrades through
technological advancement. As a result, the segment,
saw boosted demand for consumer products, including
but not limited to home use printers and household
cleaning appliances.

Overall, despite the challenging operating environment,
the segment managed to record a continuous growth
in revenue. Its external turnover increased by 25.3% to
HK$1,048,551,000 (2020: HK$836,745,000). However,
gross profit and gross profit margin decreased during
the Year, mainly attributable to the increased operation
efficiency and continuous effort in automation, which
were more than subtracted by the inflation of RMB and
the impact from the rising cost of raw materials. Segment
profit was HK$55,994,000, representing a 23.3% YoY
increase (2020: HK$45,410,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Motors Business Segment (continued)

For future view

Looking forward amid the uncertain geopolitical tension,
macro economy and development of COVID-19 pandemic,
the segment will remain prudent, while looking for
opportunities for the segment by adopting the following
strategies:

U

Continuous R&D and customer diversification

Over the past years, the segment has been
advancing its R&D capability and developed various
types of motors products, including but not limited
to brushless motors, mid-to-large-sized motors
and other products who are lighter, quieter and
more energy-saving. The segment has, during the
Year, reached some phrasal achievement in the
development of brushless motors and mid-to-large-
sized motors. Two models of brushless motors had
commenced mass production, applying mainly to
one smart vacuum cleaner brand in PRC. As well,
our new model of mid-to-large-sized motors has
entered a client’s supply chain.

Leverage the strong R&D capability, the segment
will also continue to diversify its customer base into
different sectors, explore new revenue streams and
minimise the potential risk of industry downturn from
any specific industry. During the Year, the segment’s
diversification strategy has again brought satisfactory
results, successfully mitigating operational risk
and fluctuation in financial performance during the
economic downturn. Going forward, the segment
seeks a stronger presence in the automobile sector,
and particularly among electric vehicles, along with
other potential sectors, as its brushless motors can
offer a longer lifespan, quieter movement, fewer
friction losses and thus higher efficiency. In addition,
it is believed the work-from-home and generation
upgrade due to deployment of 5G and the internet
of things (IoT) will continue to be the major drivers
of the next few years growth. The segment will
therefore continue its diversification strategy and
look for customer expansion in terms of regions and
sectors.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)
Manufacturing Businesses (continued)
Motors Business Segment (continued)

For future view (continued)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE &

Managing operating risks proactively

The segment manages the commodity price risk by
incorporating relevant clauses in the contracts with
certain customers to pass the increase/decrease in
the cost of major raw materials on to the customers.

Diversification of production solutions

Affected by the pandemic, there were
unprecedented disruptions to the global supply
chain, and brands had to reallocate their sources
of supply across the world in order to have the
right quantity and quality at the right time. This
has underlined the importance of diversified
manufacturing solutions. Last year, the segment
has already moved one production line to Malaysia
in order to cater the demand of certain overseas
customers. Looking forward, the segment will further
enhance its production capacity in Malaysia while
looking for the right timing to expand into other
production bases in the Southeast Asian country,
with an abundance of relatively low-cost labour and,
ideally, established supply chain network, to benefit
the segment in the long run.

Continuous automation and internal management
improvement

Facing the uncertainties from the COVID-19
pandemic, the segment aims to improve its overall
efficiency in order to maximise capital reserves
and liquidity for future plans. Through continuous
automation, the segment is gradually enjoying
the results of a lean cost structure, and that
will need to be continued in order to maintain a
stringent cost control. Besides, the segment’s
management team will stay alert and agile in case
of any future changes. These measures, along with
the commitment to refine the segment’s business
strategy and stringent cost-control framework and
systems, will lay a solid foundation for the long-
term development of the Group, against the ever-
changing market environment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Non-manufacturing Businesses

Real Estate Development Business Segment

During the Year, the segment continued its engagement in
the two residential and commercial property development
projects in Dushan Economic Development Zone, namely
The Royale Cambridge Residences and The Jardin
Montsouris.

The segment was at a loss of HK$24,989,000 during the
Year (2020: a loss of HK$1,574,000), mainly attributable
to the one-off impairment loss from changes in fair value
of The Royale Cambridge Residences of HK$16,938,000
(2020: HK$229,000) while the contracted sales of The
Jardin Montsouris were not able to be recognised
as revenue during the Year as the final acceptance
certificates for such project were not obtained yet.

(i) The Royale Cambridge Residences

The construction of the Phase | of this project
comprising 116 units of low-density residential
property together with the related carparking spaces
and a commercial property unit had been completed.
Since the relevant final acceptance certificates
for all property units of this Phase | of the project
were obtained and hence, the sales of the property
units could be recognised as revenue of the Group
accordingly. However, the residential property
market sentiment in Dushan was cautious due to
the prolonged impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
limitations and the impact on the local economic
development when the sizeable local-government
debts were being handled. As a result, a one-off
impairment loss from changes in fair value of The
Royale Cambridge Residences of HK$16,938,000
(2020: HK$229,000) was recorded during the Year
and also the segment was only able to record a
sale of a few property units of the project during the
Year for an amount of approximately HK$5,477,000
in total. The segment has continued to hold further
construction of Phase Il of the project to minimise
financial investment and exposure.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)
Non-manufacturing Businesses (continued)
Real Estate Development Business Segment
(continued)

U

(i)
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The Royale Cambridge Residences (continued)

Given the current economic situation in Dushan, the
segment has not made much progress in realising
the remaining property units of this Phase | of the
project, being residential units and commercial
properties as a whole with a total saleable area
of approximately 22,000 square metres and
approximately 5,000 square metres respectively.
The segment will keep exploring the opportunities
available to the segment to realise the project.

The Jardin Montsouris

This resettlement project is located in a site
opposite to our The Royale Cambridge Residences
project. The project was developed with an aim of
providing housing for residents in need of shabby
town relocation owing to resettlement as well as
for other property buyers. There has been a delay
in development and sale of the property unit mainly
due to the worsening sentiment in the property
market caused by the government measures aiming
at curbing the overheating property market in
general and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
situation. Construction works of Phase IA of the
project comprising 460 residential units with a
total saleable floor area of approximately 65,000
square metres and 62 commercial property units of
approximately 16,000 square metres were largely
completed. The segment expects to be granted the
relevant final acceptance certificates in the ensuing
financial year. In this connection, the prepayment of
approximately RMB46,262,000 received in relation
to the contracted sale of approximately 150 property
units during the Year was accounted for as deposits
received. Up to the date of this annual report, a
total of approximately 250 residential units of the
project were contracted to sell for a total amount of
approximately RMB110,000,000 while prepayment
amounting to approximately RMB76,200,000 were
received.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Non-manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Real Estate Development Business Segment

(continued)

(i) The Jardin Montsouris (continued)
During the Year, the project was in the continuous
process of obtaining final acceptance for the
superstructure while other construction works have
been carrying out with an aim to complete all the
construction works required for obtaining the overall
final acceptance certificates at the latter part of
2021.

The segment is endeavour to complete all the
required works for Phase IA of the project to pave
way for obtaining the relevant final acceptance
certificates and strategies to commence the pre-
selling of the commercial property units in June
2021. In light of the modest pace of shabby town
relocation in Dushan, progress of this project has
consequently been slowed. The segment has
continued to hold further construction of Phase Il
of the project to minimise financial investment and
exposure.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead towards 2021/2022, uncertainties continue
to cloud the industry and the whole supply chain. Vaccine
developments have generated hopeful sentiments for the
globe, yet the pace of post-pandemic recovery and full
return of consumer sentiments will largely be dependent
on effective rollout of vaccinations. In addition to the
ongoing pandemic, political tension between the U.S.
and the PRC continues to be high. Coupled with the
yet-to-recovered global market demand, the Group will
continue to adopt prudent measures in its operation while
cautiously planning for the long run.
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Under such a volatile business environment, the Group will
prioritise on maintaining a strong cash flow, conserving
resources and being operationally resilient to prepare for
any potential risk and an eventual market recovery. Since
the outbreak of the Sino-U.S. trade war, Kin Yat has been
actively planning to diversify its manufacturing solutions
in the Southeast Asia, in order to cater for the demand
of overseas customers. The pandemic has reaffirmed
such stance, as it could effectively alleviate the Group’s
regional risks and diversifying the business. Although the
plan has been slow down due to the travel restriction
between countries, the Group is looking to accelerating
the progress once the situation improves.

On top of the current expansion in production capacity
for staying in line with the growth of existing customers’
orders and enlargement of the customer network, Kin Yat
will continue to diversify its customer portfolio, particularly
the industries less susceptible to economic cycles, like
healthcare products, to reduce its product concentration
risk. Besides, as certain other manufacturers exit the
market due to the financial pressure from the pandemic,
this has also brought market consolidation opportunities,
in which Kin Yat will leverage its reputation in the OEM
industry and take mindful steps to increase its market
shares, while laying a solid foundation for the long-term
development of the Group.

Regardless of the macroenvironment, Kin Yat will stay
competitive in the market by expanding and developing
business and clientele through continuously enhancing
its R&D capabilities and product quality. The Group will
also maintain a healthy financial position by improving its
automation level and adopting a stringent cost control
policy. Looking ahead, the Group will maintain prudent
and act cautiously according to the aforesaid strategies,
delivering long-term values to its stakeholders and
shareholders under such challenging environment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERNWR DN

DIVIDENDS

In order to accumulate a war chest to cope with the
uncertainty as well as the Company’s development in
future, the Board has resolved not to declare any final
dividend for the Year (2020: Nil).

FINANCIAL CONDITIONS, LIQUIDITY
AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily used its internally generated cash
flows and banking facilities to finance its operations
and business development. The Group has always
been executing a prudent and conservative strategy
in its financial management. As at 31 March 2021, the
Group had time deposits of HK$13,607,000 (31 March
2020: HK$14,641,000), cash and bank balances of
HK$390,556,000 (31 March 2020: HK$256,606,000),
and net current assets of HK$417,886,000 (31 March
2020: HK$283,068,000). As at 31 March 2021,
shareholders’ equity was HK$1,499,496,000 (31 March
2020: HK$1,225,920,000). Total consolidated banking
facilities of the Group from all banks as at 31 March 2021
amounted to approximately HK$1,013,939,000 (31 March
2020: HK$832,479,000). As at 31 March 2021, total bank
borrowings amounted to HK$659,546,000 (31 March
2020: HK$676,809,000).

As at 31 March 2021, the bank borrowings of the
Group was repayable within one year amounted to
HK$467,672,000 (31 March 2020: HK$413,243,000) and
the remaining balance of HK$191,874,000 (31 March
2020: HK$263,566,000) was repayable within second to
fifth years.

As at 31 March 2021, the current ratio of the Group
(current assets divided by current liabilities) was
maintained at 1.29 times (31 March 2020: 1.22 times)
and the gearing ratio of the Group (total bank borrowings
divided by total equity) was 44.0% (31 March 2020:
55.2%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2021, the total issued share capital of
the Company was HK$43,896,000 (31 March 2020:
HK$43,896,000), comprising 438,960,000 (31 March
2020: 438,960,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.
There was no change in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$17,975,000 and an
investment property of HK$47,556,000 were pledged to a
bank in the PRC for banking facilities of HK$95,867,000
as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
RMB or U.S. dollars. The Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy on it. In order to manage and
minimise the foreign exchange risk, the management shall
from time to time review and monitor the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging the significant foreign
currency exposure when appropriate and necessary.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s financial facilities are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and RMB and interests on bank borrowings
are chargeable based on certain interest margin over the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the People’s Bank
of China lending rate which are therefore of floating rate in
nature. The Group has not entered into any interest rate
risk hedge to mitigate exposure to interest rate risk during
the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERNWR DN

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group employed around 7,400
full-time employees, of which less than 150 of them were
stationed in Hong Kong headquarters with the remaining
working in the PRC and Malaysia.

The Board’s remuneration committee of the Company
made recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure of the Company for all remuneration of Directors,
reviewed and determined the remuneration package of
individual executive Director and senior management of
the Company with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives, responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere within the Group and in the
market. The Group remunerates its employees largely
in accordance with prevailing industry standards. In
Hong Kong, the Group’s employee benefits include staff
retirement scheme, medical scheme and performance
bonus. In the PRC and Malaysia, the Group provides its
employee’s staff welfare and allowances in accordance
with the prevailing labour laws. The Group has also put in
place a share option scheme to motivate and reward staff
with outstanding performance. At the discretion of the
Board, the Group’s employees will be granted the options,
of which the number of options granted is determined by
individual performance and level of responsibilities.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Thursday,
19 August 2021 to Tuesday, 24 August 2021, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Tuesday, 24 August 2021, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 18 August 2021.

Cheng Chor Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, aged 69, is the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. He is the founder of
the Group and is responsible for the Group’s overall
operation and strategic planning. He is also a member
of the Board’s remuneration committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Cheng currently is a Standing member of
the 12" Shaoguan Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (the “CPPCC”) and also
a former member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee
of the CPPCC. Mr. Cheng has over 40 years of experience
in the toy industry.

Mr. Liu Tat Luen, aged 56, is an executive Director since
December 2009. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor Degree in
Science (Quantity Surveying) from the University of Hong
Kong and a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Liu served as a director and
a responsible officer in a corporate finance advisory
firm (type 6 regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) in Hong Kong and
has over 20 years of working experience in the financial
industry in Asia as a whole.

Mr. Cheng Tsz To, aged 34, is an executive Director
since June 2014. After graduating with a Master’s degree
of Engineering in Mechatronics with honors from the
University of Sheffield, the United Kingdom, Mr. Cheng
joined the Group in 2010. He is a son of Mr. Cheng Chor
Kit, the executive Director and the controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”)) of the Company and is the younger
brother of Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang, the executive Director of
the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang, aged 37, is an executive Director
since March 2016. After studied Physics and Mathematics
in the Loughborough University, the United Kingdom, Mr.
Cheng joined the Group in 2007. He is the chief executive
officer of the Motors Business Segment of the Group since
July 2013. Mr. Cheng is a son of Mr. Cheng Chor Kit,
the executive Director and the controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company and is the
elder brother of Mr. Cheng Tsz To, the executive Director
of the Company.

Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston, aged 57, is an executive
Director appointed on 1 April 2021 and he joined the
Group in December 2019 as the deputy chief executive
officer of the Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment of the Group. Mr. Lee holds a Higher Diploma in
Electronic Engineering form the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently known as “The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University”) and a Master Degree in Engineering
Management from the University of Technology, Sydney.
Mr. Lee has over 30 years of experience in the field
of product development and sourcing with regards a
diversity of electrical and electronic consumer products.
Immediately prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lee was a vice
president in Hasbro Far East Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent, aged 65, was appointed
as an executive Director in August 2005 and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. On 1 April 2021,
Dr. Fung resigned as the executive Director and all the
directorship of the subsidiaries of the Company, and
simultaneously, re-designated as a non-executive Director
of the Company. Dr. Fung has been, and shall remain
as, the member of the Board’s remuneration committee
and nomination committee prior to and upon his re-
designation. Dr. Fung holds a Master of Science Degree in
Engineering Business Management from the University of
Warwick, and a Doctoral Degree in Engineering from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. Fung has over 30
years of experience in the toy industry. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked as an engineering director in a sizeable
toys manufacturing and distribution company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Wai, aged 55, has been an independent
non-executive Director since September 2004. He is
the chairman of the Board’s nomination committee
and a member of the Board’s audit committee and
remuneration committee. Mr. Wong currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of C&D International
Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1908) and Arts
Optical International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1120),
all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. From June 2003 to 21 September 2020, Mr.
Wong also served as an independent non-executive
director of Bonjour Holdings Limited (stock code: 0653).
Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Science
from and was awarded a post-graduate certificate in
laws by the University of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1993,
respectively. He is a practising certified public accountant
in Hong Kong and an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (“ICAEW”).
He has over 30 years of experience in the accountancy
profession. Other than his private practice in accounting,
Mr. Wong has been admitted as solicitor at the High Court
in March 2019 and currently practice as a consultant in a
law firm.

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian, aged 59, has been an
independent non-executive Director since September
2004. She is the chairperson of the Board’s audit
committee and a member of the Board’s remuneration
committee and nomination committee. Dr. Sun is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and of the CPA Australia.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEEHS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul, aged 69, has been an
independent non-executive Director since June 2014. He
is the chairman of the Board’s remuneration committee
and a member of the Board’s audit committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Cheng qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1976 and he has been a fellow member
of the ICAEW and of the HKICPA since 1982 and 1990
respectively. Mr. Cheng was a member of the Council
of HKICPA in 2006 and 2007 and a member of the
Corporate Finance Committee of HKICPA from 2006
to 2012. Currently, he is a member of the Professional
Conduct Committee of HKICPA. Mr. Cheng is an
independent non-executive director of Xinyi Solar Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0968). In June 2017, Mr. Cheng
was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited, a restricted
licence bank in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip, aged 60, has been an independent
non-executive Director since July 2014. He is a member of
the Board’s audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Cheung is a Chartered General
Practice Surveyor by profession and has over 30 years of
professional work experience in the property industry and
related fields, including valuation and feasibility study. Mr.
Cheung is a corporate member of both the Royal Institute
of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (General Practice) as well as a member of
Associacao da Avaliacao da Propriedade de Macau.
He is a member of the China Real Estate Chamber of
Commerce Hong Kong Chapter and a member of China
Real Estate Appraiser in the PRC. In addition, Mr. Cheung
is serving as a member of the 12" Shanxi Provincial
Committee of the CPPCC. Currently, Mr. Cheung is
the Operation Head of Hong Kong and Macau and an
executive director of Vigers Appraisal and Consulting
Limited (“Vigers”), he is also an executive director of Vigers
Macao Company Limited (Vigers is an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of a listed company whose shares listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited).
Prior to joining Vigers in 2006, Mr. Cheung was a senior
director of the Valuation and Consultancy Department in
Savills Hong Kong Limited, where he held the position of
the Head of Hong Kong and Macau valuation team. He
had held various positions in companies including the
Mass Transit Railway Corporation, Guangzhou Investment
Company Limited and Jones Lang Wootton.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

The Directors of the Company present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the financial
statements. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
consisted of the design, manufacture and sale of
electrical and electronic products, motor drives, other
manufacturing business and real estate development.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Year and the Group’s financial
position at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 93 to 247 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend to the shareholders for the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donation of
HK$187,000 (2020: HK$233,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business and the performance of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 is provided
in the chapters of “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
4 to 7 and pages 8 to 26, respectively, of this annual
report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
reducing the impact on the environment in its operational
activities, not only by advocating the concept of “green
office”, but also by improving the production process
to reduce energy consumption and emission, so as to
ensure that the operations does not pose risks on the
environment and our neighbours.

Our 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “2021 ESG Report”) prepared in accordance with
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will provide further
explanation of our policies and efforts. Our ESG Report
will publish within one month after the publication of this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s main operations are carried out both in Hong
Kong and Mainland China and are regulated by the local
laws and regulations accordingly. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, the Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The Group faces various risks and uncertainties in
operations. To cope with the risks, the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are in place
to ensure the principal risks are continuously identified,
monitored and managed on an established basis.

Global economic and political development

Global economic environment performance and political
instability would influence the conditions on consumer
confidence and their buying habits. The continuing
adverse economic conditions may affect the results
of operation and financial performance of the Group
adversely. The Group continues to implement its
strategies to develop and strengthen the penetration of
different geographical markets to reduce its dependency
on specific markets.

During the Sino-U.S. trade tension, the voice of the
“China Plus One” strategy is becoming inevitable. The
Group believes that the geographical diversification of
the production centre would be essential to expand the
Group’s production network. The Group has had the
plan to set up another production base in Malaysia. Due
to the COVID-19 pandemic, delays the progress of the
whole planning schedule. Except for Malaysia, the Group
originally intended to set up its production base in other
country in Southeast Asia. However, due to the unstable
political situation, the relevant plan has been temporarily
shelved. As an investor, a stable political environment is a
prerequisite for our selection. The Group is now carefully
considering to adopt a multi-nationalised approach to
incorporate our production bases to reduce the political
and economic risks.

High customer concentration risks

In response to the trade dispute between the PRC and
the U.S., one of our significant customers will end the
service contract with the Group in the coming year. Our
international customers provide valuable inputs to the
Group, especially during the development phase of new
products. However, over-reliance on large international
customers may also carry potential risks that can far
outweigh any benefits in the long term. To reduce such
risk, apart from adopting the existing customers as a
springboard to expand our customer base, the Group
also continuously introduces its new products to further
diversify its customer portfolio.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Supply chain risks

As a manufacturer, we strongly rely on stable and qualified
materials supply from our materials suppliers. Any
interruption of supply may cause problems in our supply
chain. Without long-term contracts with any suppliers,
and we may need to compete with other companies for
materials. Nevertheless, we have established long-term
partnerships with many suppliers to minimise the impact
of any supply disruption and ensure that we can locate
alternative suppliers of comparable quality at reasonable
prices.

Production cost risks

The shortage of materials, such as copper and plastics
and chips, leads to a sharp increase in our production
costs. In addition, during the Year, the labour expenditure
has also increased substantially in response to domestic
inflation, which exposed the Group to production costs
risks. The Group manages production cost risks by
incorporating appropriate clauses in production contracts
to pass the increased material costs onto customers and
enhance our automation level to reduce our dependency
on labour.

People risks

The Group’s future development strongly relies on
recruiting the right people. The shortage or loss of
personnel with appropriate skills or experience could pose
a potential risk in achieving the Group’s strategic goal.
The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits
package to attract and retain qualified personnel so as to
satisfy the needs of the corporate development.

Details of the Group’s foreign currency exposure
and interest rate risk are provided in the chapter of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
8 to 26 of this annual report.

The above mentioned does not present an exhaustive
picture of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
the Board must tailor its risk management to match the
nature of risk threats.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAFF,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from
key stakeholders which comprise our staff, customers
suppliers as well as our shareholders.

The Group values our employees as the most significant
and valuable assets to the Group, a comprehensive
benefit package is offered to each employee for
recognising their efforts. The Group also has a significant
mission for providing a healthy and safety workplace to
all employees. During the Year, no significant accident
occurred due to workplace accident.

The Group commits to provide quality services and
products to each customer, any complaints from our
customers are handled and investigated in thorough and
efficient manner.

The purchase of goods and contracting of services are
based solely on need, quality and price of the goods and
services. A fair and open competition in procurement with
high ethical standards promoted by the Group assure
high products quality at all times to gain the confidence of
customers.

For details of relationship with the shareholders of the
Company can be found in the chapter of “Corporate
Governance Report” set out on pages 55 to 80 of this
annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 248 of this annual report. The summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.
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BORROWINGS

Particulars of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31
March 2021 are set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and the share
options of the Company during the Year, together with the
reasons therefor, are set out in Note 31 and Note 32 to
the financial statements, respectively.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are set out in Note 33 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company’s reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie,
comprising the contributed surplus and the retained
profits, amounted to HK$458,874,000. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus of HK$104,750,000 may be
distributed under certain circumstances. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account with a balance of
HK$156,015,000 may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 65% of the total sales for the
Year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 38% of the total sales.

Purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 21% of the total purchases of the Group for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 6% of the total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors,
their associates (as defined under Listing Rules), nor
those shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Tat Luen

Mr. Cheng Tsz To

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang

Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston*

Non-executive Director
Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent**

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip

g Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston appointed as an executive
Director on 1 April 2021.

i Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent resigned as an executive
Director and re-designated as a non-executive Director on
1 April 2021.

Biographical details in respect of the Directors at the
date of this annual report is provided in the chapter of
“Biographical Details of the Directors” set out in pages 27
to 31 of this annual report.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws 86(2) and 87(1), Mr.
Cheng Chor Kit, Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston, Dr. Fung
Wah Cheong, Vincent, Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul and
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip, being the Directors who should
retire by rotation, will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Directors confirm that the Company has received from
each of its independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Law 166 of Bye-Laws, subject to
the applicable laws, every Director shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of his/her office. The Company
has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the executive Director and the
chairman of the Board, entered into a service contract
with the Company commencing from 1 August 2005
without a fixed term but subject to termination by either
party giving not less than six months’ notice in writing to
the other party.

Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent, after his resignation as
executive Director and re-designated as a non-executive
Director, has entered into a new service contract with
the Company commencing from 1 April 2001 (for a term
of two years), subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-Laws. The service contract,
unless terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing to the other party, the
termination of which should not be later than the end of
the two years.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

(continued)

Saved as disclosed above, all the Directors entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-Laws. Each of the executive and
independent non-executive Directors, unless terminated
by either party giving not less than six months’ notice and
three months’ notice, respectively, in writing to the other
party, the termination of which should not be later than the
end of the three years.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO
which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
he/she is taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code of Securities Transactions
by directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company

EERRSTHRAERRKR®D A
BRORBEEREZEZRKXE

RZEZ—F=ZA=+—H XRAIEEK
BESTBRABRARRREER ZE (TR
FH R HEEMEXVER) 2 - BERG &
BREFETHEH@Q RIEESH LB EKRMIEXV
HETRSHDHBAES RN MRz #Em (8
FERBEBZHF LB RO B BIEXEEEE
SEAEEZERIAE) 5 KO)IBRIEFESRK
B & I 35218 AR AT RBMR 2 5 sk
) REBELMBETAEZETELSRZINELE
SAI(MZEESFA D EME ARG RERAMZ
R

(@ RAEQFRGZER

Approximate

percentage
Number of of the
ordinary Company’s
Long position/ shares held issued share
Name of Director short position Capacity T ER EARQATE BT
BExpg #E/ %A g4 BROHE ROZBAEILL
(Note 1) (Kt7t1)
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Long position Interests on controlling 252,920,000 57.62%
2 ot o A ey corporation (Note 2) (f1722)
e VNGRS
Long position Beneficial owner 26,634,000 6.06%
1HE ERBEBA
Long position Interests held by spouse 3,700,000 0.84%
e REMEAER
Mr. Liu Tat Luen Long position Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.45%
BEESYE S0} ERBAA
Mr. Cheng Tsz To Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.68%
BrErE A ERBAA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continueq)

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company

(continued)

(a)

ESEHG

EERESTHRAERRKR®D - #
FERORBEER 2EZNXE @)

RAEADB R 2 (&)

Approximate

percentage

Number of of the

ordinary Company’s

Long position/ shares held issued share

Name of Director short position Capacity FiEak HARARE BT

BExps #E/ %A L) ROBE KROZBAEIL

(Note 1) (Hi7t1)

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.68%
Br&ks e EREAA

Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent Long position Beneficial owner 8,152,000 1.85%
BEEEL 1HE EREAA

Mr. Wong Chi Wai Long position Beneficial owner 500,000 0.11%
BMERE e ERBEAA

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.22%
BREmEL S} EREAA

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul Long position Beneficial owner 80,000 0.02%
B I3 5 4 1HE EREAA

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 0.04%
REELE HE ERERA

Notes: Haz -

(1)  The percentage of shareholding is calculated based
on 438,960,000 shares, being the total number of
issued ordinary shares of the Company as at 31

March 2021.

(2)  These shares are held by Resplendent Global Limited
(“Resplendent”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Padora

Global Inc. (“Padora”).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERERETHRAERER®G 48
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN RO REEERIEZRER &)
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Interests in the shares of associated (b) RAEQTMEBLEERMG ZES
corporation of the Company

Percentage
of issued
capital of the
associated
Name of associated Long position/ Nature of Number of corporation
corporation Name of Director short position  Capacity interests shares held (5B ZEERT
HHLEER Espg #E/ %A &% EatE FrisRB#A RAZBEA
Padora Global Inc. Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 520 52.00%
ipedidits e EREEA EAER
Long position Interests held by Family interest 160 16.00%
e spouse RkER
REMEERER
Mr. Cheng Tsz To Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 160 16.00%
BrEik e EREEA EAER
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 160 16.00%
LIRS b e ERZEAA EAER
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SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continueq)

(c) Interests in the underlying shares of the

BEERBEETHRAERKRG 8
EROREEEZERRAE &)

(c) RADFEBAKRMD S

Company
Number of
underlying
shares
in respect
of share
options
held and Price of the
approximate Company’s
percentage of shares
shareholding Date of immediately
fisEREL share before the
BBRA  options Vesting period Exercise  grant date
Long position/ HER  granted BEE Exercise priceper  ARFRH
Name of Director short position ~ Capacity BRERY BRE  from to period  share  REERME
ESft? e/ %8 5 Aflk  RLRE @ B k8 SRAEE AMAZRE
HSET  HKS AT
Mr. Wong Chi Wai Long position Beneficial owner 400,000 7/7/2017 11712017 - 2.262 2.220
LU 5 it EREEA (0.09%) 6/7/2027
100,000 71112017 TR017 1292017 13/9/2017 - 2.262 2.220
(0.02%) 6/7/2027
100000  97/2018  9/7/2018  12/9/2018  13/9/2018 - 2470 2470
0.02%) 8/7/2028
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian Long position Beneficial owner 100,000 9/7/2018  9/7/2018  12/9/2018  13/9/2018 - 2470 2470
FENEL it EREAA (0.02%) 8/7/2028
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul  Long posttion Beneficial owner 100,000 7/7/2017 111017 - 2.262 2220
L[k e EaflAA (0.02%) 6/7/2027
100,000 9/7/2018 9/7/2018 - 2470 2470
0.02%) 8/7/2028
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip Long position Beneficial owner 100000 972018 9/7/2018  20/7/2018  21/7/2018 - 2470 2470
REgrt e EREEA (0.02%) 8/7/2028

* Vested upon granted.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERBRETHRAERRG MM
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BAROREESCIESZSRAR &)
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continueq)

(c) Interests in the underlying shares of the (c) REQTEERMDZESR (Z)
Company (continued)
The Directors’ interests in the Company’s share EENARABEREZ RSNV ERR
options are disclosed in Note 32 to the financial Bt sF32F #E 55 o
statements.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, G EXFTiEEEIN RZE_—F=H
none of the Directors nor chief executive of the =t+—H BMEARAEERESTK
Company had interests or short positions in any ABRAERBISEAMMAEEZE (&
securities of the Company or any of its associated RFBEERIBEEMEXVED) 2 E M F 5
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the rh A 7B ()R 15 3B 5 & B & (6 15] S5 XV EB
SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the FBIREDEAE AR B MR 2 S
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to AR (BEREZISFRAEGKNINE
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including BRI BAESAR RER 2 3ok
interests or short positions which he/she is taken 2 (o) IRIEEH K HE KA 535214
or deemed to have under such provisions of the ARATRMAZERSAR  sk(c) 1B
SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to BEESTRBNE RN 7] MBS 2 R
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) HIOKE °

pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as
disclosed, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” of this chapter
and in the share option scheme disclosures in Note 32
to the financial statements, at no time during the Year
were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are
disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transaction” below, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
Year.
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EEERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (as defined in Section 543 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622)) relating to the management and/or
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS
AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

On 20 April 2020, Progress Power-Saving Glass
Technology Co., Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
purchases agreement with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”) in respect of disposal of the entire equity
interests in its wholly-owned subsidiaries, both established
under the laws of the PRC with limited liability, at a
consideration (the “Consideration”) of RMB34,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$37,759,000). Details of
the transaction was set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 21 April 2020 and 24 April 2020.

Pursuant to the aforesaid announcements, the
Purchaser paid a partial payment of the Consideration
of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$33,000,000). The transaction of the aforesaid disposal
had completed on 16 June 2020, and the remaining
balance has settled in full by September 2020.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, the Group was
neither involved in any significant investment, nor in any
material acquisition or disposal of any subsidiary.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &S BEAER 2

'_QIE I:| n\/J

MRAFEE  BET YR FEERRNRFNZE
HEMERABIEBHNEERRITHREB
a4 (EER(AEED) (556228 ) 5543
fg&) -

EXRBE - HEREARE

R-ZZE-_ZTFEWNA-+H  AQRzZHESR
BB AREI SR BREERARE—
EEIE=FTEFDILEERZE  RA
ERALHEE2ENB AR (BWAREHREE
BRI BERET AR O IME  KE
(K& B ARM34,500,0007T (HE R L
37,759,000 70) - BAR ZMFBHNAEAR
AAPA-Z-_ZFNA=-t+—RHK=ZT=
TEMMA -+ MAB QM -

BELDRAG  EFEZIHABOREBEARE
30,000,0007T (8 & M #933,000,0007% 7T) °

FRHERBER-_ZE_TF A+ 8%
K YER-_ZE_ZTFNLABMNHTE

BREXHBEEEIN RAFE  AEELE
2EEFNEAREXNEFMMBEBRARZEAR
BaHE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE k&



As reported in our 2019/2020 annual report, the entire
equity interest in Unicon Investments Limited (“Unicon”,
before disposed of in March 2020, was an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, the sole assets of which
is a property located at 7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-
27 Luk Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
(the “Property”)) has disposed to Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the
executive Director, the chairman of the Board, the chief
executive officer and the controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined under Listing Rules). The aforesaid
disposal had approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held on 30
March 2020.

On 1 April 2020, a leasing agreement (the “Leasing
Agreement”) was entered into between Unicon (as a lessor)
and Kin Yat Industrial Company Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (as a lessee), concerning
the leaseback of the Property, as the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong, for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023, with an
annual rental of HK$1,498,000 (inclusive of government
rent, rates and management fees).

Upon the completion of the aforesaid disposal, Unicon
becomes an associate of a connected person of the
Company and hence itself becomes a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the leasing of the Property under the Leasing Agreement
upon completion of the aforesaid disposal constituted
a connected transaction for the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further, under HKFRS
16 “Leases”, the Company recognised the value of the
right-of-use assets on its balance sheet with respect to
the lease of Property. Accordingly, the leasing of Property
following the aforesaid disposal was regarded as the
acquisition of asset by the Company for the purpose
of the Listing Rules. As one or more of the relevant
applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Listing
Rules) for the leasing of the Property exceeded 0.1%
but is less than 5%, the transaction contemplated under
the Leasing Agreement is subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, so far as is known to any Director
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons
had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

FTERRREMALTRE®D A
BRORERERE 2 ED

R-ZE-_—F=ZA=+—H ' BAQAEM
EERRTBABRMA U TALTRAR
AR - HERMD REEZFEE ARE
BE N EIEGIFEXVERE2 K35 SIS A A
NEHTE - IIRIEFF R EIEEFE3361KE
AXRBFENECMOERSIABNT

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s Number of

ordinary issued shares share options

shares held HARDEE held

Name of Shareholders Capacity FEgER BITR®BZ FEERE

RRERZ8 L) REA BRBEDL A
(Note 1) (Hi#£1)

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Interests on controlling 283,254,000 64.52% —

WRGERE

Mdm. Tsang Yuk Wan
RERLL

50

corporation, beneficial
owner and interests held
by spouse

S AR
EaEA AR
BB AT 5 A e i

Interests on controlling
corporation, beneficial
owner and interests held
by spouse

RS AR
EmiB AR
B AT IS A e

(Note 2) (Aiit2)

283,254,000 64.52% -
(Note 3) (#/7%3)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continueq)

Notes:

(1)  The percentage of shareholding is calculated based on
438,960,000 shares, being the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company as at 31 March 2021.

(2)  This refers to the same block of shareholding of Mr. Cheng
Chor Kit described in the section headed “Directors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above.

(3)  Mdm. Tsang Yuk Wan is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Chor
Kit and is deemed to be interested in the shares which are
interested by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit under Part XV of the SFO.

All the interests stated above representing long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the
Directors and chief executive officer of the Company were
not aware of any person who had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest
of the Directors, the controlling shareholder and their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of the Company that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group
during the Year.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO R13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGE

In April 2015 and November 2017, the Company as a
borrower, entered into a renewed and new term loan
facility agreements of HK$100,000,000 each with The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited for
a term of 60 months of each term loan facility respectively.

In July 2015 and November 2017, the Company as a
borrower entered into term loan facility agreements of
HK$100,000,000 and HK$150,000,000 with Hang Seng
Bank Limited (“HSB”) for a term of 36 months of each
term loan respectively. In January 2020, HSB revised
the abovesaid term loan facilities and entered into a
renewed term loan facility agreement with the Company
(the “Renewed Agreement”) to substitute the original term
loan agreements. Pursuant to the Renewed Agreement,
the renewed term loans are for a period of 36 months and
included term loans of HK$45,000,000 to finance capital
expenditure of the Company and of HK$217,500,000 to
refinance the outstanding balance of the loans previously
granted.

In May 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as a borrower, entered into a new term loan
and trade-line facility agreement of total HK$100,000,000
with Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited for a term of 36
months and the purpose of the aforesaid term loan is used
for financing capital expenditure.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO R13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGE (continued)

In addition to general conditions, each of the term loan
facility agreement imposes, inter alia, a condition that
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the Director and the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company, and the discretionary trust set up by him for
the benefit of his family (the trust agreement between
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit and HSBC Trustee International
Limited, the trustee of the aforesaid trust, has terminated
on 2 April 2019) collectively shall beneficially or directly
maintain a shareholding of not less than 50% of the issued
share capital of the Company (the “Specific Performance
Obligations”). A breach of the Specific Performance
Obligations will constitute an event of default under the
relevant facility letter. Upon the occurrence of such event,
each of the loan shall become immediately due and
repayable on demand.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information of the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the chapter of “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 55 to 80 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period had been
disclosed in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report. Other than disclosed
above, there is no significant event after the reporting
period that should be notified to shareholders of the
Company.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for
their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Chor Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate
governance at all time and in all areas of its operations
for maximising long-term shareholder value while
balancing broader stakeholders’ interests. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise quality
of the Board, effective internal control, stringent disclosure
practices, an ethical corporate culture and accountability
to all stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board regularly reviews the guidelines and latest
development in corporate governance. In the opinion of
the Board, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the Year except for the deviation from
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as described in the
section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” in this
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Report”). The
Board has also reviewed the CG Report and is satisfied
that it has been in full compliance with all the requirements
stipulated in the CG Report in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT
EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code regarding securities transactions by the
Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the Year. All relevant employees of the Group who,
because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information have
been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model
Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The composition of the Board shall comprise of a
balanced mix of Directors and shall have a sufficient
number of Directors to provide a breadth of knowledge
as well as the ability to make insightful discussions on key
issues.

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
ten members, the Board is confident that the balance
between the number of executive and non-executive
Directors has been reasonably and adequately established
in order to protect the interests of the shareholders and
the Company as a whole.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Directors were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Tat Luen
Mr. Cheng Tsz To
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang
Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston*

Non-executive Director
Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent**

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip

- Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston appointed as an executive
Director on 1 April 2021.

& Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent resigned as an executive
Director and re-designated as a non-executive Director on
1 April 2021.

All Directors come from diverse businesses and
professional backgrounds and expertise as shown in the
chapter of “Biographical Details of the Directors” on pages
27 to 31 in this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition of the Board (continued)

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang and Mr. Cheng Tsz To are the
sons of Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the executive Director and
the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company. Save as disclosed above, none of
the Directors has any financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the Directors.

All Directors disclose to the Company the number and
natures of offices held in other public companies or
organisations as well as other significant appointments
annually which ensures that all Board members are
capable of inputting enough time and devoting enough
attention to the Company’s affairs.

Functions of the Board

The Company’s overall management is vested on its
Board which accepts that it is ultimately accountable and
responsible for the performance and affairs of the Group.
The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership
set the Company’s strategic aims and the Company’s
values and standards, and to ensure that its obligations
to its stakeholders and others are understood and met.
To facilitate the operations, the Board has established a
schedule of matters reserved for its approval. The specific
responsibilities reserved for the Board include (1) setting
the Group’s strategies and dividend policy, (2) approving
budgets, reviewing operational and financial performance
(3) approving major investments and divestments, (4)
reviewing risk management and internal control system
of the Group, (5) ensuring appropriate management
development and succession plans in place, (6) approving
appointments of Directors and other senior executives,
(7) approving corporate social responsibility policies, (8)
ensuring effective communication with shareholders and
(9) other significant operational and financial matters.

An update list of Directors identifying their role and

function is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Delegation of Authority

The Board has delegated the authorities and day-to-
day responsibilities to the management and requires the
management to execute the objectives and strategies
established by the Board. The Board also exercises a
separate and independent assessment to the performance
of the management on a periodical basis.

The management is responsible for running the
Company’s businesses and for proposing the
development of the Group’s strategies and overall
commercial objectives in consultation with the Board.
The management is also responsible for implementing
decisions of the Board and its committees, developing
main policies and reviewing the business organisational
structure and operational performance. Furthermore, the
management is obligated to supply relevant, adequate,
clear and timely information and report to the Board and
its committees in a consistent format. The Board, where
necessary, can make further enquiries to the management
on any matters they are concerned.

Board Meeting
For the Board discharges their responsibilities, the
Directors are required to meet in person regularly. The
schedule of the Board meetings for the coming year is
determined and informed all Directors in the fourth quarter
meeting annually.

Prior to the meetings of the Board, as delegated by
the chairman of the Company, the company secretary
or a designated person of the Company prepares and
despatches the notice of meeting together with the
relevant documents and information to all Directors in a
timely manner to ensure that all the participants are given
the opportunities of reviewing and preparing the matter
discussed for making informed decisions in the meeting.

The Board met five times during the Year and meeting
attendance records are set out on page 80 of this annual
report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting (continued)

The minutes of the Board meetings are prepared by
the company secretary or a designated person of the
Company who are delegated by the Board. The draft
minutes are circulated to all members of the Board
for their commentary. The final minutes are open for
inspection by all members of the Board at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer shall be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual and
the division of responsibilities between the chairman and
chief executive officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company are not separated and are performed
by the same individual, Mr. Cheng Chor Kit. The balance
of power and authority is ensured by the operations of
the Board which comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals, with a highly independent element in the Board
where the Board members meet regularly to discuss
issues affecting operations of the Company. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and
consistent leadership, enabling the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and efficiently.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

The corporate governance stresses the importance of
independent non-executive directors. The independent
non-executive Directors bring in a wide range of skills and
business experience to the Company, and also bring in
independent and sound judgement on issues relating to
strategy, performance and risk through their contribution
to Board and to its committees.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules,
there are no less than three independent non-executive
directors and at least one of them has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The independent non-
executive Directors are all experienced individuals from
various professionals, their skills and experience are an
important element in proper functioning to the Board. The
Board believes that a strong independent element on the
Board can provide a higher level of “checks and balances”
on the Company’s key decision-making mechanism as
well as monitor the Company’s affairs effectively.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, the written confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Evaluated the independence of all independent
non-executive Directors on an annual basis and based on
their confirmation, the Board considers the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors have been
adequately maintained.

Under provision A.3.1 of the CG Code, the independent
non-executive Directors are identified as such in all
corporate communications containing the names of the
Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal
The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of Directors are laid down in the Bye-Laws.
Each of executive Director is engaged on a service
contract with the Company for different terms.

Under provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, and
subject to re-election. Each of the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors is also engaged
in a services contract with a specific term of his/her
appointment.

All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy are
subject to election at the annual general meeting after
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Under provision of A.4.3 of CG Code, any further re-
appointment of an independent non-executive Director
who has served the Board for more than nine years
will be subject to separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination Policy

The Company’s Nomination Policy provides the framework
by which criteria and process in the nomination,
appointment and re-election of Directors can be clearly
defined and to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives which
are appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. In considering the suitability of a proposed
candidate, a number of factors including qualifications,
integrity, reputation, time commitment, skills and
experience relevant to the Company’s businesses will be
taken into consideration. The decision of appointment or
re-appointment of a director will be made subject to the
Company’s Board Diversity Policy and the relevant Listing
Rules. The above selection process will be conducted by
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) to identify potential candidate for new
directorship or for re-appointment of a Director. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee on the
selected candidates will be communicated to the Board
for their consideration and approval. The Nomination
Policy also includes the Board succession planning policy
outlining the process that the Board need to use for
planning to replace Board members due to the Directors’
resignation, retirement and other circumstance. The
Nomination Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Diversity Policy

In order to enhance the effectiveness and the balanced
development of the Board, the Company is committed
to promoting diversity among the composition of its
Board members. The current Board Diversity Policy
provides a process and guideline which the Company
will implement to achieve its diversity and ensures the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives that are required for the
Company’s businesses. The Company recognises
the importance of a corporate culture that embraces
diversity and believes that a diversity commitment can be
achieved through consideration of a wide range of factors,
including gender, age, skills and industry experience,
cultural and educational background, length of services
in designing the Board composition. The Nomination
Committee has the primary responsibility for identifying
suitable candidates to become Board members based
on the selection criteria. The Board Diversity Policy and
the diversity of the Board will be reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure the continued effectiveness of our Board
Diversity Policy.

Directors’ Training

Every Director should keep himself or herself abreast
of the responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.
Each new incoming Director receives an induction
package covering the introduction of Group’s businesses
and real-life overview of the Company, induction of their
roles and responsibilities, the practical procedure duties
and the compliance of laws and regulations.

All Directors are encouraged to pursue an ongoing
development and refreshment of their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
relevant and productive.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training (continued)

On 27 November 2020, a tailor-made seminar
was organised to Directors in related to the recent
development of corporate governance. All Directors on
that date participated in this seminar.

The training of each individual Director for the Year is set
out below:

BEEE®)
EEEN(E)
A\ZEZEF+—AZ++tH BEFHEHE
EREEMRNOANE - ATBERNIHADE
EREE MR%B2EEEHHFE&M

I

il

o

BEEFNAFREZEIHINOT

Types of training

Name of Director EEHE -1 ki)
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit B ESE A A/B
Mr. Liu Tat Luen BEELE A/B
Mr. Cheng Tsz To Ll e e A/B
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang B 718 e & A/B
Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston* S A N/A i@ A
Non-executive Director FHTES

Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent** HEEF L A/B
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITESE

Mr. Wong Chi Wai = M4 S A A/B
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian REMEL A/B
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul e A/B
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip SRR A& A/B

A Attending briefings/seminars/conference/forums.
B Reading/studying training or other materials

* Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston appointed as an executive
Director on 1 April 2021.

- Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent resigned as executive
Director and re-designated as a non executive Director on
1 April 2021.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against the Directors and senior
management of the Company arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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The Board has established the following Board
committees, all chaired by independent non-executive
Directors, with clearly defined terms of reference, which
are on no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG
Code of the Listing Rules:

S Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”);
- Nomination Committee; and
= Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”)

The roles and responsibilities of each Board committee is
set out by the Board with clearly defined written terms of
reference and this document is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Pursuant to the written terms of reference, each
Board committee has authority to engage outside
consultants or experts as it considers necessary to
discharge the committee’s responsibilities. Minutes
of all Board committees meetings are circulated to all
Board members. To further reinforce independence
and effectiveness, all Audit Committee members being
appointed are independent non-executive Directors, and
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
have been structured with a majority of independent
non-executive Directors being the Board committees’
members. During the Year and up to the date of this
annual report, each Board Committee’s members include:

EERERIATRBIFRTE B E
TRNESEES  TLABBEREHES
B HARTER £ RAZ 0 EFRIFH
Z B

- ¥MZBEe(FMZES)):
- RBZBE R
- EBRZB®(EXRZES))

EXEeE TEZBeNACKBAEYHES
SUERABATHEBREE  HWXHAR
56 2 P A I AR A B VA B B e

REENRELE RETZESZAE.
EEeBE TRREAREERR/TERZR
BIHMERMKER -MEEZTEETZXE
CERLBHX2EEETINEFMHN - R
—TMEBIERBERE REEREZE
ZEZEEKENRBIIFNTES « &M
REQRRERBEZKEHOUNBIIERIT
EERT -RAFEAREBEEAFHAY
EEeBE TRZEENKEBRE:

Remuneration Nomination Audit
Committee Committee Committee
FMzag REZEE ENZEE
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Executive Director Member X & Member X & =
e HITES
Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent*  Non-executive Director Member B & Member f% & =
BEEE L FHTEE
Mr. Wong Chi Wai Independent non-executive Director Member B 5 Chairman £ & Member 7 &
AWML E BUFHTES
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian Independent non-executive Director Member X & Member i\ &  Chairperson £ /&
BENEL BUFHITES
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul Independent non-executive Director Chairman ¥ & Member i & Member X &
e Lt BUFHTES
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip Independent non-executive Director Member 5 & Member f% & Member f% &
RAEXEE BUFHITES
# Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent resigned as executive # JGEHEEE AR = FE = —Ep) H— [ BHEFHTT
?/;e[)cri;); gg;:l re-designated as a non-executive Director on EE LI TESE
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration packages offered by the Company
should be able to attract and motivate the Directors and
senior management of the Company for their sufficient
quality, whilst at the same time taking into account
the shareholders’ interests as well. The main roles
and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee is
aimed to assist the Board to develop and administer
fair and transparent procedures for setting policy on
the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Company, and to ensure no individual Director
or any of his/her associates can determine his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee reviews and determines,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages include but not limited to basic salaries,
deferred compensation, stock options and any benefits
in kind, pension rights, incentive payments and any
other compensation payments, of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
within the Group and in the market. The Remuneration
Committee also independently reviews and approves the
compensation and related arrangements for executive
Directors and senior management of the Company in
respect of any loss or termination of office or appointment.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the Year to review and approve the Directors’
remuneration packages. Meeting attendance records of
the Remuneration Committee are set out on page 80 of
this annual report.

Information relating to remuneration of each Director for
the Year is set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The primarily responsibility of the Nomination Committee,
followed the Nomination Policy and Diversity Policy
as mentioned above, reviews the composition of the
Board from time to time and gives advice to the Board
on the candidates, conditions, selection standards and
procedures of the proposed appointment of Directors and
senior management of the Company.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
recommending to the Board all new appointments of
Directors and senior management of the Company
identify by referral or intermediary agencies. The
Nomination Committee considers the past performance
and qualification of the candidates for Directors and
senior management of the Company, reviews general
market conditions and the Bye-Laws in selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship and
management.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the Year to review and discuss the composition of the
Board, assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and to make recommendations to the
Board on the re-election of Directors. Meeting attendance
records of the Nomination Committee are set out on page
80 of this annual report.
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Audit Committee

The main roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in (1) maintaining an effective
risk management and a system of internal control and
compliance with the Company’s obligations (including
external financial reporting obligations) under the Listing
Rules as modified from time to time and applicable laws
and regulations is in place; (2) overseeing the integrity
of the financial statements of the Company; and (3), on
behalf of the Board, (i) selecting the Company’s external
auditor and approving their remuneration, (i) assessing the
independence and qualifications of the external auditors,
and (iii) the overseeing the performance of the Company’s
internal audit function.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with
the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 as well as the
interim report for the six months ended 30 September
2020. The Audit Committee also reviewed the Group’s
financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems, discussed internal control matters, conducted
discussions with the external auditor on financial reporting,
compliance, the effectiveness of the audit process, and
reported all relevant matters to the Board during the Year.
In addition, the Audit Committee has met with the external
auditor of the Company and reviewed the financial results
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year.
Meeting attendance records of the Audit Committee are
set out on page 80 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Corporate Governance Function

The Company has not deliberately established a corporate
governance committee and the Board delegated its
responsibilities to the Audit Committee with clearly defined
written terms of reference, for performing the corporate
governance functions:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices of
the Company on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and
regulatory;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors
and employees of the Group; and

5.  to review the compliance by the Company with the
CG Code and the disclosure requirements for the CG
Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and External Auditor’s Financial Reporting
Responsibility

The management has timely and frequently provided
a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance to the Board. The Board has
an ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs and the results together with cash
flows situation for the Year. In preparing the financial
statements, the generally accepted accounting standards
in Hong Kong have been adopted; appropriate accounting
policies have been used and applied consistently; and
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have
been made.

Other than the discussion in respect of the financial
conditions, liquidity and financial resources on the chapter
of “Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements of the
Group.

The Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 81 to 92 of
this annual report has set out the reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor of the Company.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

GIEPSE: 3
EERNBLBEA B RER

EEEERMEERARAZRARNESTS
REALESREMRZFE EFSARK
BEEEREMBHRER  YEERQAFHRER
AEERAFEZEBRAREENMR SR
ERN - REHEYBRRE  BELRGE
BRI TFRA: BEZEHBRRETERY
ERER MaBRBERZABEFEHE T
fEH -

BRI EEE ko | EEFTEA B R %R
noRBEERUBERZTWIN EEE
W AMBERMEATARAEHRBERATESR
BRHARRRKBERLERNELETRRH -
At  EESERUEAEE 2 M IEHKRE#

BRAFBEERE -

AERENERAZBYRBMBREIEE
ARBZINEZEIM 2 AREE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE k&



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Auditor’s Remuneration
The auditor’s remuneration and the fee for non-audit
services for the Year are as below:

Nature of services RS
Audit services % ER 75
Non-audit services % EUR 75

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
risk management, internal control systems as well as
financial control, and reviewing their effectiveness. Our
risk management system can provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and is designed to manage rather than to eliminate risk of
failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management
approach to identify, access and manage different
types of risks. As the first line of defence, operational
management are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risk associated with each business
activities or transaction. The management, as the second
line of defence, defines rules sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new system and oversees
project management. It ensures that risks are within the
acceptable range and that the first line of defence is
effective. As the final line of defence, an internal control
advisor assists the Audit Committee to review the first and
second lines of defence.

The Group is committed to set up and maintain a sound
and effective internal control system which is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in operational system and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

An internal control advisor was appointed by the Company
as outsourced internal audit function to assist the
Group to conduct yearly review on the internal controls
system according to the internal audit plan agreed by
the management and Audit Committee. The internal
control advisor reported the internal audit findings and
recommendations to both the management of the Group
and Audit Committee. The management of the Group
agreed on the internal audit findings and adopted the
recommendations accordingly.

Based on the risk management mechanism and internal
audit review activities, the management of the Group had
provided a confirmation to the Board that the Group had
maintained an effective risk management mechanism and
internal control systems during the Year.

INSIDE INFORMATION

Kin Yat, as a listed corporation, must, as soon as
reasonably practicable after any inside information has
come to its knowledge, disclose the inside information
to the public, unless the information falls with any of
the “Safe Harbours” as provided in SFO. Every Director
must take all reasonable measures from time to time to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach
of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Company.
In addition, as included in our staff handbook, a strict
prohibition to all Directors and relevant employees on
the unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and
inside information as well as deal in the securities of the
Company when they are in possession of undisclosed
inside information.

To fulfil the disclosure obligation, during the Year, the
Company has disclosed inside information to the market
as a whole by way of the electronic publication system
operated by the Stock Exchange and other means in
accordance with the Listing Rules so that all participants
of the market have equal and simultaneous access to the
same information.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ho Man has retired and Mr. Li Tung Wai (“Mr.
Li”) has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 1 September 2020.

Mr. Li, aged 54, joined the Group in June 2019 as the
Group Financial Controller of the Group. Currently, he is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of HKICPA.

Mr. Li confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS
Shareholders’ Rights

s

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

Rights to convene Special General Meeting
Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, any one or more
registered shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than 10% of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at the general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by a written requisition,
to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The written requisition must state the purpose of
the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and be
delivered to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company at the Company’s principal place of
business at 7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-27 Luk
Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, and
such may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

s

Rights to convene Special General Meeting
(continued)

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them
represented more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene a meeting in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of
the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Any one or more registered shareholders, at the
date of submission of written requisition, represents
either (a) not less than 5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders; or (b) not less than one hundred
shareholders, entitled to submit a written requisition
for putting forward proposals at the general meeting.

The written requisition duly signed by the registered
shareholders, must state the purpose of the written
requisition, together with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution must be
deposited at the principal place of business in Hong
Kong, not less than six weeks before the general
meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution; or not less than one week in case of other
requisition.
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NIV SN
TEERRSE
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND BRREMNRREEBRR @)
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)
Shareholders’ Rights (continued) MRRER (&)
3. Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to 3. REMEFSIIEHNEHZEF
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing through the company secretary
of the Company whose contact details are as
follows:

7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-27 Luk Hop Street,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: (852)-2351-1867
Email: webmaster@kinyat.com.hk

BRABERAERSBEBARAZA
AMERNEZSREEN  AAWEZ
BB mT

ERNEFHERENEEH25-275R
EEIHAETE

B H : (852)-2351-1867
B E : webmaster@kinyat.com.hk

Investor Relations BEEBE

1. Shareholders’ communication 7.
The Board recognises the importance of maintaining
clear, timely and effective communications
with shareholders. Annual and interim reports
are published to provide shareholders with
comprehensive information of the Company’s
operational and financial performances. The
Company practices timely dissemination
of information and makes sure its website
(www.kinyat.com.hk) contains the most current
information, including annual reports, interim reports,
announcements, monthly returns and press releases,
and is updated in a timely manner to ensure
transparency.

The Board endeavour to maintain an ongoing and
transparent communications with all shareholders
and, in particular, use general meeting as a platform
for shareholders to state and exchange views with
the Board directly and encourage their participation.
The Directors are available to answer questions from
shareholders throughout an annual general meeting.
External auditor is also available at an annual
general meeting to address shareholders’ queries in
accordance to the requirements of applicable Listing
Rules.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ & KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &

BIRR 2 B
EEeRHMARRREEW BRME
BEBzEEM AR SHBFE
RAEmENRRREHEEBR QA
KERPBRIRZZ2EER - XAQF]
Z BB 7 i R B B R R AR H Ak
(www.kinyat.com.hk) & & B BRI & 1 2
ER - BEFHR - PERE - A6 A
WMANFER  WEEFEHUARRELS
BHE -

EEERNTHERYSBRE2ER
BERCHAEEHAREZER BRIRE
BERAE T e BERBBARER
BEREEEEXBER - EEHNEME
BREBFASHEEELIR 2 5EH - 4
BRBMTeRRRBFEAEG LREE
AETRANZRERERREER -

iEEERAR]

75



76

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEBHE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations (continued)

s

Shareholders’ communication (continued)

The annual general meeting for the year of 2020
of the Company (the “2020 AGM”) was held on 21
August 2020 and all the members of the Board
together with the external auditor presented in the
2020 AGM. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing
Rules, any vote of shareholders on all resolutions
at general meetings must be taken by poll. The poll
results in respect of the resolutions proposed at the
2020 AGM were published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on 21 August
2020.

The annual general meeting for the year of 2021
of the Company (the “2021 AGM”) will be held
on Tuesday, 24 August 2021, for details of the
information on the 2021 AGM, please refer to this
annual report and its accompanying Explanatory
Statement.

The Board continues to maintain regular dialogue
with financial analysts and institutional investors
as appropriate to keep them informed the
Group’s strategies, operations, management and
plans. In order to strengthen the bi-directional
communications between the Company,
shareholders and investors, an email contact
(webmaster@kinyat.com.hk) responded by senior
management of the Company are available to
shareholders and investors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations (continued)

2.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

Sufficient and timely information

The Board recognises the significance of providing
information to shareholders to enable each
shareholder to make an informed assessment for
the purposes of voting on each of the matter put
before shareholders at the general meeting. Copies
of the annual report, financial statements and related
documents are despatched to shareholders in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Significant constitutional documents
There was no change in the Company’s
constitutional document for the Year.

Dividend Policy

Sharing the fruit of our effort and providing a
stable and sustainable return to our shareholders
is our goal. The Company has adopted a Dividend
Policy (the “Dividend Policy”) which is a guideline
on distribution of dividends to shareholders of the
Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, there
shall be a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital for expanding the Group’s business as well
as rewarding the shareholders of the Company.
The Board shall also take into account, among
other things, when considering the declaration and
payments of dividends:
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations (continued)

Dividend Policy (continued)

- the actual and expected financial performance
of the Group;

- the capital and debt level of the Group;

- the general market conditions;

- any working capital and capital expenditure
requirement;

- any future development plans of the Group;

- retained earnings and distributable reserves of
the Company and each of the members of the
Group;

- the liquidity position of the Group;

- any restrictions on dividend payouts imposed
by any of the Group’s lenders;

= the statutory and regulatory restrictions which
the Group is subject to from time to time; and

- any other relevant factors that the Board may
deem appropriate.

Under our Dividend Policy, the recommendation
of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board as well as any
restrictions under the law’s requirements of Bermuda
and Hong Kong, the Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws
of the Company. The declaration of final dividend will
be subject to the approval of the shareholders.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company
in respect of its future dividend. In addition, any
dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert
to the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws of
the Company.
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changed in information of the Directors subsequent to the
date of the 2019/2020 annual report of the Company is
set out below:

(1) Emoluments
(@ Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the executive Director,
voluntarily reduce his basic monthly salary by
HK$55,000 to HK$445,000 with effect from 1
December 2020.

(b) Mr. Liu Tat Luen, the executive Director, his
basic monthly salary increased by HK$49,000 to
HK$190,000 with effect from 1 December 2020.

The aforesaid changes are covered by their
respective service contracts and have been reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee.

(2) Other Major Changes
On 21 September 2020, Mr. Wong Chi Wai, the
independent non-executive Director, has resigned
as an independent non-executive director, the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
nomination committee and remuneration committee
of Bonjour Holdings Limited (stock code 0653).

Other than disclosed above, there is no other information

required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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THE ATTENDANCE RECORD OF EACH
MEMBER OF THE BOARD IN 2020/2021

The number of Annual General Meeting, Board and its
Committees meetings attended by each Director for the

—EBE-E S "FEC
REHEEERLE

—FEEEH

RAEER BUESFHMHFEZRRBEX
g EFgNhEFZEEEIRH-

Year.

Annual

General Full Remuneration Nomination Audit

Meeting Board Committee = Committee = Committee
Name of Director EEfg RREFEAE 2BEZE ¥Wzee REZEE ERZEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit ORGxE 1/1 5/5 1/1 171 NATER
Mr. Liu Tat Luen BERLE 1/1 5/5 N/A R N/A RN N/A ~NEA
Mr. Cheng Tsz To BrEik 1/1 5/5 NATER NATER  NATER
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang ik 1/1 5/5 NATER NATER  NATER
Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston* THELE N/A NBH N/ATER NATEE  NATER  NATNER
Non-executive Director FHTES
Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent™  BZg &+ 1/1 5/5 1/1 171 NATEHR
Independent non-executive BUkSTES

Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai EMaLE 1/1 5/5 1/1 1/1 4/4
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian BENEL 1/1 5/6 1/1 1/1 4/4
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul BEy LT 1/1 5/5 11 11 4/4
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip REELE 1/1 5/5 11 1/1 4/4
* Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston appointed as an executive % FRIFEFE SR ZE - —FPH—HEZ LA
Director on 1 April 2021. HITEE -

“  Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent resigned as an executive o EEEBEA A~ — — iy H— H BT 7T

Director and re-designated as a non-executive Director on

1 April 2021.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

i
pwec

To the Shareholders of Kin Yat Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kin Yat Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 93 to 247, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2021;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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18 M A% B Al R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

o Fair value estimation of freehold land and buildings
and investment properties

° Provision for inventories

o Expected credit loss allowance for accounts
receivable
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETNATEEBRENSE

Fair value estimation of freehold land and buildings and investment properties

KARBIHRBTFURRENEN D FEMGS

Refer to notes 4.1(a), 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
B2 RHRE VM BI|RKRMT41(0) - 16Kk16 -

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had freehold
land and buildings of HK$384,353,000 included
in property, plant and equipment, and investment
properties of HK$66,028,000. The revaluation
surplus and fair value gain recognised during
the year amounted to HK$52,776,000 and
HK$3,462,000, respectively.
RZEBEZ—F=A=+—H ' ESEFBEKAERE
4 b % #2 5384,353,000 7T (B IERW - ME &k
B ) IR E W %66,028,0008 7T+ F A B HER
i &84 A B W #52,776,000/% 7t 13,462,000/
IT o

Management engaged external valuers to determine
the year-end fair value of the freehold land and
buildings, and investment properties based on
market comparable method or direct replacement
cost method. The valuations are dependent on
certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgement, including estimated useful
life, unit rates, replacement cost and capitalisation
rate.

EREZRE -—BIBEEMBBETISHLEBERERE
BEERREBETKAXBELIHRETFUARREY X
RERNAFE - FEIAREZEERNERE A
BWETHRER BEGAAICRFES EE &8
RARERLRK -

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance and significant management judgement
and estimates involved in the fair value estimation
of freehold land and buildings and investment
properties.

BAAIEE UL S 05 Ty B AR R EE R ROk A SR £ 3
MEFURBRENENRAFERATRERERE
F BT RO T o

Our key procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of freehold land and buildings and
investment properties included:

B EREEBH XA ERET M REFUREENED
HERTHEERFBHE

° Understood management’s internal controls
and assessment processes of estimating
fair value of freehold land and buildings and
investment properties;
BEREEEMIKAFTELHMEEBEFURKE
M RN FE R A EB IR G R T AR

° Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors involved in the fair value
estimation such as subjectivity;
EERERFARNTERR  ERZERGHE
B AEERE R A FEGESR T R EMAE
R\ R A =B KF - BlanEER L

o Evaluated the external property valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

FHASNE MR EREEE - BN MZEIE -

o Involved our in-house valuation expert to
assess the methodologies used in valuation
by referencing to market practices and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions of
estimated useful life, unit rates, replacement
costs and capitalisation rate by referencing to
market data; and
R AEE L EZERLSZE W58 | AT
HEMKANTE  RB2EMSEET hAET
AEAFER BB ZFBERNARERMEENH
BERMNREN &

° Assessed the appropriateness of the
disclosures in the financial statements.

A B RRBBEERNRE M -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
management’s judgements and estimates applied
on the fair value estimation of freehold land and
buildings and investment properties were supported
by available evidence.

REBFTETHRF  RMRREEEBEH KA E LM
RIEFARIZE YA T EGFER A E R
BEFTSRBHZHE ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FEREEITEIE (&)

Key Audit Matter
BAEENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEN NN EEEREN SR

Provision for inventories

FE&E

Refer to notes 4.1(b) and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A2RR A M MR E4.1(0) K22 »

At 31 March 2021, the Group held gross inventories
of HK$388,350,000 and the provision for obsolete
or slow moving inventories was HK$26,449,000.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value in the consolidated financial
statements. Management assesses the provision for
obsolete or slow moving inventories at each period
end based on their consideration of obsolescence
and the net realisable value of inventories. The
determination of estimated selling price less cost to
sell requires the use of significant judgement and
estimates, including consideration of condition of
products, latest selling price, expectation of future
sales orders, market trends and customer demands.
RZEZ—F=A=+—H' ESEFENE
15 & /388,350,000 7T - lRE L FHTFEREE R
26,449,000 7T ° FERK AR ] #HRFEME R
BRERGENBEHRERIE BEEEREGFTERE
BERAEAERFIENZE REHBEREMRESK
HHTFENBEETHN BEETEEREEK
AFZGRAERAGMGEET  BRESE@RRRL - &
HER  KRRHEETENEY  mMHBEREFPEXK
HEE -

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance and, significant management judgement
and estimates involved in determining the provision
for obsolete or slow moving inventories.
FAPIF I UL SRS T B 0 A R EE K K i E PR EE Bl 8
FEREBR I RENEEBHERAET -

Our key procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the provision for obsolete or slow
moving inventories included:

M EEEHREIFIHTEREMETERITH
RRIZ T B 1E -

o Understood and validated key control
procedures over the aging schedule and the
estimation of inventory provision;

BRI ZEHRKRSERRNETEREEHE
RIEHIRRF

° Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors involved in the estimation
of inventory provision such as subjectivity;
A EARERBRANANERR  ERPERMEE
NI BERERFERBHER S RNEMRA
FERRR E = E KT - flanE B

o Tested, on a sample basis, the net
realisable value of selected inventory items,
by comparing the carrying amount of the
inventory items against their selling price
subsequent to the year end;
FAMKARALEMEFENREESEARNEF

RENEE  HAMRFEENRAISERFEETA
= s

° Tested, on a sample basis, the usage of
inventories subsequent to the year end;

REMET AN FERNEERER

° Attended the inventory count to observe the
inventory condition;
DEEFERBABRFEMR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

18 M % BED

BERETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BREESTER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETNATEEBRENSE

Provision for inventories

FERHE

o Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
aging profile of individual inventory items by
checking to the supporting documents such
as goods receipt notes; and
FAMKARAREZAXE (PlnkEER)
HORSUERITF 518 B BREe eV EREME « &

o Assessed the reasonableness of inventory
provision by comparing against historical sales
or usage pattern and orders on hand for sales
subsequent to the year end.
ABEELHEENERARA EFERATFHEE
BRI EETLER AT ERENSERNE -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
management’s judgements and estimates applied

on the provision for inventories were supported by
available evidence.

REMETHRERF  BRARREEEHFERERA
B B B A E T PR S R B S -
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Key Audit Matter
BAEENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEN NN EEEREN SR

Expected credit loss allowance for accounts receivable

EURANEREEBERE

Refer to notes 4.1(c) and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BRELRE M EREM5E4.1(c) 23 »

At 31 March 2021, the Group had gross accounts
receivable of HK$364,896,000 and expected credit
loss allowance for accounts receivable amounted to
HK$14,782,000.

RZZEZ—F=A=+—0  BE5ENEKEZRE
1 7/3364,896,000/% 7T * MRV TEBREEEE
B 514,782,000 7T ©

Loss allowance for accounts receivable was
provided based on the simplified approach of
the expected credit loss model prescribed under
HKFRS 9.

JE M AR SR B B 1B s D AR IR B B B TS R o L RIS 05%
RENEREEFRREAN B I KGR -

Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses. Accounts receivable relating
to customers which are affiliated companies of listed
entities with satisfactory credit history are assessed
individually for provision for impairment allowance.
Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on their
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due, and collectively assessed for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account the nature of the
customer and its aging category, and applying
expected credit loss rates to the respective gross
carrying amounts of the receivables.
EREENGEEREEBBRETENE - ARITE
Btk FMERNBE D FE P 88 REWERR
TEBNE AT RREREE BRHREEBEITEE
IR £ RS B R R 8 S 8 B K B B AR R W AR K
EITHE  WEBFMMKL YL - RFERSE
FEOME RERKRAR  THZEFREERS BN
HRERAEREEBETETMEET -

Our key procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the expected credit loss allowance
for accounts receivable included:

B EREETHERERRNTBREEE RGN
HITHRFELE

o Understood management’s internal controls
and assessment processes of estimating
expected credit loss allowance for accounts
receivable;
BEREBEAERKEINEHEEERES
B A BR #2 ol R R AR AR

o Evaluated and tested the relevant controls
over the estimation of such loss allowance;

AT KR B AT A BB IR B A ) AR B B A

° Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors involved in the loss
allowance estimation such as subjectivity;

A EARERRANANERRE  ERERGE
WA REREREBEEEGHER L ROEMA
R EZAKFE - flanE&E M

o Assessed the methodology of management’s
expected credit loss assessment, such as
evaluating the appropriateness of customer
grouping and judgement involved in
determining macroeconomic factors in deriving
forward-looking adjustment;
HEEREETRAGEEBRTHNTGE - B
WM EEFHENEEYR  WREBFTANFL
ATIE ML B RE LB R EPS &) H
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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FEREEITEIE (&)

Key Audit Matter
BEENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNENNEEERENSE

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses experienced
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.
EHREEERENRBRTRENEEEBEEMET
WHETHBARMEFLATEEER - fINZER
PHREBVERERENNEZELCERZE -

We focused on the expected credit loss allowance
for accounts receivable due to the magnitude of
gross accounts receivable balance at the year end
date and the estimation of relevant expected credit
loss involves significant judgement and subjective
assumptions.
B IRNEUEERNTEREEBEERE THRE
WER RN E E’Jf\iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ A K 48 A 1) 78 HA
EEBRENGEE S REXRAG R EHRE -

o For expected credit losses of accounts
receivable assessed individually, with the
assistance of our in-house valuation expert,
performed market research of the default rate
of the debtors and rate of recoveries, factored
in forward-looking adjustment and compared
the outcome with the expected credit loss
rates applied by management;
MEBIHOEBRXNEREEEEMS -

KABEEERGE T - 5 E 6 AR R
B R (T 9B B - R A IR
GEEEREEERAOEDESBERET

tt?

o For expected credit losses of accounts
receivable assessed collectively, evaluated
the appropriateness of the management’s
grouping, then, with the assistance of
our in-house valuation expert, tested the
mathematical accuracy of the approach
adopted and evaluated the appropriateness of
forward-looking adjustment;
HEBTEONRUERNFEREEEEMS
FIAEREBHETOENEEN  EERAE
BEEXGB T A FTEKA G AR E M £
M W EATE AR EE M

o Tested, on a sample basis, the accounts
receivable aging profiles adopted in the
collective assessment by checking to
supporting documents such as invoices; and
BBRE IR (PIMEE) - HiE RS e
AT R A Y R W BR SRV BRSO ¢ K%

o Tested, on a sample basis, settlements
of accounts receivable during the year by
checking to supporting documents such as
bank receipts to evaluate the reasonableness
of prior year’s expected credit loss allowance.
HMEOHARFERVEERNERFRL  ERE
B E AR (PN ERITUIR) - AT = —
FENRREEBERENSIEN -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
management’s judgements and estimates applied
on the expected credit loss allowance for accounts
receivable were supported by available evidence.

BREMETOREF  RARSEEBEHEUKETRD
HRBEEERRERER E’J#'Jﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ/_ B

B
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report (but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, which is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to Audit Committee and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° |ldentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors'
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms. Chung Kit Vi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains, net
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Impairment losses on financial assets

Finance costs, net
Share of losses of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Loss for the year from discontinued
operation

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) attributable to the
equity holders of the Company
arisen from:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

L&

& B A

EH

HA WA Rz - F 5
HERDHAX
1T X
EMEEZRERRE

MBER - F8
EHBERRZER

B FT 15 Bt A1 8 7
CIEEEAEE3

FREEEK 2
5 g A

ERIEEEERR
BERIERERBZ
FAREE

F AR

LN &R BEAS
B (BR)
ARAREDFTAA
R s

AATEBEZEA
FEARSHEF (FE)
E4EB:

BRI EER

Notes
k3

(@]

[©)

11

27

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
2,693,865 3,114,221
(2,374,220) (2,780,880)
319,645 333,341
94,044 101,647
(59,611) (46,791)
(184,140) (169,759)
(20,046) (3,283)
(9,806) (17,742)
(31) (955)
140,055 196,458
(35,914) (22,821)
104,141 173,637
(702) (8,272)
103,439 165,365
103,626 170,049
(187) (4,684)
103,439 165,365
104,328 175,343
(702) (5,294)
103,626 170,049
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Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

arisen from continuing operations:

Items that may be reclassified to
the income statement:
Exchange translation reserve on
translation of foreign operations

Release of exchange transaction

reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries

Other comprehensive income/(loss) not
to be reclassified to the income
statement in subsequent periods:
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of

land and buildings
Deferred tax (debited)/credited to
asset revaluation reserve

Other comprehensive loss arisen
from discontinued operation:
Item that may be reclassified to the

income statement:
Exchange translation reserve on
translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year
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REEEMLRFR
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REBKRIEREXRK
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DHBINEBEE L
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FREM2EmERE
(B1]R) - HIRH A

FAZEKREARE

Notes

g

30

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZT-THF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
103,439 165,365
129,925 (88,942)

340 -

________ eftecay . (88,942
52,776 (4,864)
(10,519) 3,576

42,257 (1,288)
_____________ o) ' BeCe
172,462 (90,492)
275,901 74,873




Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year attributable to equity

holders of the Company arisen from:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Earnings/(losses) per share
attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Basic

Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Total — included discontinued operation

Diluted
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Total — included discontinued operation

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive
income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

Notes

K1

UTEEBEEFRZE
Wi (B51E) 88 :
RRAREZFAE A
FEIR AR AR 2

EABREEFEA
BhEFR2ENRE
(BR)BEELR
ERIERERR

AARESEHFEA
PE4E B IR
&R/ (B8)
ENR
ER LGSR

BT - BEEBERIE
1R HETE 13

B8
ERLEREXR

e - BEBERIE
1 ZETE 13

Lt

4
1 B 3

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZT-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
275,866 79,462

35 (4,589)

275,901 74,873
276,628 84,923

(762) (5,461)

275,866 79,462
HK23.77 cents Bl HK39.95 cents &1l
HK(0.16) cents &1l  HK(1.21) cents /&l

HK23.61 cents &l

HK38.74 cents 71l

HK23.77 cents &l
HK(0.16) cents &1l

HK39.95 cents 7Ll
HK(1.21) cents 71l

HK23.61 cents &l

HK38.74 cents 7l
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ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Right-of-use assets
Properties under development
Intangible assets
Investment in an associate
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Prepayments and deposits
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Properties under development

Completed properties held for sale

Inventories

Accounts and bills receivable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Pledged deposits

Time deposits

Restricted bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BE

FRBEE

WE - B MR
BEWE

EREEE
BRPWE

BRWEE
R—HEBERRZKRE
BBBSEAFEIEKLZ
TREE
BNRARES
BT IAE E

FRBEERE

REBEE
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mEE
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Notes

K1t

15
16
17
19
18
21

25
24
30

19
20
22
23

24
25
26
26

26
26

27

31
33

2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETT FET
1,070,374 989,154
66,028 57,975
26,334 26,243
41,043 42,534
7,873 7,873

- 4,854

12,283 12,336
104,494 163,964
8,202 20,886
1,336,631 1,325,819
316,787 269,847
143,905 154,464
361,901 298,580
368,089 221,017
245,568 190,221
11,715 &,/568
4,099 2,480
17,975 -
13,607 14,641
538 11,925
390,018 244,681
1,874,202 1,416,389
- 192,153
1,874,202 1,548,542
3,210,833 2,874,361
43,896 43,896
1,455,600 1,182,024
1,499,496 1,225,920
- 162
1,499,496 1,226,082




LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income and other payable
Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts and bills payable,
other payables and provisions

Contract liabilities

Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The above consolidated statement

&8E

FRBAE

SRR A e E A & A SRR
RITIEE

HERE
EETARIE

FRB B ERE

REBAE

PR BR AR MR E

H A 8 5 3RIA K B A
BHEaE

RITIEE

HERR

e B IR

BOBRFKIELHEERE
EERMERZARE
iEIR=NERE
meE

HERREE

of financial position

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.

These consolidated financial statements on pages 93
to 247 have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29 June 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

Cheng Chor Kit
BRI
Director

EF

2021 2020

—E-_—F —E-FF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K1t FAETT FET
28 24,158 83,371
29 191,874 263,566
17 1,892 2,150
30 37,097 33,718
255,021 382,805

28 779,319 624,131
5(d) 123,093 68,092
29 467,672 413,243
17 1,880 1,850
84,352 62,562

1,456,316 1,169,878

27 = 95,596
1,456,316 1,265,474

1,711,337 1,648,279

3,210,833 2,874,361

ARG B RS AR R 2R R B R B B BT R —
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Liu Tat Luen
BEg
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

e /_\ *—ll— N/ 2“:5%‘ Eb
MrEEmMmE ?:E
For the year ended 31 March 2021
ab

BE_T_—F=-"HA=+—HBILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANRREREARE
Reserves
%
Share-
Share based Asset Exchange  Capital Non-
Share  premium  payment revaluation translation redemption Contributed Other  Retained Total controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  surplus  reserve profits  reserves  interests equity
Wikt &
EBN  EEER E4EE
kx ROEEE AREE fE ENRE RE BABR HUBE REEN RELE FERER RREE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
fér  FEr  FEr  TAr  TEr TR TEr TEr FEr FEr FEr FEn
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZERA-A 4389 156,015 1,768 135,507 (109,993 14 6,150 (8,940) 1,001,413 1,182,024 162 1,226,082
Revaluation surplus (Nots 15) E R - = - BT - - - - - BT - BTG
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation resere.  WARE B TR 2
ERERE = S - [10519) 5 = . 5 - (0519 - 10519
Exchange ranslation on translation of foreign BN EH 2 EREE
operations - - - - 129,643 - - - - 129683 202 129,865
Release of exchange franglation resenve upon —— HENBLAABERES BB
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - 340 - - - - 340 - 340
Proft for the year EREH = = = - - - - - 103626 103,626 (187) 103,439
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 42,251 129,983 - - - 103626 275,866 3% 275901
Lapse of share aption (Note 32) - - (1,098) - - - - - 1,098 - - -
Transactions with non-controling interests - - - - - - - (2,290) - 2200 (1,049 (3,3%9)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - - - - - - - - 852 852
At 31 March 2021 RZE--§=f=1-A 4389 156,015 6710 177,854 19,990 14 6,150  (11,20) 1,106,137 1,455,600 - 1,499,496
At 31 March 2019 R=F-7%=fA=1-A 4389% 156,015 3921 218,369 (20,694) 14 6,150 (8940) 806,775 1,161,616 4414 1,209,926
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 RAERE R
Z16% /P8 2 = - (1 = = = = 1509 (59,054) - (69,054
At 1 April 2019 R=2-NEMA-R 4389 156,015 3921 144220 (20,694) 14 6,150 (89400 821870 1,102,562 4414 1,150,872
Revaluation efct, net (Nots 15) BREEN REH15) > = S - - - - - 488y - 8
Deferred tax credted to asset revaluation resenve St ABE B (5B ZELHE = = = 704 = = = = = 104 = 704
Exchange translation on translation of foreign ~~ BEENEREHZE
operations - - - - (89299 - - - - (89299 9% (89,204
Deferred tax credited to asset revaluation resene  £ENE - BERRES
upon disposal of property, plant and equipment it AAE B R B2 EXHA - - - 2,263 - - - - - 2,063 - 2,263
Deferred tax credited to asset revaluation reserve  HE—BHBAAB A
upon disposal of a subsialary BEE[HEETRA - - - 609 - - - - - 609 - 609
Profit for the year Ematl = = - = = = - - 170049 170,040 (4684 165,365
Total comprehensive income/{oss) for the year /2 Bk / (F18) 48 - - - (1289 (89299) - - - 170040 79462 (4589 48T
Capital injection by non-controling interestto ~ FEEERR-HHBL A
a subsidlary g - - - - - - - - - - 349 349
Release of asse revaluation surplus upon HENE  BRRAEERR
disposal of property, plant and equipment BEE[RY = 5 - (48 - - - -4 - - -
Release of asset revaluation surplus upon HE-RHBARRRR
disposal of a subsidiary EEE[RRY - - - (2.644) - - - - 2,644 - - -
Lapse of share option (Note 32) BRESRHHY) - - (2,159) - - - - - 2,159 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries LEHEAR - - = = = = = = = = (12 (12)
At 31 March 2020 R-2-2£=f=1-A 4389 156,015 1768 135,597 (109,993) 14 6,150 (8940 1,001,413 1,182,024 162 1,226,082

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Interest expenses

Bank interest income

Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss, net

Fair value (gain)/loss on investment
properties

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, net

Provision for impairment of financial assets

Provision/(write-back) for impairment of
inventories, net

Gain on disposal of an associate

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of a property

Gain on termination of leases

Share of losses of investment in an associate

Deferred government subsidies income

Impairment of properties under development
Impairment of completed properties held for

sale

Write-off of property, plant and equipment

Decrease in completed properties held for sale

Increase in properties under development
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in accounts and
bills receivable
Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and

bills payable, other payables and provisions

Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities
Increase in deferred income

Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank deposits 3

Decrease in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash generated from continuing operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Overseas income taxes paid

Net cash used in operating activities from
discontinued operation

Net cash inflow from operating activities

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE &

GEHETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—_ZT-_—F=A=+—HLFE
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2021 2020
—E--F —Z-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE FET
140,055 196,458
10,624 18,945
(818) (1,203)
(3,322) 4,956
(3,462) 229
119,635 114,167
2,445 3,771
1,195 622
20,046 3,283
5,086 (12,725)
(729) (1,013)
(1,621) (31,416)
= (16,842)
(142) =

31 955
(36,965) (16,021)
4,456 =
15,944 -
- 5,624
272,458 269,790
5,204 69,832
(11,513) (65,670)
(50,082) 312,565
(149,242) 58,039
(47,095) (1,007)
143,952 (298,778)
49,744 (99,343)
9,223 =
11,845 (6,730)
- 3,936
234,494 242,634
818 1,203
(16,847) (27,793)
(8,922) (11,251)
(5,050) (7,787)
(750) (2,826)
203,743 194,180

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&SBEBR AT
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Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank

deposits

Investment in financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Proceeds from disposal of a property
Net cash inflow as a result of disposal of

a subsidiary

Proceeds from disposal of investment property
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
activities from discontinued operation

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing

activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from bank borrowings
Proceeds from other financing
Repayment of other financing
Repayment of lease liabilities
Repayment of bank borrowings
Increase in pledged deposits

Capital injection to discontinued operation
Net cash generated from financing activities

from discontinued operation

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

year

Effect of exchange rate changes on

cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Analysis of balances of cash and cash

equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in assets

classified as held for sale

RETHzHERE
BENE BELEH
RESTEIRD /(B m)

&
tﬂ%%% B RBREHMETE

HEREYEAERE
DEILBERE L BE 5D
BE/(FA) 2 R4 58

RETZHZBEERN/ (Rd)
FE

Fﬂmﬁ%@ziﬁ.ﬁuws
ﬁﬁEEF$ZWHmE

HE”JH“M%%&Q
ERLIEZEBCRE
RPELCRTFR

BEERHzRERLFE

RERRESRNZEMFR
FNzReRREERAY
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ERZBEERALERY

RERRESENEHRIN
RERALERD

SERARAREHEAE RS
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T“@Jﬁiﬁé&ﬁéﬁm@z

Notes
03

35(a)

16
27

27

26
27

2021 2020
—E--F —Z-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(28,105) (115,663)
1,561 (868)

- (15,621)

2,802 3,154

= 17,290

37,336 39,448
= 3,609

556 (1,952)
14,150 (70,608)
287,438 488,582
= 34,267
(34,042) (571)
(1,752) (3,268)
(314,551) (616,495)
(17,309) -
- (5,324)

- 5,324
(80,216) (97,485)
137,677 26,092
245,276 222,153
7,065 (2,969)
390,018 245,276
390,018 244,681
- 595
390,018 245,276
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kin Yat Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the design, manufacture and sale
of electrical and electronic products, motors,
glass technology and application and real estate
development.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is 7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-
27 Luk Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The Company is a subsidiary of Resplendent Global
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The directors of the Company consider
Padora Global Inc., a company also incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, to be the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”), unless otherwise stated.
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XA B BResplendent Global Limited 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for certain financial assets,
certain classes of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties,
which are measured at fair value.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

FTEETHEREE

AU FERHERERZ TR M B RRE
RANEIBZRABRBE -BREHA
S REBRIRAEERFEER K
R - UBBEB/ARE (BARTR
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21 REEEE
(a) BETEBMEREEINRSE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[E &

Amended standards and revised
conceptual framework adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following
amendments to standards and revised
conceptual framework for the first time or
their annual reporting period commencing
1 April 2020:

HKFRS 3 Definition of
(Amendments) business
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Amendments to
(Amendments) definition of
material

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

Hedge accounting

Conceptual Framework Revised conceptual
for Financial Reporting framework for
2018 financial reporting

The amendments and revised conceptual
framework listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in
prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future
periods.

2 FET

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

SRR E )

21 mEEXE(E)

(c)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED Ea&EABR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued) 21 B EZE(
(d) New standard and amendments to (d) H*%%Z%ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂ&%ﬂﬂ
standards not yet adopted 13T 2

A new accounting standard and certain
amendments to standards have been
published that are not mandatory for 31
March 2021 reporting periods and have
not been early adopted by the Group. HE

Amendments to HKFRS 16
R BREERE165 (BFTK)
Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16
BB G EH|B0% - BARBRE
AR 2eupdL g
FT9  AEMBREE S5 Kk
BEMBEREEUE165 (BIIA)
Amendments to Hong Kong
Accountmg Standards (“HKAS”) &
BResr R ([FHesER])
ERACHES)
Amendments to HKAS 16
BEGTEAE165% (BFIR)
Amendments to HKAS 37
B G EREITH (BT A)

Annual Improvements Project
(Amendments)

FRIERR (BFIAX)

Amenqunts tg HKAS 1
BB S EREIS (BFTX)

HKFRS 17
BRARBREERETH

HK Intergretanon 5 (2020)
BBREE5% (2020F)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

ERBBHSEBI0RE
B ERI B85 (BFTA)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

2 FEESTHHEIEHME®)

I

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after
RUNEERS 2%
HRzatHEEN

R—E-——F=ZA=+—H
REHEEBEMERMEH E
BEAREBTEREFERZ
R SR ER R E T RS

COVID-19-related rent concessions

019 A BRAERIERELES

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

MEEERE - F R

Update reference to the
conceptual framework

BHHHSERZRL

Proceeds before intended use
BERZRZMBIE
Onerous contracts — costs of
fuffiling a contract :
BREAN-BIEHZKA
Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
ERUBREEN-_FT-—NEE
CE-SE ERKE
Classification of liabilities as
current or non-current
HRESERRBAIERD
Insurance Contracts and the related
amendments
RBEORIEHER
Hong Kong Interpretahon 5 (2020) Presentation
of Financial Statements - Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
(HK Inté (2020))
ERRBELR (2020F) KR BEMNE =5~ 8
mAﬁﬁﬁ&%I%LMK%&%Er\ﬁ
18 (AR EZ5% (2020F))
Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or Jomt venture

&é%ﬁé%kﬂ BELEXZRMNEED

52

1 June 2020
—E-TFXA-H
1 April 2021
—E--FQMA—-
1 April 2022
“E-_FMA—H
1 April 2022
“E--"F#QMA—H
1 April 2022
—E--FNA—H
1 April 2022
“E--"FQMA—H
1 April 2023
1 April 2023
“E-=FWA—H
1 April 2023
—T-=FWA—H

To be determined
FE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting

(d) New standard and amendments to
standards not yet adopted (continued)
The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the adoption of the
above new standard and amendments
to existing standards would not have
a material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions. The
Group intends to adopt the above new
standard and amendments to existing
standards when they become effective.

(e) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group. The excess
of the consideration transferred and
amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired is

recorded as goodwill.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial

position respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in “Other reserves” within
equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate
an investment because of a loss of
control, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the
change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified or
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(9)

(h)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
(see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in
an equity-accounted investment equals
or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

2 FEESTHHEIEHME®)

22 GERARESETEE(F)

accounting (continued)

(h) Equity accounting (continued)
Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 2.10.

2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker
(“*CODM”), comprising the Board of Directors of
the Company.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HKD,
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains or losses that
related to borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
All other foreign exchange gains or losses
are presented in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of
foreign operations (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

2 FEESTHHEIEHME®)

25 HEBE(E)

(b)

(c)

ReREHR(E)

BT EFEXAINEFHE
ZHFEBRBEREERT
BEERAZERBE - BAF
BIRZEERABNER
EWMER/ANFEBEZ —
Mool FEBEER
BEWMAFAERER
BAFESR 2 BRE) ZE
REBRRNEBRTRIS/SRF
BRmHERZ 817 -

EEHETAF

N EBEHEREETR 2
BINER (B3R R BRI
B2 E®) 2 XERIBK
REBEATHABRERERE
W

s REERERMZEIZ
BENBBEREZAHEA
ZWTHEXRBE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE k&



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies (continued)

o income and expenses for each
income statement and statement
of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions);
and

° all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any
net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that
does not result in the Group losing
control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates
that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

2 FESTHBERBER

26 ME- -BERRKRE
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Freehold land and buildings are recognised
at fair value based on annual valuations by
external independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation for buildings. A revaluation deficit/
surplus is debited/credited to asset revaluation
reserves in shareholders’ equity.

All other property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of buildings are recognised, net
of tax, in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in shareholders’
equity. To the extent that the increase reverses
a decrease previously recognised in profit or
loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or
loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases
of the same asset are first recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the
remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all
other decreases are charged to profit or loss.
Each year, the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the
asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax,
is reclassified from the property, plant and
equipment revaluation surplus to retained
earnings.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated
Buildings in Over the shorter of
Hong Kong lease terms and 4%
Buildings outside Over the shorter of
Hong Kong lease term and 3.3%
Moulds, tools, 10% - 20%
and plant and
machinery

Furniture, equipment  10% - 25%
and motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, it is the Group’s
policy to transfer any amounts included in other
reserves in respect of those assets to retained
earnings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. No provision
for depreciation is made on assets under
construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available
for their intended use. On completion, the
relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at fair value or cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties. Investment property
is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair values.
Changes in fair values are presented in profit or
loss as part of other gains.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2= B AE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2 FEETBERBE®R

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Properties under development and

completed properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and anticipated cost
to completion, or by management estimates
based on prevailing market conditions.

Development cost of property comprises mainly
construction costs, cost of land use rights,
borrowing costs, and professional fees incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are classified as current
assets unless those will not be realised in one
normal operating cycle.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

Intangible assets

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGU”) for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those CGU
or groups of CGU that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments (Note
5).

Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 FEESTHHEIEHME®)

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups)

held for sale and discontinued operation
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell, except for assets such as deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property
that are carried at fair value and contractual
rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any
initial or subsequent write-down of the asset
(or disposal group) to fair value less costs to
sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an
asset (or disposal group), but not in excess
of any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-
current asset (or disposal group) is recognised
at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are
part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or
amortised while they are classified as held for
sale. Interest and other expenses attributable
to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale continue to be recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHTHEBE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups)

211 FEHEZFRBEE (RHER

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[E &

held for sale and discontinued operation
(continued)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale
and the assets of a disposal group classified
as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The liabilities of
a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the
entity that has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area
of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated
plan to dispose of such a line of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale. The results
of discontinued operation are presented
separately in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income.

2.12 Investment and other financial assets

(@) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in
the follow measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”); and

o those to be measured at amortised
cost.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will be recorded in
profit or loss. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets, including accounts
receivable factored without resources, are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. The Group classifies its debt
instruments as:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in “other
gains/(losses), net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.

2 FET

Br 5 R M EE

ATBRBE #)

212 RERHEMEMEE (&)

(c)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED Ea&EABR AR

B

rEEZeEMEENRTE
B LR - WELIEEB
BREAFEIRZEME
E-AMERBEAZEHME
ENEERBELENRIHK
Ko FBBmR N FEIK
ZEBMEENRXZHRANE

BETRenERGARR
XN ARE RABE - B
BRARTETENSREE
ETEEZRE -

BT A

B TENRESEIORRN
AEBEERBEEMEBRA
REERSRENTH - K
SEBBEBIANER:

o BSHAK : BLEFEUER
BHREREMNEE
mE - WEXFRER
BERARINAE R
FE - ISR B SE R AT
B RARFTEREE
A S A BB A
KRG ABEBE WA » B
JH R SR BT EE A VAR AT I
S B RERNEER
2[R 5 Y e I B 1R E
[Efblas,/ (1) -
FEIZD - RERER
KRB WRERAERE
BEEZS -

121



122

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investment and other financial assets

(continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at
FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which
it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[E &

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss
as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 FEESTHHEIEHME®)

2.12 Investment and other financial assets

(continued)

(d) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For accounts receivable, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 3.1 for further details.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on
future event and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the
basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
are determined using the weighted-average
cost method. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are amounts due
from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
Accounts receivable are generally due for
settlement within 60-90 days and therefore are
all classified as current.

Accounts receivable are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the accounts receivable with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note
3.1 for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note
31).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Accounts and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 60 days of recognition. Accounts
and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Borrowings 219 (B E&

2 FEESHHEIEHME®)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &

EEVFRAFENRAEER
GRABER - EEERREE
RAF & - FTE3RR IR 5K
) B M 2 B Z BN E T B
NEBRF R A EBm PR » R
ERRMEXNHNER  RAkRE
METHMARERERSER
MR HRA - RUBERT - ZEBR
SREERMBERLL - HELE
ERBR AR IREE T A R
B AZERERRER  JIER
BESRBOFANKIE - LRER
BB -

ERHTRENE LR - BURL
EimE EEREERBRT I
Bk - EHRRKERET R — TSR
BEMNEEEEENRE (2D
BENFRASEEIMAENER
B)ZHNER  HEGSTERR
HMW AL EER -

EERBARDAE  HEAKEE
BEGHEMNBEERAGEN B Y
EREEREMERERD12EAE
HIERSN o

iEEERAR]

127



128

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

I

2 FEESTHHEIEHME®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Borrowing costs

2.21

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

Pension obligations

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong
are required to participate in a defined
contribution scheme as defined in
mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”). The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group under independently
administered funds. Contributions to
the schemes by the employers and
employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the company
(the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and
thereafter contributions are voluntary.
The Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (continued)

Employees of the Group in the PRC
are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes
administered and operated by municipal
governments. The Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC contribute funds to the
retirement scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are
calculated on certain percentage of the
average employee salary as agreed by the
municipal government. Such retirement
schemes are responsible for the entire
post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees. The
Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.

Employee leaves entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the date of statement of financial
position. Employee entitlements to sick
and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

Share-based compensation
Share-based compensation benefits are
provided to employees via the share
option scheme. Information relating to
these schemes is set out in Note 32.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under
the share option scheme is recognised
as an employee benefits expense with
a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

- including any market performance
conditions (eg the entity’s share
price);

= excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance
vesting conditions (eg profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

- including the impact of any
non-vesting conditions (eg the
requirement for employees to save
or holdings shares for a specific
period of time).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)

Share-based compensation (continued)
The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-
market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when the Group is
demonstrably committed to either: (a)
terminate the employment of an employee
or group of employees before the normal
retirement date; or (b) provide termination
benefits as a result of an offer made in
order to encourage voluntary redundancy.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Provisions 2.23 #1fE

2 FEESHHEIEHME®)
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Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
sold or services performed, stated net of
discounts, returns and value-added taxes. The
Group recognises revenue when the specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue is recognised when or as the
control of goods or services is transferred
to a customer. Depending on the terms of
the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the goods and services
may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. Control of the goods and services
is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

o does not creates an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods and services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods and
services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

2 FEESHHEIEHME®)

2.24 Wz HER (F)
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When determining the transaction price to
be allocated from different performance
obligations, the Group first determines the
service fees that the Group entitles in the
contract period and adjusts the transaction
price for variable considerations and significant
financing component, if any. The Group
includes in the transaction price some or all
of an amount of variable considerations only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the
statement of financial position as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the entity’s performance
and the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods and
services that the Group has transferred to
a customer. A receivable is recorded when
the Group has an unconditional right to a
consideration. A right to consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

If a customer pays consideration or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that
is unconditional, before the Group transfers a
good or service to the customer, the Group
presents the contract liability when the
payment is made or a receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is
the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The following is a description of the accounting
policy for the principal revenue streams of the
Group.

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the goods
are delivered to the customers, the customers
have full discretion over the goods and there
is no unfilled obligation that could affect
the customers’ acceptance of the goods.
Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to customers, and either customers have
accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment
is due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

2 FEESHHEIEHME®)

2.24 WHEER (&
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Sales of goods (continued) HEER (&)

Sales of goods are recognised when the EERNERBREODRERERF
risk and rewards of the goods have been (AP REBEREEERRMT
transferred to the customer, which is usually EFPZAH) BF Eh:x@uu 9
at the date when a group entity has delivered NERITERZERPEXEMIAR

products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligations that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate
and provide for sales return at the time of sale.

BITEER - BEREREE - R
BERAECRMGEHSERHMNIEE
BRERETRERE -

Sales of properties HEWE
For property sales contract for which the B 5 2 ¥ I RE R K E B R B e
control of the property is transferred at a point BZMEEEELME REFR

in time, revenue is recognised when the buyer
obtains the physical possession or the legal
title of the completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

If the services rendered or products delivered
by the Group exceed the payments made

BRIMEZEEGHEEIETE
SRR DA Ko K 5 [ 3R By B A W B
FRALAR AT BE UK B X (B A FERR U 25
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by the counter parties, a contract asset is RAEKWEE - WE KB i

recognised. If the payments exceed the BRI ER - AIERER
services rendered or products delivered, a BE-

contract liability is recognised.

In determining the transaction price, the Group REEXZEERE - MELEBMHE
adjusts the promised amount of consideration K REE IR IERNE 3010 7B
for the effect of a financing component if it is FRME o

significant.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value
of the fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (continued)

2 FEESHHEIEHME®)

2.26 #HE (&)
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The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group, where possible, uses recent third-
party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received, and makes
adjustments specific to the lease.

Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease

incentives received; and

° any initial direct cost.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26

2.27

Leases (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, right-of-
use assets are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. They are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.

Payments associated with short-term leases
of properties, equipment and vehicles and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair values when there is a reasonable
assurance that the grants will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised within “Other income
and gains, net” in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended
to compensate. Government grant related to
property, plant and equipment are recognised
as deferred income and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a systematic
basis over the expected useful lives the related
assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by the senior
management of the Company under policies
approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the
Hong Kong reporting entities is
HKD and the transactions are
mostly denominated in HKD and
United States dollar (“USD").
For transactions or balances
denominated in USD are reasonably
stable with the HKD under the
Linked Exchange Rate System, the
directors are of the opinion that the
Company does not have significant
foreign exchange risk, the exposure
to fluctuation in exchange rates will
only arise from the translation to the
presentation currency of the Group.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
performed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)
The functional currency of the
PRC reporting entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”) and the transactions are
mostly denominated in RMB and
HKD. The conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of the foreign
exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk primarily through
financing, capital expenditure and
expenses transactions that are
denominated in a currency other
than RMB, which is the functional
currency of the major subsidiaries
of the Group. The Group manages
its exposures to foreign currency
transactions by monitoring the
level of foreign currency receipts
and payments. The Group ensures
that the net exposure to foreign
exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.
The Group is presently not using
any forward exchange contract to
hedge against foreign exchange
risk as management considers its
exposure is not significant.

At 31 March 2021, if HKD had
strengthened/weakened by 5%
(2020: 5%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$20,083,000
(2020: HK$21,591,000) higher/
lower.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 /2

Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk
arises from long-term borrowings
with variable rates, which expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group’s borrowings and
receivables are carried at amortised
cost.

The Group monitors closely
its interest rate exposure by
maintaining an appropriate floating
rate borrowings and considers
hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
The position is regularly monitored
and evaluated by reference of
anticipated changes in market
interest rate.

At 31 March 2021, if interest rates
on bank and other borrowings
had been 50 basis points (2020:
50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$3,341,000 (2020:
HK$3,717,000) lower/higher mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to price
risk arises from investments held
by the Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial
position as fair value through profit
or loss (Note 25).

Profit for the period would increase/
decrease by approximately
HK$1,172,000 (2020: HK$853,000)
as a result of 10% change in price
on equity securities classified as at
fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Credit risk

(1)

Risk management

Credit risk arises if a customer or
other counterparty fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade and other receivables and
deposits with banks and financial
institutions.

The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any
financial institutions. Substantially
all the deposits in banks are held
in reputable financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and the PRC,
which management believes are of
high credit quality and management
does not expect any losses arising
from non-performance by these
counterparties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 /2

Risk management (continued)

The Group also has policies in place
to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Sales to
large or long-established customers
with good payment history comprise
a significant proportion of the
total sales. The Group’s historical
experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances.

The Group has concentration of credit
risk as the top five trade debtors
accounted for approximately 50%
of its total trade debts balance as at
31 March 2021 (2020: 34%). In view
of this, management of the Group
regularly assesses by monitoring the
individual profile of these accounts
receivable. The Group also uses
non-recourse accounts receivable
factoring arrangement with bank
to cover the credit risk. As at 31
March 2021, accounts receivable
of approximately HK$154,086,000
(2020: HK$55,898,000) was
subject to non-recourse factoring
arrangements and therefore
derecognised. No accounts
receivable was subject to
recourse factoring arrangement
in 2021 (2020: Nil). In this regard,
management of the Group considers
that the credit concentration risk
has been significantly mitigated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of accounts receivable
The accounts receivable of the
Group are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all
accounts receivable.

To measure expected credit losses,
the Group categorises its accounts
receivable based on the customer
profiles and shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past
due.

The expected loss rates are based
on the payment profiles of sales
over a period of 12 months before
31 March 2021 or 31 March 2020
respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors, after
considering the expected market
conditions and economic impact
of the unprecedented COVID-19
on the countries in which major
customers operate, affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

The Group has identified the Gross
Domestic Product index of the
countries where customers mainly
operate to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjust
the historical loss rate based on
expected changes in these factors.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

Impairment of accounts receivable
(continued)

Impairment losses on accounts
receivable are presented as net
impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

The Group identifies two categories
of its accounts receivable which
reflect their credit risk as follows:

Measurement of expected credit
loss on individual basis

For accounts receivable relating
to customers which are affiliated
companies of listed entities with
satisfactory credit and settlement
history, are assessed individually
for impairment allowance. As at 31
March 2021, the balances of such
individually assessed accounts
receivable and the corresponding
loss allowance are HK$108,445,000
and HK$21,000, respectively.

Measurement of expected credit
loss on collective basis

Other than accounts receivable
which were assessed by individual
basis, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared similar
credit risk characteristics and the
days past due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HHERKRER®)
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B¥ERMEZEZ)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERAR (&)
(i) Impairment of accounts receivable (i) JEYERFEE (&)
(continued)
Measurement of expected credit EpEst B R A s BE S
loss on collective basis (continued) (&
The loss allowance as at 31 March R—_ZETEZ—F=AH
2021 was determined as follows for =t —BZERIBIERE
accounts receivable after factoring: IR R HETE N
-

1-30 31-60 61-90  Over 90
days days days days
Current past due pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
BM1ZE AHNE AH61E  BH90R
B 30H 60H 90H Nk @t
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
fE#x FEx THELT TET  TET  FEx

At 31 March 2021 R-B=-%

=B=t-AH
Assets 8E
Gross carrying amount BEAE 123,205 62,588 48,103 18,420 4,045 256,451
Loss allowance EEAE (1,475)  (2,524)  (3,107)  (5,892)  (1,763)  (14,761)

121,820 60,064 44,996 12,528 2,282 241,690

Expected loss rate EHERR 1.2% 4.0% 6.5%  320%  43.6% 5.8%
For 2020, the expected loss rate NR_ZTE_ZFTF - &
was 3.2% and provision amounted HEE X A3.2% -
to HK$7,409,000 was provided for ERERERERE
the gross accounts receivable of 228,426,000/ 7T 71 12
HK$228,426,000. 7,409,000/ JT #E# ©

150 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE k&



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br 5 R M EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HHERKRER®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEREBREZEZ)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) FEERR (&)
(i) Other financial assets at amortised (i) FEEEEE ARG E o B
cost fﬁ?ﬂﬁ/ﬁ%

Other financial assets at amortised
cost include deposits and other
receivables. Management considers
that the credit risk for certain
balances has increased since
initial recognition with reference
to the counterparty historical
default rate and current financial
position. The Group applies the
HKFRS 9 general approach to
measure either 12-month or lifetime
expected credit losses for these
other financial assets based on the
historical settlement pattern and
financial position of these other
financial assets and the forward-
looking recoverability analysis
of the counterparties. As at 31
March 2021, the corresponding
loss allowance is approximately
HK$13,152,000 (2020: Nil).

While cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits, restricted bank
deposits and pledged deposits
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

(c) Liquidity risk (c)

Prudent liquidity risk management,
after considering the expected market
conditions and the outbreak of COVID-19,
implies maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of banking facilities.
The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping credit lines available
at all time.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity reserve on the basis
of expected cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 requires a
term loan that contains a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right to
call the loan at any time shall be classified
in total by the borrower as current in
the statement of financial position.
This is irrespective of whether a default
event has occurred and notwithstanding
any other terms and maturity stated in
the loan agreement. As at 31 March
2021, borrowings of approximately
HK$37,500,000 (2020: HK$65,000,000)
was classified as current liabilities due to
this requirement.

At the reporting date, the Group
held cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$390,018,000
(2020: HK$244,681,000) (Note 26)
and accounts and bills receivable of
approximately HK$368,089,000 (2020:
HK$221,017,000) (Note 23) that are
expected to generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk. In addition, the
Group held financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately
HK$11,715,000 (2020: HK$8,533,000)
(Note 25), which could be realised
to provide a further source of cash if
needed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

2021

Accounts and bills payable

Financial liabilities included
in other payables, accrued
liabilities

Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

2020

Accounts and bills payable

Financial liabilities included
in other payables, accrued
liabilities

Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

SIS =63
ERERRRE
AAEERTER
Eitaf
TRAR
RITRE

e e 32
ENEARER
SARMERFER
EirEEY
tRER
RITRE

HEARE

3

B BRI ()

3.1 MBEBREEGE)

(c) REBELEMR(Z)

TR AEEEHEER
BRWmEHRESHNEEA
Z AT HARRE B EAE R
oM TREBRZSHER

BRRFTRB SRS °

On demand or One to two Two to five

within one year years years Total
RERA-FR -FEME MEELF @i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET FET FET
562,903 - - 562,903
71,958 - - 71,958
479,469 201,554 - 681,023
1,987 1,933 - 3,920
1,116,317 203,487 - 1,319,804
360,027 - - 360,027
129,786 - - 129,786
428,186 190,480 95,253 713,919
1,988 1,194 1,061 4,243
919,987 191,674 96,314 1,207,975
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(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table summarises the
maturity analysis of bank borrowings
subject to repayment on demand or
defaulted based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan
agreements. The amount includes
interest payments computed using
contractual rates. Taking into account
the Group’s net assets, the directors
do not consider that it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to
immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

(c)

RBESRRE (&)
TERBMBRERKEERD
BENZRITEENIHS
7 DIRBERBHEAER 2
HBEERMRE - ZEBE
BB QM ERFE 2 F B
R RERBINASENEE
FE EERARITITEH
BiERERIANERNEE
TR-BEHE %ZEEE
75 4k BR B 3R 15 2 P R B TR E
EREHERE -

Maturity Analysis - bank borrowings subject to repayment
on demand clause based on their original scheduled repayments

RN -WEERRRERICBAHEE RERCERAAR

Within One to Two to Carrying

one year two years five years Total amount

—£R -FEWF MEERF ) REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET TET

2021 ZE--F 28,078 28,656 10,635 67,369 65,000
2020 “Z-FF 28,643 29,786 42,180 100,609 92,500




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMEBERBRERE®
(continued)

3.2 Capital management 32 EXRER

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic condition. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, obtain bank borrowings, or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
bank borrowings divided by total equity.

AEBZEAERBREERE
AEBZFHERQEREN BRI
HEOE - AREFHENENER
PURAE B AR -

AEEERENGER  URELH
RN EEEHL AR - RER N
BREXGE AKEReABCH
BRZBE 25 - BEURTTRERK
BITH

AEBENMBERNABLXRERS
Ko L RARITREBBER AR
Bt -

2021 2020

—E-—fF —E_TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Total debt BEFRE 659,546 676,809
Total equity B 1,499,496 1,226,082
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 44% 55%

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED Ea&EABR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2= B AE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March
2021 and 2020 by level of inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

° quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1);

° inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2); and

° inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEKERKRER#)
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 QFEME(E)
The following table presents the Group’s TREWRZ-ZEZ_—FR-_ZTZ
financial assets that are at fair value at 31 EF=ZA=Z+—BAEAEEURF
March 2021 and 2020. B EZ&BEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E- 2 2= hy
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2021 R=B--£=A=1-AH
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value #EiBERHE A TEIER
through profit or loss JEREE 11,715 - 12,283 23,998
11,715 - 12,283 23,008
At 31 March 2020 RZZZZF=RA=+-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value EBE=EL T EIR
through profit or loss JEREE 8,533 - 12,336 20,869
8,533 - 12,336 20,869

There were no transfers between Level 1,
2 and 3 and no other changes in valuation
techniques during the year.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the statement of financial position
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for key management insurance.

The fair value of insurance policy investments
that is not traded in an active market is
determined based on the higher of cash
surrender value and fair value determined by
discounted cash flow model. The significant
unobservable inputs that determine the
fair value is cash surrender value, which is
contractually agreed upon entering into the
insurance contract.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEKERKRER#)
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DFEME(E)

Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
The following table presents the changes in
level 3 instruments for the years ended 31

March 2021 and 2020.

At 1 April

Additions

Fair value loss recognised to
profit or loss

At 31 March

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

E-EzEtWMIA(E)
TRENF=ZBIEARHEEZ_-F
T ERZEEF=-R=+—
AIEFEZEE -

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

RMWA—H 12,336 =
NE = 15,499
NF{EEE (53) (3,163)
R=A=+—8” 12,283 12,336

4 ERgEHEEERHE

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events

that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S [Z &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(a)

Fair value of freehold land and
buildings and investment properties
The Group carries its freehold land and
buildings, and investment properties
at fair value with changes in the fair
value recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
and consolidated income statement,
respectively. It obtains independent
valuations at least annually. At the end of
each reporting period, the management
updates their assessment of the fair value
of each property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations.
Refer to Note 15 and Note 16 for the
assumptions, valuation techniques and
fair value measurement.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

4 BAGH{EHRHE )

4.1

ERE AT RER

AL B AR BEEL B MR

RE/EHER  REDE

BERERGERAT - BHERRE
SIMEARTEMBREEHEER
BEMEEEFENABNMGE

(a)

SR AT AT e

Kot

KAEEITHREBEFURR
BYECATE

AEBORIRGEEE2EMES
KREEWBZRIZAFER
RBoKAERE L R F MU
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iR AFEFE  FEEM
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BAREHHFTRAER )
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and 41 ERETEFTREBHR(E)
assumptions (continued)
(b) Provision for inventories (b) FERE
The Group’s management reviews the AREBZEEEFHENT
inventory aging analysis periodically and EZHREBEDNT  WAERS
makes allowance for obsolete and slow- THEGIHE 2R RFH
moving inventory items identified that FEEBELEE RER
are no longer suitable for sales. The HHR AEEREEEM
Group carries out an inventory review ER TSR WiEAEE
on a product-by-product basis at the BEERBREERERRK
end of each reporting period and makes RSB R
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving HB 2R EBFEAE B
items through management’s estimation A ROFSHIE B EH B -

of the net realisable value for such
obsolete and slow-moving items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(c)

Provision for impairment of financial
assets

The impairment for financial assets is
based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The
Company uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period, including the
consideration of the global health issues.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs
used and the impact of changes to these
assumptions are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period, including the
consideration of the global health issues.
For details of the key assumptions used
and the impact of changes to these
assumptions see Note 3.3.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

4 EARGHEHRHUE 2

4.1

BAEHET RBR(H)

(c)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(d) Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
Assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations or fair value less costs
of disposal. These calculations require
the use of judgements and estimates.
Management judgement is required in
the area of asset impairment, including
the consideration of the expected market
conditions, in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and
(iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ & KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(e)

Provision for properties under
development and completed
properties held for sales

The Group assesses the carrying
amounts of properties under development
and completed properties held for
sale according to their net realisable
values based on the realisability of
these properties and consideration of
the potential impact on selling price
resulting from the COVID-19 outbreak.
Net realisable value for properties under
development is determined by reference
to management’s estimates of the
selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable
selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion. Net realisable
value for completed properties held
for sale is determined by reference
to management’s estimates of the
selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses. Based on management’s
best estimates, there were impairment
of HK$4,456,000 and HK$15,944,000
respectively for properties under
development and completed properties
held for sale for the year.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

4 BAGH{EHRHE )

4.1

AR RBR(E)

(e)

BRTPUERFFELEZR
THERE

REBERBERPYMERRE
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NEFTZEE  BEEBZ
A HE RS RTEHE TR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BAXEFTAFTRHE 2

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

ERE AT RER(E)

(f) Current and deferred income tax ) EHREZEREH
The Group is subject to taxes in Hong REBFEETELRFEHHY

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

Kong and the PRC. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision
for various kinds of taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the consolidated
income statement in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference
will impact the recognition of deferred tax
assets and income tax in the period in
which such estimates are changed.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) has been
identified as the Board of Directors of the Company
(the “Directors”). CODM reviews the Group’s internal
reports in order to assess performance, allocate
resources and determine the operating segments.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has four reportable operating segments
as follows:

(@) the electrical and electronic products segment
consists of the manufacture and sale of Al
robotics, loT and smart home products,
electronic entertainment products and other
related products;

(b)  the motors segment consists of the development,
design, manufacture and sale of electric motor
drives and related products and encoder film;

(c) the real estate development segment; and

(d) the glass technology and application segment
consists of the sale and downstream
processing of glass as well as the design,
manufacture and installation of curtain wall
systems.

The operation of glass technology and application
segment (“Disposal Group”) was discontinued
during year ended 31 March 2020 and its assets
and liabilities were classified as held for sale as at
31 March 2020. Information about the discontinued
operation is provided in Note 27.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The information about electrical and electronic
products segment, motor segment and the real
estate development segment (collectively the
“Remaining Group”) are presented as continuing
operations in the consolidated financial statements.

Management monitors the operating results of the
Group’s business units separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in
certain respects, as explained in the table below, is
measured differently from operating profit or loss in
the consolidated financial statements.

Group financing (including finance costs and finance
income) and income taxes are managed on a group
basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
the third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

(a)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEER«:
Operating segments (a) ¥¥o%E
The following tables present revenue, results TREVWAEBNHEEZE T ——
and certain asset, liability and expenditure FERZE_TEF=ZA=+—HIt
information for the Group’s operating segments FEEROEIWNES  EERE
for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020. TEE BEEKZHER -
31 March 2021 —E-—-f=ZA=t+—H
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
KREEEY BRLBEER
Electrical Glass
and technology
electronic Real estate and
products Motors development Others Eliminations Sub-total application Eliminations Consolidated
B8R RERH
B1ER L] EHERR it 3f ] gt RER b &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr 7z 71 7z 71 7z 7z 7 7z
Seqment revenue AR
Revenue fom extemal KBS REFH
customers Ui
Timing of revenue et
recognition
- At a paint of time ~HEfEEY 1,639,837 1,048,551 5417 - - 2,693,865 2,461 - 2,696,326
- Over time -ERE - - - - - - 3,050 - 3,050
1,639,837 1,048,551 5417 - - 2,693,865 5511 - 2,699,376
Infer-segment sales S BEMMEE 39,779 3,256 - - (43,035) - - - -
Total a3t 1,679,616 1,051,807 5417 - 43,035) 2,693,865 5511 - 2,699,376
Otherincome and gains, MM R -
net % 35,220 46,143 7,149 1,620 - 90,132 46 - 90,178
Segment results PELE 138,447 55,994 (24,989) (1,5M) - 161,875 (740) - 161,135
Unallocated gain, net A2 - B8 3912 39012
Unallocated expenses K ARREX (15,895) (15,895)
Finance costs, net HEER 58 (9,806) (9,806)
Share of losses from ~~ [EEI-FEAAR
nvestment n an K& EE
associate (31) (31)
Profit before income tax BT AR ETE R 140,055 139,315
Income tax (expense) R (B%) /
credit #% (35,914) 38 (35,876)
Proft for the year EFRA 104,141 103,439
KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED E#&EBAERA R ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & E k&



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 ﬁiﬁﬁﬂq
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) ¥BHE
31 March 2021 (continued) —E-—H=ZA=+—H(#&)
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
BESERE BALEEEE
Electrical Glass
and technology
electronic Real estate and
products Motors development Others Eliminations Sub-total application Eliminations Consolidated
B8R BB
E1ER H ] BRERR it 3f | gt RER BaE k&
HK$'000 HKS§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000
71 FET FEL FET FEL FE7 FEL 77 FEL
Segment assets AREE 1,785,507 1,185,504 689,103 43,296 (987,687) 2,715,723 2,715,723
Unallocated assets FOREE 495,110 495,110
Total assets #EE 3,210,833 3,210,833
Segment liabilties AEAR 394,041 465,468 756,415 283,084 (987,687) 911,321 911,321
Unallocated liablities K AREE 800,016 800,016
Total liablties E- 1,711,387 1,711,387
Other segment ApAREH:
information:
Captal expenditwe~~~ E& A 9,369 76,699 8 - - 86,076 - - 86,076

Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation 55,005 63,990 125 2,870 - 122,080 - - 122,080

Loss/(gain) on disposal ~ HEHNE - HER
of property, plantand 2 BiE/
gouipment, net (k) 38 (169) 1,364 - - - 1,195 - - 1145

Surplus on revaluation  ERRNERBRZ
oflndand buldings ~~ THEEFZ
recognised drectly i~ EfERE
equity (38,798) (8,940) - (5,038) - (52,776) - - (52,776)

Fairvalue gain on RENEATE

investment properties I - - (3,462) - - (3462) - - (3,462)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2= B AE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@) Operating segments (continued)

31 March 2020

Segmentrevenve 7 EkE

Revenug from extemal - KESMEFH
customers e

Tmingof evenve  BEAERR
recognition

-Mapointoftme - EZEEEY

- Over time -BEH

Inter-segment sales ~ HEEMAHE

Total &3

Other income/ A/ (BX)

(expenses) and R/ (B8)

gans/losses), net 58

Seqment results PEEE

Unallocated gain, net ~ kAEMNE - 58

Unallocated expenses  RAEER

Finance costs, net B ER B8

Share of losses fom (G REEAR
investment in REER
assoclates

Profit before income tax B Fr &5 #1347
Income tax (expense)/ % (B%)/
credit #4

Proft for the year £

ay b NN 2
5 ZEEHRC(
(@) H=BDE
—ZE-_ZEH=H=+—H
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
REREEH BRIHEERH

Electrical Class

and technology

electronic Real estate and
products Motors development Others Eliminations Sub-total application Eliminations Consolidated

EER BBEE
B1ER B BHEER if b3p s RER W &a
HK§000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
7T 71 FET 71 71 7z T FET 1
2,202,402 836,745 75,074 - - 3,114.221 44,033 - 3,158,254
- - - - - - 9,798 - 9,798
2,202,402 836,745 75,074 - - 3,114,221 53,831 - 3,168,052
31,283 4023 - - (35,306) - 1802 (1,802) -
2,233,685 840,768 75,074 - (35,308) 3,114.221 56,633 (1.802) 3,168,052
36,081 38,840 (42) 1,040 N 75919 1,000 - 77,009
162,172 45410 (1.674) (8022 - 202,986 (8,800) - 194,186
25,128 2,128
(13,559) (13,559)
(17,749) (17,742)
(955) (955)
196,458 187,658
(22.821) 528 (22,299
178,637 165,365

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 ﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ‘

(@) Operating segments (continued) (a) ¥%058

31 March 2020 (continued)

Segment assets AREE
Undlocated assets ~ AARAE

Total assets GER

Segment labiites ~ AE&fE
Unallocated iabiities ~ %3EEE

Total liablties L
Other segment AR EEH:
information:

Capital expenditre~~ BAZH

Depreciainand ~ FEREE
amortisation
Unallocated amounts &3 5B

Loss/(gain] on disposal  EH% - BER
of property, plant and 288/
equipment, net (&) 78

Gain on disposal of ~ HE-ENE L NE
a property

Wite-offtems o HihE HER
propery, plantand &R
equipment

Defict/(suplus)on~~ EERERETZ
revaluation of land and RS2
buldings recognised  Ef5EH/ (B5)
directly in equity

Unallocated amounts K& 58

Farvaelosson  KENEZATE
investment properties &

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

—E-EE=ZA=+-—-R(#&)

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
BREEER BRILEEZE

Electrical Class

and technology

electronic Real estate and
products Motors development Others Eliminations Sub-total application Eliminations Consolidated

&R FRRE
B1ER g EHERR ifp 3p s RER W &a
HK$ 000 HK§000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
7T 71 7T 71 7T 71 A1 FET AT
1,094,518 1,066,239 600,366 46,485 922,062) 2,375,541 132,183 - 2,507,694
366,667 366,667
2,742,008 2,874,361
313,635 416,848 679,142 264,869 (922,062) 752,432 95,59 - 848,028
800,251 800,251
1,662,683 1648279
33,758 17 12 - - 154,887 2,033 - 156,920
54,537 61,404 139 1429 - 117,609 5917 - 123426
429 429
117,938 123,855
652 30) - - - 622 (36) - 586
(16,842) - - - - (16,842) - - (16,842)
5,624 - - - - 5624 1,007 - 7,21
2,937 878 - (731) - 3,084 - - 3,084
1,780 1,780
4,864 4,864
- - 29 - - 29 - - 29

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&SBEBR AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 ﬁiﬁﬁ*# (&)
(b) Geographical information (b) IEER
United States of America Europe Asia Others Consolidated
G| Bl il it g4

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEC-F "F-%F CE--F "F-%F C§C-F “5-%F CEC-F C5-%F ZBC-FE CI0%F
HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000
Fér TR TET  TEr  TEr  FET  FET FEr TET TEI

Segment revenue: AENE:
Revenue from extemal customers ~ KESNREEHMA
- Continuing operations - BEOEEE 1,166,023 1602165 480,628 505274 1,038,219 1,005,390 - 1302 2,693,865 3114221
- Discontinued operation - BRLHIEEH - = - - 55 5383 = - 551 5383
The revenue information above is based on the Lt E R TIRIBEE P T i
locations of the customers. E
Hong Kong Mainland China Malaysia Consolidated
oy HER BRAS &a

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--§ -“Z°%F -B--F -Z-%F CBC-F “3°%F CZEC-F -FC°%F
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS$000  HK$000

7L FEr 7L &7 FEL AT 7T AT

Other segment information: ~ H#2EEH .

Non-current assets FRBAE

— Remaining Group - 4728 7884 8775 1212886 1250721 35316 3301 1316046 129257

- Disposal Group - HESE - - - 57199 - - - 51199
The non-current assets for the above segment i EERZIERHEEDE
information consist of property, plant and VI - BB NRE - REWE &
equipment, investment properties, right-of- AEEE  ERDYE  BREEE
use assets, properties under development, VAR FERFRIE ~ 28 2 H b U R
intangible assets and prepayments, deposits B BETEREELERBEEENRER
and other receivables, but exclude deferred tax BEEATEIEZEMEE -

assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

(c) Information about major customers (c) BRAFXEREFZEH
Revenue of HK$1,022,366,000 (2020: I 251,022,366,000/8 7T (=& =
HK$1,704,319,000) was derived from sales of T 4F 1 1,704,319,00087T) ThRE
electrical and electronic products to a major A—ZIEXERFHEETRNLNE T
customer, which accounted for 38% (2020: Em ZBPHAEBEWZFZARE
55%) of the Group’s total revenue. 38%(ZE_FF : 55%) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

(d)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

Assets and liabilities related to contract

with customers

The Group has recognised the following
assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers:

Continuing operations:

Contract liabilities related to
sales of goods (Note i)

Contract liabilities related to
sales of properties (Note ii)

Discontinued operation:
Contract liabilities related to
glass production and installation

Total contract liabilities

Discontinued operation:
Contract assets related to

glass production and installation
Loss allowance

Total contract assets

Notes:

Br 5 R M EE

iy

BRER @)
(d ABEFANZEEREM

AEBEERANTEREETEFAL
ZEENAE:

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
BEREETE .
EABEEERZ
BHIBEWiti) 23,592 33,652
ERHEEMEZ
EHBE K i) 99,501 34,440
123,093 68,092
CRIEEEEK .
EREBAEERTE
AHEaE = 924
AHBEREE = 69,016
CRIEEEEK
BT BEAERLE
BHNEE - 26,598
B R - (965)
EHEERE = 25,633

(i)

(i

These consist of advanced payments received
from customers for goods that have not yet
been transferred to the customers.

These consist of advanced payments received
from customers resulting from the properties
sales.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Wt -
() BEEREREBERP &S
CESSS -G PR TR

(i) WEEREBHEEWERFTFERK
pARE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 2¥EER®
(e) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (e) MENEBERIAZUWE

liabilities

The following table shows how much of the
revenue recognised for the year ended 31
March 2021 and 2020 relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities:

Contract liabilities related to sales of B ES R RME

goods and properties BHBE
- Continuing operations - BELEED
- Discontinued operation — BRIEEEER

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

TRBBRBE-_ES-_—ERK_-F
TEFEZA=+—HIFERE
BAMBERER 2 EERE

2021 2020
—B-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
33,652 158,374

= 1,267
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6

Fair value gain/(loss) on financia
assets at fair value through
profit or loss, net

Fair value gain/(loss) on investment
properties, net (Note 16)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net

Gain on disposal of a property

Gain on disposal of equity interest in
an associate (Note 21)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on termination of leases

Gross rental income

Sales of scrap materials

Subsidy income (Note)

Others

Note:

Various government subsidies have been received from the
local government authorities for subsidising the operating
activities, research and development activities, and
acquisition of fixed assets. During the year ended 31 March
2021, subsidies income amounting to HK$66,914,000
(2020: HK$47,268,000) are recognised in profit or loss,
including the recognition of deferred government subsidy

Hot g AR Wz o R
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F & T FET
FBBREBEAFENEZ
tRMEEZATE
Wz (B5E) - F88 3,322 (4,956)
REMEZ AFERE
(E18) - FE(Wat16) 3,462 (229)
LEWE BEEREZ
= (1,195) (622)
HE—mEYWE MR - 16,842
HE R E QR REZ
W= (Krat21) 729 1,013
HE—FHKBAR K 1,621 31,416
WIEHEE 2 W 142 =
He W A L% 512 928
& R 10,001 6,024
AL A (H3E) 66,914 47,268
HAty 8,536 3,963
94,044 101,647

Wiz

income of HK$36,965,000 (2020: HK$36,595,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &

iEEERAR]

RNRBEE B E Hb BT # R IS 8 BT
BB EEES) M EHRKEETE
E-REBE-_T-_—F=A=+—HL*F
£ B A A 66,914,000 T (ZZ =
T4 : 47,268,000 7T) E R B AR -
B T SR I XE AT 76 B U A 36,965,000/ 7T
(ZZ =4 : 36,595,000/ 7C) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

7 FINANCE COSTS, NET

Interest expense on bank loans
Interest expense on lease liabilities

(Note 17(b))
Bank interest income

(B 17m))
RITHF BULA

During the year ended 31 March 2021, interest
of HK$6,223,000 (2020: HK$10,003,000) was
capitalised under properties under development. The
capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of
borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the entity’s
borrowings during the year of 2.7% (2020: 3.6%).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

RITERZMERAX
MERBEZMERX

7 MBBER FHE

2021 2020
—B-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
10,468 18,585

156 360

(818) (1,203)

9,806 17,742

REBEE-_TE-_—F=A=+—HILHF
& - 756,223,000/ 7T (Z T —F4F :
10,003,000/ L) RERFYWHEIETE
AL - AREER T BB E KRR
CHENERNEXAREARERBFTNE
RZMEFHFE - B2.7% (=T =F
F:3.6%) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

8 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 KRFBADLEA
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after REBZBRBEIEFNEHNER, GEA) T
charging/(crediting): 5| & IF -
2021 2020
—E-—& —EZEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Cost of inventories sold BEERFEXAK 1,716,739 2,051,161
Cost of properties sold EEWEKAK 5,204 69,832
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMREITE
equipment (Note 15) (K1zt15) 119,635 114,167
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEEITE
(Note 17(a)) (Htit17(a) 2,445 3,771
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) EE®RFRAZ (A:29) 507,663 546,614
Auditor’s remuneration % ERAD B & 3,100 3,100
Legal and professional fee EERBEXEER 8,478 6,889
Short-term lease expenses HEHEERX 911 1,135
Provision/(write-back) of impairment of GFERERE (2#) -
inventories, net (Note 22) FER (B iFz2) 5,086 (12,725)
Impairment of properties under BRPYERE
development (Note 19) (B1a£19) 4,456 -
Impairment of completed properties BIEHEZRTITYWERE
held for sale (Note 20) (K1zt20) 15,944 -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #i$E% % - WE & &G - 5,624

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ & KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED Ea&EABR AR 177
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee benefit expenses (including
Directors’ emoluments)

Wages, salaries and other employee T & * #is &

welfares Hibg E1EF
Retirement benefits costs RIKE T A

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
five (2020: five) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 10.

During the year, no emoluments have been
paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office (2020:
Nil).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

(a)

BEEEABRMX
EEEINBRZ(BEFEEHFMH)
2021 2020
—E- —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
506,217 544,739
1,446 1,875
507,663 546,614
TNBEESHFHMAL

(b)

(c)

AEEAEERUKSHFMAL
ERERERE(ZE_TF 1%)
B BHREZMENMEI0
S 2 DT R BR o

RER - AEBEWERZESEZNE
B & (E B I AR KB koA
SERNRERIEAMBRE(Z
E_TF M) o

= —=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 10 EERNmkER (KBC(EE
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES A AR B (5£622F) 5383
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF (27 (BEBEESMRE
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES B HEB) (5£622GE) R & B
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), FHRAEEER)
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EERFETHAEHS
emoluments
The remuneration of every director and chief BE_E-_—EFER-_TE_TEFE=
executive for the year ended 31 March 2021 A=+—HIHFE SEFNEE
and 2020 is set out below: THAERNHMMES AT :
Equity-
settled Pension
Discretionary  share option scheme
Fee Salary bonus expense contributions Total
Rats Bife
ne e HERL BRERY SEES @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$7000 HK$°000 HK$°000
&L FET FEL FEL FET FEr
2021 ZB--F
Executive directors and HTEER
the chief executive BETHAR
Cheng Chor Kit (Note j) BRE W) - 5,704 - = = 5,704
Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent (Note i)~ B%S (# i) - 3,752 - - 18 3,710
Liu Tat Luen BEg - 1,888 - - 18 1,006
Cheng Tsz To g% - 1,800 - - 18 1,818
Cheng Tsz Hang Bt - 2,160 - - 18 2,178
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Wong Chi Wai il 300 - - - - 300
Sun Kwal Yu, Vivian Em 300 - - - - 300
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul gEg 300 - - - - 300
Cheung Wang p REF 300 - - - - 300
1,200 15,304 - - 1 16,576

Notes:

(i) Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, a director of the
Company, is also the chief executive of the
Company

(i) Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent resigned as an

executive Director and re-designated as a non-
executive Director on 1 April 2021.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E & KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

() ARAEEBRELEETBER
BITIAEEL

iy BESBELR-_ZFT_—FWOA—
BB AR TESE AT AIERT
BEo

HREEARAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R 2R Y 5

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 10 ESFERERS (KB(EH
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES ~ AR BI) (£622F) %383
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF HEAQXA(BEESFNHEE
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES B R B (5622GE) RE B
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), FHmRAIEEESR) &)
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EERFETHAEMS (&)
emoluments (continued)
Equity-settled Pension
Discretionary  share option scheme
Fee Salary bonus expense  contributions Total
hnis R’k
He #4 BT BRERY LR a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL TARL T L AL
2020 -RC0EF
Executive directors and the chief ~ HTEER
executive BRTRAR
Cheng Chor Kit (Note i) SR (i) - 6,000 - - - 6,000
Fung Wah Cheong, Vinoent EZ8 - 3,600 - - 18 3,618
Liu Tat Luen B - 1,692 - - 18 1,710
Cheng Tsz To g1z - 1,800 - - 18 1818
Cheng Tsz Hang B - 2,160 - - 18 2,178
Hui Ka Po, Alex (Note iv) SRR (W) - 973 - - 6 979
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTEE
Wong Chi Wai Ehik 300 - - - - 300
Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian BEN 300 - - - - 300
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul gEg 300 - - - - 300
Cheung Wang Ip REE 300 - - - - 300
1,200 16,205 - - 78 17503

There was no arrangement under which a

director or the chief executive waived or

agreed

to waive any remuneration during the year

(2020: Nil).
Notes:

(i) Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, a director

of the

Company, is also the chief executive of the

Company.

(iv)  Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex, had resigned as an
executive director with effective from 8 July

2019.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

BaREERAR

RER TEEERRSTHAR
BREXREREEMMS 2 L5
(ZE-_FF: 8\) -

HiiE -

(i) ARPEFRHREAEETREAR
ATTIRAEEL °

iv) FMFRERELECHERTES B
—E-NAFERNBRBER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S [Z &

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year ended
31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any termination benefits during the year ended
31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the year ended 31 March 2021, there
is no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such directors (2020: Nil).

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

10 EEFIZRER (KB(EB
A B EBI) (565622%F) 5383
(AR (BWEEEFEE
B RBI) ($£622GE) R E B
EFTHRAEEER) 2

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

B ER KRR

BE-F--—FZA=t+-A81
EER - BEESRE RS KEIE
FARAERN (B -FF « 8) -

EEREEAN
BE—_ZT-_—4F=ZA=+—H1
FEA - BEESEWD B KEE
MBEREN(ZE2F : &) -

MERUHEEREMBETE=H
KE
BE-_ZT-_—F=A=+—HL
FE ARAMERERBRESR
BEXHREFERNE=ZF(ZZ=
TE ) o

FAROES  SEFEZESNEAE
ErEE=FTHEERAFELNE

RREUER  URERZEES
MEMRXZHNER

Sl =E=—EE A== Ik
FE - ARa)BERES  (XE
EEFIREABREREEESH
EERELEREBUER UK
BRZEATHEMR S ZH (=
TEoTEm) o

= —=

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E A R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R 2R Y 5

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(f) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
Apart from those disclosed in Note 34, no
significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

10 EEFImRER (KB(EB
A a1 B) (5£622E) 56383
(AR (BWEEEFNEE
B RBI) (5622GE) REHE
EFTHRAEEER) ©)

() ESEXRS ZHIEGHHTHNEKX
R
M ES4PT MR & SN MANEFF
RF AR - HmEAREE
EBEMECLEERS - RHHA
#) o RAARRBB—T - ARAR
AEFERIEENFEEARN
EHE-

11 INCOME TAX 11 FEH
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Current - Hong Kong REE-—&BE
Charge for the year FAZH 13,400 8,599
Adjustment for current tax of prior years 8 1f 4F [E BN HA B IA H L 4,883 3,412
Current - Elsewhere RERE-HfbinE
Charge for the year FRXH 15,495 6,987
Adjustment for current tax of prior years 8 1F £ 5 B[ HA 15 18 54 &2 (3,666) (8)
Deferred tax (Note 30) EIE T IA (1 5230) 5,802 3,831
Total tax charge for the year FARBEZ LR 35,914 22,821
182 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 EAR AR ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[E 3R &



A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the locations
in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

BARBRERZHMB AR AE
ARG B 2B AR A S M 2 B
AR X B R ER26% (ZF =

TF:16.7%) T EZHAR MWD

weighted average tax rate of 26% (2020: 16.7%) is 1 s
as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Profit before tax B 150 Al A 140,055 196,458
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEMRAE 2 A 26,728 32,7183
Adjustments in respect of current tax of A #8318 1T # & BN &f
previous periods BiIAZ HE 1,217 3,404
Income not subject to tax BAERT 2 BA (8,199) (10,825)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR R 2 X 10,810 3,068
Tax losses from previous periods utilised E 2R BT HKE 2
MIEE R (3,659) (2,084)
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2 TIEE 18 9,182 2,071
Effect of different taxation rates under MBEETTRARE 2
preferential tax treatment e (165) (5,526)
Tax charge I8 37 H 35,914 22,821

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except
for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
effective from the year of assessment 2019/2020.
The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of
this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

EBNEH IR FEFRNREBMEE Z(G
STRERR T R M IR16.5% (Z T T4 ¢
16.5%) 2 TRt il - i AKE—
EIIIEPNGIE I Ex@a?\%:g*ﬂ/
TECERBFERERZWEFNEH
EHETZAERER - ZWBARZ
B2,000,0007% 7T F& 27 5 i 1) 128.25 % Bt
REF - MEGERREF B3R16.5%
TR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

11

12

INCOME TAX (continued)

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates. The tax
rate applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%
(2020: 25%).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC were
approved as High and New Technology Enterprise
and enjoyed a reduced preferential corporate income
tax (“CIT”) rate of 156% for a 3-year period from 2017
to 2020 according to the applicable CIT Law. Some
of these subsidiaries did not renew the certificate
after expiration date, the standard income tax rate of
25% was adopted for 2021.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:
Nil).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

11

12

REB#H &)

RE AR 2 FER B F 2 BB AR AR
EEKEMEBRRBITZEAR R
B -FR PRAZHBARZEARE
B25% (ZE T : 25%)

AEBEETHEMBRREREERS
MM RIBERCEMESH ([H
BRI E AR Z—+FE_F
—EFE-FHRAAF15% I REEED
EFEHHEBNRIE - AR B8
REREMARRYESERE - At
MR- - —FRABRIFEMEHE o

PESN
EXZed R TeE k2T —_—F=
A=+t—BLEFEZRBERE(ZF=
TH &) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

A reconciliation of the earnings used in calculating
earnings per share is as follows:

RUFTESRERR
2B R A N
EREDRTA ARG

Profit/(loss) attributable to the ordinary
equity holders of the Company used in
calculating basic and diluted earnings

per share: wm A, (E1E) -

From continuing operations REFELEETS

From discontinued operation KA KIS EETR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: %

- profit for the year attributable to equity holders =
of the Company of HK$103,626,000 (2020:
HK$170,049,000),

- by the weighted average number of ordinary =
shares of 438,960,000 (2020: 438,960,000) in
issue during the year.

STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

13 BRER
A EERAEN BFIEENT

2021 2020
—ES-—%F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
104,328 175,343
(702) (5,294)
103,626 170,049

EARBN TR T 518 B EERFTE

AARERFEAREFERF
103,626,000/8 7T (Z T & 4F :
170,049,000/ 7T) -

B LA N B 81758 AR N 15
£7438,960,000/% (=T =T 4 :
438,960,0000% ) °

Earnings from continuing
operations per share

Loss from discontinued
operation per share

Total basic earnings per share
attributable to the equity
holders of the Company

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

REREETBZ2ERAN

EREREXB 2 BRER

ARBERFTE ARG
BRERNRNAE

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #Ea&BEBRA

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK cents HK cents
B JEA

23.77 39.95
(0.16) (1.21)

23.61 38.74
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13 Hﬁ%*u (&)
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in FRBERTNARRUNETSRELRE
the determination of basic earnings per share to take Mz&8FEAG K -

into account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and — HEEHETRREENTSRE
other financing costs associated with dilutive HEEX RS HESE &

potential ordinary shares, and

- the weighted average number of additional - BEFMAEAEELTARESEIR
ordinary shares that would have been G N TRITEIDEEINE BAL
outstanding assuming the conversion of all INFEF 58 o

dilutive potential ordinary shares.

A reconciliation of the weighted average number of RAUGTEEREARNREERF 2 L@k
ordinary shares used in calculating the basic and IREFH S 2 HERMT

diluted earnings per share is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ET_FF
Weighted average number of ordinary F A 5T & & M E A & 58
shares used in calculating basic and & 7| 7 & i@ i 0 # 7 15 &
diluted earnings per share 438,960,000 438,960,000

186 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #&&&EmEA R A A ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4 [Z 4



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Br 5 R M EE

Diluted earnings from continuing
operations per share

Diluted loss from discontinued
operation per share

Total diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary equity
holders of the Company

Earnings from continuing
operations per share
— Basic earnings per share
— Diluted earnings per share

Loss from discontinued
operation per share
— Basic loss per share
— Diluted loss per share

Diluted earnings/(losses) per share

The diluted earnings/(losses) from continuing
operations and discontinued operation per share is
equal to the basic earnings/(losses) per share for the
year ended 31 March 2021 as the outstanding share
options did not have dilutive effect because the
exercise price per share option was higher than the

2021 2020
—E=-F —E_TF
HK cents HK cents
B B
SREEAFN 23.77 39.95
BRIFEEEE Y
EBirEEEE (0.16) (1.21)
ARrlE@aEREAA
EhEREER T B
23.61 38.74
SELEEB 2 TRAF
— BREREF 23.77 39.95
— BREERF 23.77 39.95
BRIFEEEE R EBE
— BREANEE (0.16) (1.21)
— BREEEE (0.16) 1.21)
SEREEERN(FHE)

average share price of the Company during the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &
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BE_T_—F=A=+—HILFEZ
HECEXBRERIEREXEB 2K
ZEaN/ (BB EZs8KRERERN/
(BR) R REASESHEEREZTTE
BRRARRRFARZFHRE - Hit
RITIERE BB I S HE R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

14 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

14 iR =)
TESFIR-—E-_—&F=A=+—A~

31 March 2021: TEWMBRF
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of Ownership
establishment and issued share interest held
Name kind of legal entity capital by the Group  Principal activities
SMA R B R rEEREZ
ARER EAERER ERTRAFE FEREER TEZEHR
Directly held
EERE
Kin Yat Holdings (BVI) Limited  British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share 100% Investment holding
limited liability company US$1
BEXE(HERETES) HERZHE BRAR ETBRIET REZR
AR AT
Indirectly held
BERE
Guizhou Kin Yat Property The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company RMB130,000,000
EMBREHERRAR mE - ARAA TRRARE FHERE
130,000,0007T
ENEHELEFEMEBRAR The PRC, Ordinary shares 100%  Property development
limited liability company RMB200,000,000
mE - ARAA TRRARY FHERE
200,000,0007¢
Guizhou Standard Electric The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading
Motor Company Limited limited liability company RMB124,005,400 of motors
EMEBEBHBRAT FE - FRAA ERRAREK SEREEEH
124,005,4007C
Kin Yat (Guizhou) Robot The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading
Company Limited limited liability company RMB100,000,000 of electronic products
BEEMBEABRRA  HE ARAA EERARK AERBEETEM
100,000,0007T
Kin Yat (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% Trading of electrical
Corporation Limited limited liability company HK$10,000 products
B (ER)BEXAR AT BB BRRA &M% 10,0007 7T BEEREMm

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 35

EBRAR]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14 BT &)

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of Ownership
establishment and issued share interest held
Name kind of legal entity capital by the Group  Principal activities
SMAL R B R rEEREEZ
RAEMW EAERER ERTRAFE FiEEEs TEEH
Indirectly held (continued)
MERE (2)
Kin Yat Industrial Company Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of toys,

Limited limited liability company HK$3,200,000 electronic products,
and sourcing of
materials

BHEEXARAA BB BARRA L 1B0%3,200,000% 7T EEMA EFEMK

MEHREE

Newway Electrical Industries Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of electrical
(Hong Kong) Limited limited liability company HK$10,000 household appliances

MEEREX(BR)ERRA &B ARAA LB 10,0007 7T EEXE

Penta Blesses Enterprises Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% Investment and property
Limited limited liability company HK$1,000,000 holding

ARECERRAR BE ARAA T #R1,000,000/8 7T RERFENE

Shaoguan Turbo Electronic The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading

Technology Company Limited  limited liability company US$8,000,000 of toys and electrical
appliances

HACEEETRRAERRA HE - ARAR 3% 1%8,000,000% T NEREENARER
Shenzhen Kin Yat Power The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading
Electronic Company Limited limited liability company US$10,000,000 of toys and electronic
products
FNEEESETFERAR mE - ARAA LM% 10,000,000% 7T BERBETARET
Em
Shixing Standard Motor The PRC, Ordinary shares 100%  Property holding,

Company Limited limited liability company US$23,000,000 manufacture and

trading of motors
REGERENASEERAR $E BRAAF £ :23,000,000% 7 RAENE HEREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 B2 T (&)

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of Ownership
establishment and issued share interest held
Name kind of legal entity capital by the Group  Principal activities
AL B i B R XEEREZ
ARER EAERER ERTRAFE FEREERZ TEER
Indirectly held (continued)
BERkE (2)
Smart Electric Motor Company  Hong Kong, Ordinary share 100%  Trading of motors and
Limited limited liability company HK$1 materials
BRERERAA &% BRAA LER1IET BEEERRIE
Smart Electric Motor Singapore  Singapore, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of motors
Pte. Limited limited liability company SG$100
Mg - ARAFE T3 R 005 3K T EEEH
Standard Encoder (Malaysia) Malaysia, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading
Sdn Bhd limited liability company RM500,000 of encoder film
SRAET  FRAA T MR500,0005 HEREERBRFEM
Standard Land (Malaysia) Sdn ~ Malaysia, Ordinary shares 100% Property holding
Bhd limited liability company RM500,000
SRAET - ARAOA L BR%500,0005 & RENE
Standard Motor Company Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of motors and
Limited limited liability company HK$40,000,000 sourcing of materials
SRMA BT ERAA &% BRAA 240,000,000/ 7T BEESHREEDH
Standard Motor Japan Japan, Ordinary shares 100% Trading of motors
Company Limited limited liability company JPY10,000,000
BA ARAA 3% 1%10,000,000F E EESH
World Talent Enterprise Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of toys
limited liability company HK$1,000,000
REGEBRARA &% BRAA 3% M%1,000,000%8 7T BEEmMA
PEATRETSEARAR The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading

limited liability company
hE - BERAA

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 35
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Moulds, tools, Furniture,
Freehold land ~ Construction and plant and equipment and

Buildings and buildings  in progress machinery motor vehicles Total
KA%E B IR G RE
BF  1#RET EEIE RERHEES RARE @it

HK$000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FET FET FET FEx

31 March 2021 “E--FZA=1-H

Cost or valuation: HAESGE

At 1 April 2020 R-Z-_ZEMA-A 304,576 25,909 94,605 1,139,085 423,875 1,988,050

Additions "E - - 1,372 59,896 24,441 85,709

Disposals e - - - (6,487) - (6,487)

Write-off i - - - (17) (3,772) (3,889)

Transfers 25 - - (13,398) 137 13,261 -

Surplus on revaluation ERRH 52,600 176 - - - 52,776

Write-back on revaluation EfREE (12417) (176) - - - (12,593)

Exchange realignment ERAZ 12,701 984 9,574 83,980 20,731 121,970

At 31 March 2021 R-F--F=F=+-H 357,460 26,893 92,153 1,276,494 478,536 2,231,536

Accumulated depreciation and i TEREME :

impairment:

At 1 April 2020 R-E-_ZFNA-H - - - 686,150 312,746 998,896

Provided during the year EREE 12,417 176 - 80,605 26,437 119,635

Disposals HE - - - (2,490) - (2,490)

Write-off s - - - (117) 3,772 (3,889)

Write-back on revaluation EfikEE (12417) (176) - - - (12,593)

Exchange realignment B i - - - 48,399 13,204 61,603

At 31 March 2021 R-B_—F=F=1-H - - - 812,547 348,615 1,161,162

Net book value: BEFE:

At 31 March 2021 R-E--€=f=+-H 357,460 26,893 92,153 463,947 129,921 1,070,374

31 March 2021 ZE--£=f=+-f

An analysis of cost or valuation: KABHEE 22 :

At cost AR - - 92,153 1,276,494 478,536 1,847,183

At 2021 valuation EZE=-EfE 357,460 26,893 - - - 384,353
357,460 26,893 92,153 1,276,494 478,536 2,231,536
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15 9% BERSKHE#)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Moulds, tools, Fumiture,
Fregholdland  Construction  and plantand  equipment and
Buildings  and buidings in progress machinery  motor vehicles Total
KAFE BE-TR G %E
BF  1HRET ERIE REFERZ RAE e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

31 March 2020 ZE-EEZB=1-R
Cost or valuation: ﬁJUNEZNE fa:
At 31 March 2019 F-n&E=A=1-A 45,577 27,046 97,590 1,110,990 426,637 2,077,840
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 MNE” %Eﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
Sles e (76,490) - . - . (76,490)
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEFBA-A 339,087 27,046 97,590 1,110,990 426,637 2,001,350
Additions ME = = 4,390 133,152 19,378 156,920
Disposals e
- Continuing operations - REOELH (2,460) = < (4,616) (1,109) (6,185)
- Discontinued operation - BRIERESRE = = = (56) - (56)
Transfer to assets classified EREHEBARENEEAE
as held for sale (Note 27) (Hior) - - (752) (34,045) (6,906) 41,709)
Write-off Lk
- Continuing operations - BEOELH - - - (10,875) (28) (10,903)
- Discontinued operation - BRIERERE = = = (1,178) (700) (1,878)
Transfers 25 - (3,614) 1,609 2,005 -
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-RHEBAR (491 ) - - - (1442) (6,352)
Deficit/surplus on revaluation BREEN/ BB (5,040) 176 = = - (4,864)
Write-back on revaluation SEDE (13,382) (176) - - - (13,558)
Exchange realignment £ B 8,719 (1,137) (3,009 (55,396) (13,960) (82,721)
At 31 March 2020 RZE-EF=f=1-H 304,576 25,909 94,605 1,139,085 423,875 1,988,050
Accumulated depreciation and ~ EHTERAE :
impairment:
t1 April 2019 R-E-NEMA-A - - - 656,792 297,304 954,116
Provided during the year EREE
- Continuing operations -REOEEE 13,382 176 - 74,879 25,730 114,167
- Discontinued operation - BRIBEXH - - - 2,488 1,324 3,807
Disposals irk3
- Continuing operations - - - (3,319) (1,090) (4,409)
- Discontinued operation - - - (M) - (M)
Transfer to assets classified
as held for sale (Note 27) - - - (8,314) (1,986) (10,300)
Disposal of a subsidiary ﬁ’% Wﬁ% - - - - (338) (338)
Write-off ik
- Continuing operations - RERLEK - - - (5,265) (14) 5, 279)
- Discontinued operation - BRILEEER - - - (195) (86) (281)
Write-back on revaluation BfEEDA (13,382) (176) - - - (13,558)
Exchange realignment EiAE - - - (30,900) (8,118) (39,018)
At 31 March 2020 RZF-F£=A=1-H = = = 686,150 312,746 998,896
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 March 2020 RZE-F4=f=1-H 304,576 25,909 94,605 452,935 111,129 989,154
31 March 2020 ZR-BEZAS4-f
An analysis of cost or valuation: KAEH B2 :
At cost mwa - - 94605 1,139,085 423875 1,657,565
At 2020 valuation B-E-BEVfE 304,576 25,909 - - - 330,485
304,576 26,909 94,605 1,139,085 423 875 1,988,050

192 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &S BEAER 2 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE k&



Depreciation of approximately HK$108,866,000
(2020: HK$102,626,000) is included in cost of sales;
HK$10,769,000 (2020: HK$11,541,000) is included
in administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement for continuing operations.
Depreciation amounted to nil (2020: HK$1,790,000)
and nil (2020: HK$2,017,000) are recognised in cost
of sales and administrative expense in discontinued
operation, respectively.

At 31 March 2021, the Group's building in Hong
Kong and Mainland China were revalued based on
valuation performed by Asset Appraisal Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at HK$2,310,000 (2020: HK$2,460,000) and
RMB296,370,000 (equivalent to HK$355,150,000)
(2020: RMB271,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$302,116,000)) respectively.

Freehold land and buildings in Malaysia were
revalued based on valuation performed by Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, at Malaysian
Ringgit (“RM”) RM13,780,000 (equivalent to
HK$26,893,000) (2020: RM14,020,000 (equivalent to
HK$25,909,000)).

Revaluation surplus of HK$52,776,000 resulting
from the above revaluation were credited (2020:
Revaluation deficits of HK$4,864,000 resulting from
the above revaluation were debited) to the asset
revaluation reserve.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.
The management discusses with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

& #4108,866,0008 T (ZE - F
% :102,626,000/8 7t) B 5 A8 & K
7K 310,769,000 T (ZE =& F
11,541,000 ) Est AGRE W= R A
SECEEBR 2 TRAY - TETET
(ZZ T4 : 1,790,000 7T) kL Z B
T (ZZE-FF :2,017,0008 L) BEH
RIERABORIEREEER 2 HERETR
THAX -

RZEBE-_—F=A=+—"H 4&A&EE
REBRFBEAMZEFHBEB L
BELERGBEMPHEEETER
MBERARMETZEEMER 4
B 542,310,000 T (ZE=_ZF :
2,460,000/ 7T) & A R #296,370,000
7t (18 % #355,150,000& 7T) (=& —
T AR ¥271,500,0007T (FHER
302,116,000 7T) ) °

A RFG s 2 KA EME L RIEF TR
BB B XA EK{GERRavia Global
Appraisal Advisory LimitedfTi# 17 2
HEMmE - 4EA13,780,0005F &
([E# ) (% 726,893,000/8 L) (=
—F 4 :14,020,0005 ¥ (BER
25,909,000/ 78)) °

it B E A 2 E1H & #52,776,000
BILTEFABEEGMFHE (2%
FEMBRELAEHEEEZEG[EM
4,864,000/ 7C) °

BF AKEZBIEGHEMEEEA
SEZMFETIMBAEE - RETER
EmSHE B8 BUUELRESHR
EXRE - BERMBRBETHER
BEESRGHEMIWEERRRGE
R
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

There has been no change from the valuation
techniques used in prior years. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the Group’s land and buildings at
31 March 2021 are estimated by using significant
unobservable inputs and the fair value measurement
is categorised within Level 3 (2020: Same).

During the year ended 31 March 2021 there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1, Level 2 and Level 3 (2020: Nil).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

15

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

M=E - BERRE@®

BEFEMAABMGERMELEEE - R
AMEZATER  FEVEZES
RERRRERAKRR -

NP ERE
W_B-—#=fA=+—08 KA&£@2
T REFZ AFETRBEATAE
RGABBEGFRAFEFEDERSE
BT (ZEZZFF - HR) -

B BEEAATEFEEE B F
—ERF-EBrHAER(ZT_2F:
') o
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Reconciliation of fair value measurements ESBERAFEELEE=ZERNZAFE

categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: HE 7 HER
Medium term Buildings in
leasehold  Buildings in Mainland  Buildings in
landin  Hong Kong China Malaysia
Hong Kong  (Industrial)  (Industrial)  (Industrial) Total

RER RER  RPERE RERED
ZHE BT ZBF BT
BELH (I¥) (I¥) (IX) @t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FEL TET TET

Carrying amount: REE:
At 1 April 2020 R-_E-ZFNA—H - 2,460 302,116 25,909 330,485
Depreciation hE - (98) (12,319) (176) (12,593)
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation B4 (Bl /B - (52) 52,652 176 52,776
Exchange realignment B g - - 12,701 984 13,685
At 31 March 2021 W_E-_-#=ZfA=1-H - 2,310 355,150 26,893 384,353
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NFZA=1+-H 76,490 10,510 328,577 27,046 442,623
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 fLME BB B4 8|

F16% 7 E (76,490) - - - (76,490)
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NENA—H - 10,510 328,577 27,046 366,133
Depreciation ik - (420) (12,962) (176) (13,558)
Disposal & - (2,460) - - (2,460)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HNBAR - (4,910) = = (4,910)
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation B (B /B = (260) (4,780) 176 (4,864)
Exchange realignment AR - - (8,719) (1,137) (9,856)
At 31 March 2020 R_E-FF=A=1-H - 2,460 302,116 25,909 330,485
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DR ETE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15 ¥ - BEREE @)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AP EEE(E)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used MELEMBZHEEAERTEGAHK
and the key inputs to the valuation of properties: EWENT
Significant Range of unobservable inputs
Class of properties  Valuation techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
TUBERASEEE
MEE ER % EXTABERAEE (niE¥13)
2021 2020
—E--F —Z-ZF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong Market comparable method Gross unit rate per square foot 444 551 to 601
B s B BEARBENER 5512601
- Buildings
-8%
- Industrial
-1%¥
- Level 3
-%=F
Mainland China Direct replacement cost method  Gross unit rate per square foot 70 to 159 61to 134
B A BEEEERAZE BERREEMLER 702159 612134
- Buildings
8%
- Industrial
-1%
- Level 3
=
Malaysia Direct replacement cost method  Gross unit rate per square foot 477 467
SRAE EREERAE BEARBENE]E
- Buildings
-BF
- Industrial
-I1%¥
- Level 3
=5=lg
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, there is no building in
Mainland China which the Group was still in
the process of obtaining the building ownership
certificates (2020: HK$102,276,000).

As at 31 March 2021, had the Group’s buildings
stated at valuation been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, they would have been
included in the financial statements at approximately
HK$66,777,000 (2020: HK$82,164,000).

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

15 ¥ - BMERRE#®)

NV EEME (H)
R-TE-_—F=A=+—0 #HEgR
hEALMASENEETREERE
FTERBZEFNEF(ZE_ZF
102,276,000 7T) ©

MN_BE-—#=A=+—0 " HEX&£HE
NEBEIREZEFURARERETE
FTEREE WAMBRRTEBE LM
MEF 2 BREE 4 £66,777,0008 T
(ZZE-FT 4 : 82,164,000/ 7T) °

16 REMWH

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

Carrying amount at the beginning of year F #8REE 57,975 65,070
Gain/(loss) from fair value adjustment KEAFEEFHE

(Note 6) Wzt (&18) (#f:6) 3,462 (229)

Disposal (Note) e i) - (3,609)

Exchange realignment PE 3 4,591 (3,257)

Carrying amount at the end of year FREEMEMEAE 66,028 57,975

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE#R4 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED & B4R A
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes:

(i) The balance included the commercial building in The
Royale Cambridge Residences, residential units and
car park, and a commercial leasehold land in Guizhou
Province.

(if) As at 31 March 2021, a portion of the commercial
leasehold land with the carrying amount of
approximately HK$47,556,000 was pledged to the
bank to secure a bank facility (Note 29).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2021 based on valuations performed by
Assets Appraisal Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at RMB55,100,000 (2020:
RMB52,100,000) (equivalent to HK$66,028,000
(2020: HK$57,975,000)).

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.
The management discusses with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation
techniques used in prior years. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 March 2021 are estimated by using significant
unobservable inputs and the fair value measurement
is categorised within Level 3 (2020: Same).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

16 REW X (#

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

m

Htiz

) KHPEENENIBERZAER
FoEFEBMNREES  AREEM
Bt

iy R-ZE-_—F=F=+—H EHEE
#) 747,556,000 T2 —H K E A ME
ST TRITUMBRITHE
(Ff5E29) °

RZE-_—F=A=+—"H &X&EEH
ZHREMERBEBIEESERGEE
TP EEETEBRMARARE
TZHEEMAARES5,100,0007T
(ZZ=-_ZTF: AR¥52,100,0007T)
(tB%17266,028,0008 T (— T — T4 :
57,975,000/ 7)) °

BF AEEZRBIBHEMAEEAR
SEZYRETINEGE - RBRFEER
BmsHE B2 BUUERRSHR
BXRE - ERMBHRRETHER
EREEgRMGEMN REERILGE
I\\D%

RBEFERAZGEETELEZLY -
R MEZ RAFER  BEENEZR
BERERESERKARE -

AFERRE
R=B-—F=A=+-0 AEEH
MR DTFEEREATTRER
ABBEHRATHH EREEE=E
(Z2=FF :48R) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

16 REWZE (&2
RAFE  HEEFAQIFEFEES
BEF_E.HBYR  FESEANEY
FoZEB(ZE-FTE E) -

g

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements BEEATERBE=ZEBz A AFETE
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: EERAMT ¢
Buildings in Land in Building in
Mainland Mainland Mainland
China China China
(Residential) (Commercial) (Commercial) Total
URPERE SRPERE CRPERG
ZETF 21 ZETF
(£%) (%) (%) @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Carrying amount: REE:
At 1 April 2020 R-ZZE-TFNA—H - 47,849 10,126 57,975
Gain from fair value adjustment AT EFEES 2 WH - 3,462 - 3,462
Exchange realignment R E - 3,812 779 4,591
At 31 March 2021 R-_B-_—%
SHEwrE - 55,123 10,905 66,028
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA—R 3,708 50,215 11,147 65,070
Gain/(loss) from fair value AFEABELY
adjustment W/ (B#R) - 228 (457) (229)
Disposal HE (3,609) = = (3,609)
Exchange realignment I 5, & (99) (2,594) (564) (3,257)
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZZF
=A=1+—H - 47,849 10,126 57,975
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B 7% ¥R R B RE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 REWE &)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used KEMEGEMRAZGEIERZER
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment ASBBMRAT -
properties:
Significant Range of unobservable inputs
Class of properties Valuation techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
FTUBERAHEEE

LE3V hEF % BEATTEHERABE (fnfEF13)

2021 2020

—B--F —T_THE

HK$ HK$

B BT
Leasehold land Market comparable Gross unit rate 27 24

in Mainland China method per square foot*

RPBERMzHELH  HHEBE

Commercial properties Income method
in Mainland China

RPBEABZEEDNE  KAZE

BY T REBMER

Gross unit rate 506 469
per square foot*
FEFRBBA(ERE

& The higher the gross unit rate per square foot, the # FTHRMASBMERAS @ AFEA

higher the fair value.

)
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Prepaid Office
land lease Leasehold and other

payments land properties
(Note(i)) (Note(ii)) (Noted(iii)) Total
T8 {3 L it WAER
He HELH H s
(B &E()) (BF=E(E) (B EE(iii)) #mEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2020 R-BE-EHF
A—AH 22,169 210 3,864 26,243
Inception of lease A%
contracts - - 5,348 5,348
Depreciation (Note (iv)) #1& (47:E(iv)) (635) (8) (1,802) (2,445)
Termination of leases #XIFHHE - - (3,828) (3,828)
Exchange realignment [ 3, 38 £ 872 - 144 1,016
At 31 March 2021 RN-EBE=-—&
== ar= (g 22,406 202 3,726 26,334
At 1 April 2019 RZE—NF
MmAE—H 23,437 2,788 951 27,176
Inception of lease Giskolrl G
contracts = = 6,040 6,040
Depreciation (Note (iv)) #1 & (#7iZ(iv)) (631) (99) (3,041) (3,771)
Disposal & - (448) = (448)
Disposal of a subsidiary & — & ¥ & 2 7] - (2,031) - (2,031)
Exchange realignment [ i, 3 2 (637) - (86) (723)
At 31 March 2020 MNZZE_FTF
=—A=+—H 22,169 210 3,864 26,243
Notes: B
()  The Group obtains the land use rights through () AEBEFEBEPBRMTH L
lease contracts with local governments in the AHS0F ML ES L B
PRC with 50 years term. 1o
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B 7% ¥R R B RE

17 LEASES (continued)

17 #HE(»)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

The Group’s interest in leasehold land is on
medium term lease of 50 years and located in
Hong Kong.

The Group obtains right to control the use
of office and other properties for a period
of time through lease arrangements. Lease
arrangements are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions including lease payments
and lease terms ranging from 1 to 3 years.

The Group’s lease expenses (Note 8) are
primarily for short-term leases.

Depreciation of approximately HK$108,000
(2020: HK$1,606,000) is included in “Cost of
sales” and HK$2,337,000 (2020: $2,165,000)
is included in “Administrative expenses” in the
consolidated income statement.

(a)

Lease liabilities (b)

At 1 April MRMUA—H

Inception of lease contracts A

Termination of leases RIEHEE

Interest expenses on lease liabilites FfAE&E 2 F S8
(Note 7) (Kiat7)

Payment for lease liabilities TNHEEERE
(including interest) (BEMER)

Exchange alignment ME 3, 8 &

At 31 March R=B=+—H

Amount due for settlement within 12

months

Amount due for settlement after 12

months

R1I2EARBIMEE 2
IR
R12E A RBIMEE 2

IR

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

ERBEE (&)

(i

(ii)

RNEE 2 HE T HERIZRAEI50
FZHRHBEERBEARMRE
7 e

AEBEBHEELRHFRER —K
iSAENAEE B ENE-D S R/ E 3
FIERORERN - ME L RRE
TR - BERSBETRGR R
- BEEENRENF1E234F
Z T -

AEBZHERX (HEs) T2
KEMHEE -

(ivi & 4108,0008 T (==&
—ET4F 1,606,000 T) &
2,337,000 L (ZZE =T F :
2,165,0007% 7T) B 9 Bl 5 A 4R
AWEROHEERA] K17
X e

HESE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
4,000 955
5,348 6,040
(3,970) =
156 360
(1,908) (3,268)
146 (87)
3,772 4,000
1,880 1,850
1,892 2,150
3,772 4,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 LEASES (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (continued)
The total cash outflows for leases for the year
were HK$1,908,000 (2020: HK$3,268,000).

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is

disclosed in Note 3.1(c).

(c) Short-term leases

As at 31 March 2021,

the total future lease

payments for short-term leases amounted to
HK$6,000 (2020: HK$695,000) (Note 38(b)).

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020
and 31 March 2021

Cost
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Opening net book amount

Transfer to assets classified as held
for sale (Note 27)

Amortisation

— Discontinued operation

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2020
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

RZE_EF=A=+—
“E-EFMA-BK
Tl = S B Sqe—[g
A

R-E-AE=A=t-HEK
—E-NENA—H

A

£

g+

REFE

ENREFE
BRESBABENEEE
(Bti227)

B

- BRIEEEEE

FEREEFE

RZE-_ZT&#=A=+—H
AR
SR £

REFE

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &%

Br 5 R M EE

17 #HE (»)
(b) HEEE(E)
FREERESEREHLE A
1,908,000 T (Z & & F :

(c)

3,268,000 7T) °

MEEEZIES
B -

MBI FES.1(c)

EHEE
RZB-_—F=A=+—H  BH
ﬁ%Z%XﬂEHm | %8 /96,000
BL(ZEZEF - 695, 0007 7T)
(BFE38(b)) °

8 MIE&EE
GoodW|II Technology  Contracts Total
e i =r ) @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FEz  FAr  THrT  FEX
7,873 - - 7,873
18,586 18,100 900 37,586
- (1,207) (600) (1,807)
18,586 16,893 300 35,779
18,586 16,893 300 35,779
(10,713) (15,083) - (25,796)
- (1,810) (300) (2,110
7,873 - - 7,873
7,873 - - 7,873
7,873 - - 7,873

SEARAA
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill
Management review the business performance
based on type of business as follows:

Electrical and electronic products B
Motors B

At 31 March R=A=

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
management of the Group determined that there was
no impairment of the CGU to which the goodwill has
been allocated. The recoverable amount of goodwill
is determined using a value in use calculation with
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The key assumption for the cash flow
projections is the budget gross margin which is the
average gross margin achieved in the years before
the budgeted year and the discount rates applied to
the cash flow projections for electrical and electronic
products and motors segments were 14% and
14% (2020: electrical and electronic products and
motors segments were 14% and 14%) respectively.
The financial budgets are prepared reflecting actual
and prior year performance and development
expectations.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&&BEAERA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

ANRY ﬁ/ﬁ? { E

BB R
EEERBATEHBHRUEREHX
g

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
3,223 3,223
4,650 4,650
7,873 7,873

REBE_ZT_—F=A=+—HIF
B AEBEREET BOEREZ
WMEEEEMCIWEFE - B2 kNE
THERERAEEFEET  MERE
EBRIEASREREHEZRELFH
Zajﬂﬁl'ﬁﬁziﬁi/mgfg EU o Re
MEBEAZ FERERT #%%‘JZE FH
RRBEFEABFRNMER FHE
FE pERNEFEMAREES S
Ziﬁémi‘ﬁi HIJ%FHZEEEEI’\%U%M%
F14% (ZZ2_FF : EXNETFTEMR
ARBEHDSIE 14%Kk14%) - A
BYRHBUEERVER R FFENEE
REERTEH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE k&



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

19 PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT

Movements in the properties under
development are as follows:

At beginning of the year

Addition

Transferred to completed properties
held for sale (Note 20)

Impairment

Exchange alignment

At end of the year (Note)
Current portion

Non-current portion

Note:

Properties under development comprise:

Construction costs and capitalised
expenditures

Interests capitalised

Land use rights

Impairment

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

19 HERPYH

2021 2020
—E-—F el Tl T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
BRAYEZEBHMOT
RE] 312,381 530,710
NE 26,914 32,373
EEERELE Y
BT W% (f7£20) = (228,385)
DERIE] (4,456) -
PE 3 & 22,991 (22,317)
RER (M E) 357,830 312,381
BVER B 75 (316,787) (269,847)
JEBNHERER & 41,043 42,534
it -
BREPMEDIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBIT FET
BERARERNETH
202,538 168,124
FMBEARE 27,955 21,591
T+ b fE A 132,099 122,666
DERIE] (4,762) =
357,830 312,381

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED Ea&EABR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

20 COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

20 FEHEZERTIYE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FTHF

HK$°000 HK$’000

F#ET FHEIT

At 31 March R=A=+—H 154,464 =
Transferred from properties under EEEERERPYME

development (Note 19) (K1:£19) - 228,385

Properties sold EEMHE (5,204) (69,832)

Impairment WE (15,944) -

Exchange realignment fE 5 3R & 10,589 (4,089)

At 31 March R=A=+—H 143,905 154,464

The completed properties held for sale are located
in the PRC. The cost of properties sold recognised
as expense and included in “Cost of sales”
amounted to approximately HK$5,204,000 (2020:
HK$69,832,000).

21 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Movements in the investment in

R—EBERRZ

an associate is as follows: HEZBMT
At beginning of the year REA
Disposal (Note) & (K i)
Share of post-tax losses BB BB
Exchange alignment ME 5 58 &
At end of the year RER

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

BIELEZRTIWEMRPR - B H
EYERKL5,204,0008 T (ZE-F
% 169,832,000/ ) R AR T W
ATSHERA] -

21 R—EBREQTAZRE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
4,854 12,065
(5,001) (5,806)
(31) (955)

178 (450)

= 4,854
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

(continued)

Name of entity

ERER

BEMEHEHEARAT

Note:

On 27 April 2020, the Group entered into sales and
purchase agreement with a third party, pursuant to which
the independent third party agreed to purchase, and
the Group agreed to sell 33.3% of equity interests in &
MEN EHERI AR QA at cash consideration of

Place of
business/
country of
establishment
EEHE/
KYEX

The PRC
T

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

21 R—HEBEQXRAZRE#®@)

% of Nature of the ~ Measurement
effective interest  relationship method Carrying amount
ERESAAN BEME iTERE REE
2021 2020 2021 2020
- -B2CF% Z8--F -Z-%%
HK$000  HK$'000
TET TAT
- 33.33% Associate Equity - 4,854
BE BRE
Hiet -
RZZE-TFNA=-++tH AEBEEE=
FRIVEERSE Bt BUE=FRER
B MASERELEEMNENEUERR
& BRAAMNIB3%ME RERERARE

RMB5,000,000 (approximately HK$5,730,000).

The transaction was completed on 27 April 2020 resulting
in a gain on disposal of approximately HK$729,000 (Note

6).

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[E &

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED Ea&EABR AR

5,000,0007T (#75,730,0007 7T) °

ZRPER—_Z_FEFNA-—+LHZEK "
EE A #9729,0008 T & W s (I 3E6) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

22 INVENTORIES

Raw materials R}

Work in progress paak IR
Finished goods B2IEK @

Less: Provision for impairment O E R

The cost of inventories recognised as expense
and included in “Cost of inventories sold”
amounted to approximately HK$1,716,739,000
(2020: HK$2,051,161,000). Provision amounted
to HK$5,086,000 (2020: write back of provision
HK$12,725,000) was included in the “Cost of sales”
in the consolidated income statement during the
year ended 31 March 2021. Cost of inventories
amounted to appropriately HK$3,350,000 (2020:
HK$31,466,000) is recognised as expense and
included in “Cost of sales” in discontinued operation.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&&BEAERA

2021 2020
—B-—F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
249,044 211,393
29,343 22,780
109,963 85,770
388,350 319,943
(26,449) (21,363)
361,901 298,580

BRAEAIRFAIEETFTERA] Z
5 & 5K AN #) A1,716,739,00058 7T (—
T T4 :2,051,161,000/ L) ° B
5,086,000/ 0 (Z T ZZF : BEMDE#
12,725,000 ) EREE T - —&F
A=+ —HLEFEFARAKREZRD
[$8 & A A - 17 & Ak A 493,350,000
L (Z T - F 4 : 31,466,000/8 7T ) HER
AR T ARRIEELERZ[HE
RRAN] o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

23 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS

RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable JE U BR 3R
Bills receivable FE U =%
Loss allowance &5 18 B 1

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
cash on sale or payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally for a period
of one to two months, extending up to three
months for certain well-established customers. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has imposed tightened control to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its accounts and bills receivable balances.
Accounts and bills receivable are non-interest-
bearing.

The Group also uses accounts receivable
factoring facilities to manage the credit risk of its
trade debtors. As at 31 March 2021, accounts
receivable of approximately HK$154,086,000 (2020:
HK$55,898,000) was subject to non-recourse
factoring arrangements and therefore derecognised.
No accounts receivable was subject to recourse
factoring arrangement in 2021 and 2020.

23 EWERAM K

=B

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
364,896 228,426
17,975 -
382,871 228,426
(14,782) (7,409)
368,089 221,017

AEBBREPZEFERRANBIINEE
FRAET  EFEF—RFEARSHE
NEABERI - EEH-—KRE—EM
A ETEERARFZEFZEER
HRAERE=EA -BR2EFPHYAE
B LR - REBEE R E REFIBRES
AR P2 15 30 2 1055 12 11 A 15 B L
ERE - -SREEAESTHRIEBH
KRR o AREY EAE WA NRE
EHRHFEEMNERRIEBERERT -
MR AR R RBL TS -

AEEBFRERERREREETRER
EXREERR R —F=
A=+—H " &R %154,086,000
BT (ZEZFF : 55,898,000/ 7T)
FIVEBHERELSE  AHEHUERE
R-RZBE_—FR_Z_ZTFHERE
WERSREI L BB ERELHE -

SEERAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

23 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS 23 EWERRREE @
RECEIVABLE (continued)
An aging analysis of the accounts and bills receivable R|EHR - BUREREERZERS
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the MREZEH)WT :

invoice date, is as follows:

2021 2020

—B=-—F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

0 — 30 days 0£30H 168,566 123,280

31 - 60 days 31£60H 89,109 44,656

61 — 90 days 61£290H 92,806 31,974

Over 90 days 908 A + 32,390 28,516

382,871 228,426

Loss allowance &5 18 B (14,782) (7,409)

368,089 221,017

At 31 March 2021, the Group had certain R-ZE-_—F=A=+—H KEH7A

concentrations of credit risk that may arise from RN AAZEEREAR KRR D

the exposure to the five largest customers and the MEAS TEREZERR  DRGARE

largest customer which accounted for approximately B EW R TEERE 7 4950% (— B —F4F :
50% (2020: 34%) and 20% (2020: 12%) of the 34%) B20% (ZZFE T F : 12%) °

Group’s total accounts receivable, respectively.

210 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE k&



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLE (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of
accounts and bills receivable are as follows:

Br 5 R M EE

23 EWERFNERE &)

RUERRRBEZBREREZSIT

2021 2020

—E-—fF —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

At beginning of the year RE] 7,409 4,151

Provision for impairment recognised RERNERZBEERE

during the year 7,373 4,564
Transfer to assets classified as EERESEARBELEEE

held for sale - (1,306)

At end of the year RER 14,782 7,409

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all accounts and
bills receivable. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about
the calculation of the allowance.

The carrying amount of accounts and bills receivable
approximate their fair values.

Denominated in:

AEBERBEBMBREERFEIRME
LA ERMEERER - A RK
RRERBREREMNBRBEBRER - K
A3 1) BBRAN A ER B FAER -

YRR L RIE 2 RmEREE A FER

++

HKD BT
UsD ETT
RMB AR
Others Hih

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

E o
LT3 & #EHE :
2021 2020
—E-—% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET F#ET
23,826 23,443
221,845 125,763
121,892 71,674
526 187
368,089 221,017

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED Ea&EABR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayment for property, plant and

equipment

Prepaid construction costs (Note)

Prepayment for materials
VAT recoverables

Factoring receivables from bank

Utility and other deposits
Staff advance

Other prepayments
Other receivables

Less: Provision for impairment

Less: Current portion

Non-current portion

Note:

As at 31 March 2021, such prepaid construction costs
include prepaid construction cost of approximately
HK$49,132,000 (2020: HK$45,623,000) to a main
contractor for the property development project in Dushan T (ZE=-Z
County, Guizhou Province, the PRC. The properties, upon
completion, are for selling purpose and are expected to be
completed within twelve months, therefore, it is classified

as current assets.

15

W% BERRBENKA

TEF B AN (M 7E)
MORHTE S 5RE

A Ug [B] 18 (B F
FEURERTTIRIB X8
AEBHEREMES
BT #K

H A FE 518

H fh U 5118

W AR

B BNERER

FERNEREE

Wit

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

24 FENFIE - BEREMEWRK

2021 2020
—E-——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
95,066 144,875
104,816 107,850
36,294 16,666
47,040 45,006
16,363 5,602
6,519 3,816
2,366 1,044
6,800 1,127
47,950 28,199
363,214 354,185
(13,152) -
350,062 354,185
(245,568) (190,221)
104,494 163,964

R-_ZT-——F=A=+—8 E@BEMEE
B AN B IR F AL A P B & N 98 1L W
BIB B S+ F — % £ 58 7 4949,132,0007%
4 1 45,623,000/ 7T) 2 A2
ERA - ZEMERBTRIEHERS X1
EEAT-_BEARRT Bt EWHHHEAE
RENEE °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 general approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses 12-month
or lifetime expected loss allowance for all deposits and
other receivables which constitute financial assets at
amortised cost. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the
determination of the allowance.

The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

Denominated in:

HKD BT
RMB AR
Others Hfb

24

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

ANRE - BEREWEKRK

/4
IE (&)

AEEERTEY B RELERNFOIRN — MK
TR ERYEEESR  HERKREHEKA
ATEZEREENMARSE REMEWTIR
[EM12(E A s 2 BITRH B B RHE © FIEES.1(b)
RUABEECRENS -

AN IR - RE R E b B YR IR 2 BRI (A 8
HRAFERE -

LT3 & 8 5HE
2021 2020
—E—-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
44,271 185,856
304,582 167,233
1,209 1,096
350,062 354,185

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S [Z & KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &E#&EBEAR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

25 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25 ZEZRERKRAFEIEZER

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

aE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHEIT
Listed equity investment, EHRAEE  mmE
at market value 91 88
Unlisted equity investment, ELFTERAEE A FE
at fair value 11,624 8,445
Key management insurance, FTEERERR  RATE
at fair value 12,283 12,336
23,998 20,869
Less: Current portion o BNERES (11,715) (8,533)
Non-current portion JEBNEA SR 12,283 12,336

The above investments at 31 March 2021 and 2020
were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, classified by the Group as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

An insurance plan relating to the chairman of the
Company was included in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as at 31 March 2021.
The total insured sum as at 31 March 2021 was
US$3,500,000 (equivalent to HK$27,300,000). If
the Group withdrew from the insurance policies,
the account value, net of surrender charges, would
be refunded to the Group. The insurance plan was
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not
solely for payments of principal and interest.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &S BEAER 2

RZEZ—FR-ZF_FF=A=+—
Bz LB ARIEER - WHRE R
BREAAEESEAEBEBREAT
BIRZERMEE -

R-T-—&F=A=+—H —HERK
RAIERBBAZRRITEIEBERE
BEZEREATEIEZEHEEN-
RZEBE-_—F=ZA=+—8 BRRE
/43,500,000 7t (8 127,300,0007%
TL) o WASERR  AEEJERE
REEE(HRERRER) - mﬁﬁm%
HEMEVIFERRIZNF LS RFIE
RS DB ABREBEREA $ﬁﬂ
RZEREE °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 26 e hREERYW EHF
TIME DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED M ZREBTERREER
BANK DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED F3
DEPOSITS

2021 2020
—E=—& = Tl
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Pledged deposits (Note (i) BB FER (A 220) 17,975 =
Time deposits — original maturity of EHGFEHR—REEA

more than three months BB=1EA 13,607 14,641
Restricted bank deposits (Note (i) 2R HISR 1T 17 3R (AT A (i) 538 11,925
Cash and cash equivalents RekReERY 390,018 244,681
422,138 271,247

Denominated in: LR E¥EGHE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HKD BT 77,858 124,670
RMB AR 87,262 54,817
UsD ET 240,543 75,331
Others Hib 16,475 16,429
422,138 271,247
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

TIME DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS (continued)

Note:

() As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s pledge deposits
were denominated in RMB and placed in the bank to
secure a bank facility (Note 29).

(if) Included in restricted bank deposits as at 31 March
2021 are RMB448,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$538,000) (2020: RMB4,947,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,505,000)) pledged to bank for trade financing.

As at 31 March 2020, RMB5,770,000 (equivalent
to HK$ 6,420,000) was frozen in relation to legal
actions lodged by two construction contractors
against two subsidiaries of the Group. During the
year, both cases were closed and compensation
totaling RMB3,300,000 (equivalent to HK$3,672,000)
was fully settled. The corresponding restricted cash
deposits were released accordingly.

As at 31 March 2021, the cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, restricted bank deposits
pledged deposits of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to HK$87,262,000 (2020:
HK$54,817,000). RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies; however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one month and one
year (2020: between four months and one year)
depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

26 RekAEEEAY EHF

R ZRAEBRITERRCER
FR#)

Bt -

0] RZEZ—F=A=+—H X~5H
HNEERTFRUARBHELTF AR
TERRITR A MIEIR (H:E29) -

iy R-T-_—F=A=+—BHzER
FIRITEREEAE H M E MK H
FiR1T 2 AR #448,0007T (HER
#9538,0008 L) (ZTE-_TF : AR
#&4,947,0007T (48 % 145,505,000
TT)) e

RZZE_ZTF=A=+—H AR¥
5,770,0007T (18 %5 76,420,000% 7T)
WRE S RMBEREERAAEER
M E A AR EEETS - FR
IRRHHEER MEEARE
3,300,0007T (18 %5 73,672,000% 7t.)
WHEEEREEN - HEXRR
FREELEE -

R-_ZE-_—F=ZA=+—H &x&H
NUIAREAEZHESRRSERY -
THER IRHFTERKE ER
17 % 587,262,000 7T (Z T — T4 ¢
54,817,000 70) - ARBETA B A &
BAEEMER A BEPEAR
HFAFINEEIRIEH) R(EEE - EER
NEEERE)  AEERBELRAIR
THARE S B AR MEBEITINE
7% -

ITRE S BF BRI A ERD
R AEBEDEREBE  (EHN
F—EAE—F(—B_2F: NFMN
BAE—F) B2 EMER  TkE
5 #0717 ) S BREL R 8.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED

AS HELD FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered into negotiation with a third party to dispose
of the entire equity interest of Al ETAEINIE (kA
[RAR and BIZEREEB(EM)BR AR and its
subsidiaries (collectively as the “Disposal Group”)
which was classified as discontinued operation in
accordance with HKFRS 5. Assets and liabilities
of the Disposal Group were classified as “Assets
classified as held for sale” and “Liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale”,
respectively as at 31 March 2020. The disposal was
completed on 16 June 2020 and resulted in a gain of
disposal of HK$1,621,000 (Note 6).

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

27 PEABFHEZHERER

ERIEREXK

HE-_Z-_TFE=-F=+—RHItEE "
AEBE—FZE=ZHETER  UHE
BIiEERRE NI (BRFE) BIR A R R EIFZEN
BB (EM BRI RENE QR
(FEATHESRR]) 2250 RHE - HR
BEBMBREENESRIBERER
IREEK R TE-_TF=-A=+—
B HESEzEERABE SRS
BIDEABELNEEEIRIESER
RIEHEEEEREECBE] -8H
HEZEBEER -_ZE-_ZEEA+AHx
BRI 2E A Y 2E 1,621,000 7T (Bt &
6) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

27 DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED
AS HELD FOR SALE AND

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

(continued)

The financial performance and cash flow information
of the Disposal Group for the period ended up to
disposal date and year ended 31 March 2020:

27

i

I

BABFLEZLERER
#k

o

HESEREBEEHERHLESRAREE
—ECEF-A=1T-HILEFEZHH
RALBMEREER

Period end
up to
disposal date

Year ended
31 March 2020
BHEZ-ZF

BZEHERH =A=+—H
1 H R IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue W = 5,511 55,633
Cost of sales HE KA (5,549) (44,808)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8) EF (38) 10,825
Other income and gains, net Hab g ARz - 58 46 1,090
Selling and distribution expenses HE R D HFAX (109) (2,212)
Administrative expenses THAX (639) (17,162)
Impairment loss on contract assets AXEER SR EE
and financial assets Z B EE - (1,341)
Loss before income tax MRATBBATE B (740) (8,800)
Income tax credit Fris it s 38 528
Loss from discontinued ERIEREXEE B
operation (702) (8,272)
Exchange translation reserve on BMEBINEBEE 2
translation of foreign operations E 5 (60) (262)
Other comprehensive loss from SRECKIEKEEK >
discontinued operation HttZHEE R (762) (8,534)
Cash used in operating activities LESEEAT A 2 IS (750) (2,826)
Cash generated from/(used in) BREEHELE/ (A BR:
investing activities 556 (1,952)
Cash generated from financing BEEBELS RS
activities - 5),(ey24l
Exchange realignment PE % (90) (14)
Net (decrease)/increase in BERBELERY2
cash and cash equivalents R 2) /g (284) 532
KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% £ B AR AT ANNUAL REPORT 2021 £ [ 4



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

27 DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED

AS HELD FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATION

gl %?ﬂ’ﬁtﬂ’%Zﬁ SEK

E 2 _lJ: ﬁ«( o % 7']’:2

Nﬂ

(continued)
The following assets and liabilities were reclassified UTEENBEHEBRIEIKEEREH
as held for sale in relation to the discontinued MR-ZZE-_TF=-A=+—HEHHLE
operation as at 31 March 2020: BEELRE
2020
—EEF
HK$’000
FET
Assets classified as held for sale PTHABELEEE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) W - BREREE (Hit15) 31,403
Intangible assets (Note 18) mEEE (Hit18) 25,796
Inventories T8 7,498
Contract assets SHEE 25,633
Accounts receivable FEULBE X 25,764
Prepayments and deposits ENRERES 15,464
Cash and cash equivalents BeEREERY 595
Total assets of disposal group BIEHEZHES
held for sale EEHE 132,153
Liabilities directly associated with assets S EEBZFIEHEEE
classified as held for sale BEEHBAzEE
Accounts payable and other payables JFE 1< BR ZR K2 E b B <P 3K 90,901
Contract liabilities EHEE 924
Deferred tax liabilities Zﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ 3,771
Total liabilities of disposal group BEHEZHERR
held for sale BEHEE 95,596

In accordance with HKFRS 5, the assets classified

REZEBMBRELERFESR 28BS

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &

as held for sale were measured at lower of their
carrying amount immediately prior to being classified
as held for sale and fair value less costs to sell. At
the date of initial classification as held for sale, the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities relating
to the Disposal Group were lower than the fair value
less cost to sell as at that date. Accordingly, no loss
was recognised due to remeasurement at the initial
classification.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &

FIELEEERER D BRFKIELER
MEBEEQAFERHEXNAME 2
BIEEFE - RGO BARKIEHEL
A EhEsEERcEERREZR
HEERRZBAZAFEROHERAE - B
it - N8R o JE RS I B (R B R AT 8 T
REE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

28 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE, 28 EREZREE - 2ibRELS

OTHER PAYABLES AND

PROVISIONS

Accounts and bills payable (Note i)

Accrued expenses
Other payables
Payable for construction work

Financial liabilities

Accrued employee benefit expenses

VAT and other tax payable
Deferred income (Note i)

Total trade and other payables

Less: Non-current portion of deferred

income (Note ii)
Less: Non-current other payables

Current portion

Denominated in:

HKD
RMB
Others

HK R E
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FiET
BRI R (K ) 562,903 360,027
BRI X 13,234 9,797
H fth B 3RIB 23,288 52,639
BETRE ZENFIE 35,436 67,350
TRAE 634,861 489,813
it EERAMAX 85,083 109,339
EER N E A EM IR 23,643 25,985
PEIEU A (BT 2tii) 59,890 82,365
FE A BR 3 N H b FE S SRIB AR BR 803,477 707,502
B EIEMW A Z FERNEREB 1
(1 #2ii) (24,158) (50,545)
B B th 3E BN HA R 1 3R0E = (32,826)
Bl EA =B {9 779,319 624,131
LR 5 S ¥EHE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
BT 170,342 279,209
AR 607,736 420,902
) 25,399 7,391
803,477 707,502

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE,

OTHER PAYABLES AND
PROVISIONS (continued)

Notes:

(i) The accounts and bills payable and other payables
are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
within credit terms of two months, extending up to

three months.

The carrying amounts of accounts and other
payables are considered to be the same as their fair
values, due to their short term nature.

At 31 March 2021, the aging analysis of the accounts
and bills payable based on invoice date are as

follows:

0 - 30 days

31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
Over 90 days

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S [Z &

0Z30H

31£60H
61£90H
90R LA E

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

28 ENRANERE - HESR
HEBEE)

Hizt

(i)

JRE 1 B R e SR A B L th JE A5 R IE 19
TRE - BERMEANEERAE
i RZEAEEE=M@A -

MR EMNERRREMMENFIBARRE
HEE AREREERRASERR
HRFE-

R-ZZE-_—F=ZA=+—H EBNE
REZEREBERZEAMZEREITD
S 8

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
167,576 129,286
102,940 39,807
155,397 46,050
136,990 144,884
562,903 360,027

HasREERAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

28 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE,
OTHER PAYABLES AND
PROVISIONS (continued)

(ii

The balance mainly represented government grants
received in respect of the subsidies from The
People’s Government of the Dushan County, Guizhou
Province (the “Dushan County Government”) for the
Group’s manufacturing company located in Dushan
County, Guizhou Province, the PRC. These grants
are held as deferred income and recognised to the
income statement on a systematic basis to match
with the costs or the assets’ useful lives that they
are intended to compensate in accordance with the
agreements with the Dushan County Government.
During the year ended 31 March 2021, subsidies of
HK$36,965,000 (2020: HK$36,595,000) had been
recognised and included in subsidy income of “Other
income and gains, net” in the consolidated income
statement.

The movements in deferred income are as follows:

At beginning of the year REH]
Additions NE
Grant recognised during the year

Exchange realignment E H A

At end of the year RER

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

RENIER Z A

28 EfTHR

R HttEARK

W\ EBE e

(i

EHRTITZEEMNEBLUEARKE
([ LSBT M a RSB AR F
HEMEELBZREERRNHER
BT B - ZERBIZR R FEER U
HREFECUAERARAZEER
R IE B\ FEBUFET M 2 W i
ZERAREENTEAFH - REE
—E-—FZA=Z+—HLEE" B
T 52 47 B BX0B 36,965,000/ 7T (Z 2 —
T4 1 36,595,000/8 70) Wi A 4R A UK
mROTEMBARKE  FEIFH
AL A o

BEWAZZEBT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

82,365 103,300

9,223 20,575

(36,965) (36,595)

5,267 (4,915)

59,890 82,365
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

IRITEE
2021 2020
—B-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
455,689 413,243
191,874 263,566
647,563 676,809
11,983 -

REBZRITHENRRRRERASE
THERBMERZARER KRED
% (MaE16) RIRTTE K (M aE26) BiE
e

fETﬂ%EEA z i |5 - WiZFH
FRER2.7 (: TE :3.6%) TR °

R-ZF-_—F=A=1t—H %K&HE
RHIETE (@ﬁ?ﬁz%?ﬁ%}aﬂ%%’() NS

29 BANK BORROWINGS 29
Unsecured Figsigid
Current portion BIHR &R 5>
Non-current portion JEBNER EF >
Secured BEHEAF
Current portion BN EA R &
The Group's banking facilities are secured by the
corporate guarantees, investment property (Note 16)
and bank deposits (Note 26) given by the Company
and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Bank borrowings mature until 2023 and bear
average interest at 2.7% (2020: 3.6%) per annum.
At 31 March 2021, based on the contractual
repayment terms including repayable on demand
clause, the Group’s bank borrowings maturity
analysis would be as follows:
Within 1 year or on demand —FRRIREK
Between 1 and 2 years BE—FENBBMRF
Between 2 and 5 years BERMFETBARE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &
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B RITEEINHIFTAT
2021 2020
—B-—F —EFF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
467,672 413,243
191,874 177,634
- 85,932
659,546 676,809

T EEEBRAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

29 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 290 RITEE (£
The following table summarises the maturity TREBMMBRERERIER ZBITE
analysis of the bank borrowings which are subject BB - IRIBREENRHBR
to repayment on demand based on scheduled &l
repayment dates:
2021 2020
—E=-—% —E-FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 year R—FR 27,500 27,500
Between 1 and 2 years BiE—FETBBEWE 27,500 27,500
Between 2 and 5 years BRMEENERARF 10,000 37,500
65,000 92,500
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank AREBRTEEZREDEEE A FER
borrowings approximate their fair values. o
Denominated in: PA TR Bl) 5 #E =&
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET FHET
HKD BT 401,533 523,682
Usb SSTE 64,841 64,106
RMB AR 193,172 89,021
659,546 676,809

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has
uncommitted undrawn bank facilities amounting to
HK$83,053,000 (2020: HK$27,757,000). As at 31
March 2021, the Group was in compliance with all
bank borrowing covenants.

224 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&&BEAERA

R_E-_—F=ZA=+—H A£@Z
AIEEUIEAFEIRTTREE 583,058, OOO/a
L(ZE=F ¢ 27,757,000/ 7T) °
—T-—F=ZA=+—8" $EIE
SFRTHSRITREE R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B B

30 DEFERRED TAX 30 IELEHIE

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BEREAGBEREERFTFRNZESHNM
during the year are as follows: T

Gross deferred tax liabilities EEHRESEHAEE

Depreciation

allowance
in excess
of related
depreciation Others Total
HERE
BHER
FENEE Hit Mat
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 31 March 2019 RZT—NIF
=A=+—H 51,675 5,610 57,285
Effect of adoption of RANE BB RS 2R
HKFRS 16 F16R 2B (14,652) = (14,652)
At 1 April 2019 RZZT—NEWMA—H 37,023 5,610 42 633
Deferred tax credited to equity FANFTAERZ
during the year BRI (3,576) = (3,576)
Deferred tax debited/(credited) to 4 AR Uz %
the income statement during e/ GrA) 2
the year (Note 11) EXERIA (M aE11)
- Continuing operations —RBREED - 7 /
- Discontinued operation — BRI = (528) (528)
Transfer to liabilities directly EREESE AR
associated with assets EHEEERR
classified as held for sale HEz8E
(Note 27) (Htete7) = (3,771) (8,771)
Exchange realignment BEE 5 B (1,047) - (1,047)
At 31 March 2020 R=ZZT=ZTF
EF=—H 32,400 1,318 33,718
Deferred tax debited to equity FRRER R 2B
during the year T B 10,519 = 10,519
Deferred tax debited FAR MR
to the income statement during Mk 2 EEF A
the year (Note 11) (Biet11) = 700 700
Exchange realignment fE X % 1,096 = 1,096
At 31 March 2021 RoB=——%
=A=+—H 44,015 2,018 46,033

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ &
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30 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Gross deferred tax assets

At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NFMA—AH
Deferred tax debited to FARMRR
the income statement Mk 2 BIEHE
during the year (Note 11) (Wit11)
Exchange realignment L

At 31 March 2020

Deferred tax (debited)/credited FRRKER
to the income statement (k) /FAZ
during the year (Note 11) BREBE (a2 11)
Exchange realignment A%

At 31 March 2021

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$20,414,000 (2020: HK$21,516,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of HK$69,144,000 (2020: HK$118,136,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&&BEAERA

R_E_TE=A=1—H

N e =[5 =[]

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

30 ?@E_“ ﬁ *R IE (&)

EEBEEEHLT

Deferred

subsidy
income Others Total
EEBBEBA Hit @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
25,233 687 25,920
(3,748) (76) (3,824)
(1,205) (5) (1,210)
20,280 606 20,886
(6,685) 1,583 (5,102)
1,308 51 1,354
14,898 2,240 17,138

AEBREAELE ZHREBIE
20,414,000 &t (=& =& F :
21,516,000/ 7t) + A &R Hi A 74 3K 85
EXBEZ AR ZRRERTEAH o

REBEBRRNAFE R E S EES
569,144,000 L (Z 2 & F :
118,136,000/ 7L) * SR —E A F EIH
FA P 5 R 2R P SR B v A o

EIETR IR A E X R 5L % T B 1R F i
R AREBREELAEE —REHE
REBBEMRR 2 IMB AR - BERTUE A
A KA BE AR BT A B E -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated since 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2021, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences on
undistributed profit of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$746,457,000
(2020: HK$630,465,000) at 31 March 2021.

30

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &

Br 5 R M EE

ﬁﬁ*ﬁ: IE (&)

BREBEPBEPERSRE KNP EAMK
Y ZIERECRAIIBEREETIRKR
B BERI0%BRFERNT - WREE =
ZENF-A—ARER  WEARZ
T FF A=+ —HEZEN - M
RE A EINEIREE 2 ADERRE R
BB B % - BIRTE A RIE 2 T 4
HME - RAEEME - BRARERE% o
Eit A& B A S EE P BEAMK 2 Z
EMBEBRAAMRBE T NF-—H B
EEZ BN IR REGSTERH o

NRZZEZ—F=A=+—8 " WEHK
EE AP E R Z KB R E AR
MBIz AEL BT 2 ERENH
BRELEHRE -BEF2RE ZEHMEA
RIERFBR AR T RAIGEDIRE B A
M RM—_T-_—F=A=+—8 £
MR FEREE R TE A & 2 B A i
BRAEIARD KM ERFEZHBES
HH#A746,457,0008 70 (— T - T4 ¢
630,465,000 7T ) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

31

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid:
438,960,000
(2020: 438,960,000)

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

A summary of movements in the Company’s share

capital is as follows:

At 1 April 2019, i
31 March 2020 and
31 March 2021

31 BA
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
AT
1,000,000,0000% & A%
H{E0. 10 T 2 L@l 100,000 100,000
BEITRHR
438,960,000/%
—E-FTF
438,960,0000% ) & i%
HE0.10E Tz L@ 43,896 43,896
ARNRIRAEHPMEMT ¢
Number of Share
shares in premium
issue account Total
BT
A& A BB EER st
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FTAEL
E] N
+—B#
T=I[E 438,960,000 156,015 199,911

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company
terminated the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 20 August 2002 (the “Old Share
Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) pursuant
to a resolution passed in the annual general meeting
dated 20 August 2012 which became effective on
the same date. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for ten years commencing from the
effective date, after which period no further options
will be granted but the provisions of the New Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
option granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the
New Share Option Scheme.

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operated the Old Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Old Share Option Scheme
included the directors, including independent
non-executive directors, other employees of the
Group, suppliers of goods or services to the
Group, customers of the Group, any person or
entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, the Company’s
shareholders and any non-controlling interests in
the Company’s subsidiaries. The Old Share Option
Scheme became effective on 20 August 2002 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, would
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

32
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BRESE
REBE_F—=F=A=1+—HLHFE
AN ARBERIEARBNR_FTT_F
NBZ+HEABRETE ([ERR
#EED)  YRBRHMR-ZE——FN
AZTRZBERBERE BB ZRE
R — R ERERT &) ([ 37 B AT
2] BB EINZ B AR - #E
PRt 8K B A A B T FRER
B RzBERETeaREE—SB
Pk - HERTRE O RT 8 2 R EID A+
R - BRI IRAER 8L LA
th 3R] BEAR IR T BB A R B 2 IR U AT
MERD Z EAIBRER EETTE -

BERRETE
ARABITEBREFEEERAER
S8 E GRS B PTEE B 22
Kbt - ERREFIEER2EESR
RES (BRBIFHTES) AKHE
HtfES  mMARBREERIRSE 2
HER AKEEF HAKEEHRH
7 RBESAEMEMEZEMALR
B AARBRRRARFRMBARZ
EAFE s - ERREF N -F
Z-FN\A-THEXN  BIESTEH
HIEF] - BRIBE BB TFRAERE
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Old Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 35
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

BRESTE (2
ERERESE (&
BEEBBRETZRNAETREZ AT
FRERESSHE (RTER) BERAK
DEMEREFEE BTN Z210% ° IME
]+ =@ A 8 - RIFERBREE S
RERSHEE ZEREN FHRITRO R
SH B RRAR TR TGN
Z1% c EfE—FEEBEHERE
BREARBRERD FERELE -

MARREE TBITBRABREER
R METMABEARLERE  BAS
LB IEMITESRE 1IN AE
A+ =@ A 8B m—uARFEER
R BUIFRTESRESEAHEA
BRHBHARRTMEMEZEITRG
0.1%3% 8 H 42 {B5,000,000/% 7T (1R &
BHBBARABRGERTE) 2 &M
B BEARBREAZ LERE
o

ERAATRBROEREZS AL
AT ABAEXNEERESHKIE
TTEMBRERLEE ROBRkiEZ
TEPHESRT RETHFBHRHAE
W WRNERIERE R B R +
FZEHIRLE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Upon termination of the Old Share Option Scheme,
no further options will be granted thereunder;
however, the rules of the Old Share Option Scheme
will remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of options
granted prior to its termination or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the rules of the Old
Share Option Scheme. As at 31 March 2021, there
were no options (2020: 1,250,000 options) granted
but not yet exercised under the Old Share Option
Scheme.

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates the New Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the New Share Option Scheme
include the directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, any person or entity
that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, the Company’s
shareholders and any non-controlling interests in
the Company’s subsidiaries. The New Share Option
Scheme became effective on 20 August 2012 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.
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0
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the New Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #Eim&E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 March 2021, there were 1,000,000 options
(2020: 1,100,000 options) granted but not yet
exercised under the New Share Option Scheme.

32

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

B S E @)

3708 AT B (D)
MREZTEEREFRE  BTEE
RATREE (A2 ARBRERE
i A AR R T T )RR
BZABHEER S BRRARBERR
Fr 2 YT (B ¢ i) AR 2 FRR A 2 7
g -

BREYTETRHAEANDZREINK
RRELREZHER -

RZTEZ—F=A=+—8 - #HERE
=+ 2178 T~ F1,000,00015 B % 18 4 &
ITEZEBRE(ZZ 224 1,100,000
DEERRRE) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R R B RE

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32 BRESTE &)

The following share options were outstanding under
the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share
Option Scheme (the “Schemes”) during the year:

BB E B 8 AT AR 8 (5%
Ea ) RERADRITEZERE®N
T

2021 —E-—F
Price of the
Company's
Number of share options shares
BRRAE immediately
At At hefore the
1 April 31 March grant date
Vesting period 202 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2021 Exercise N
Date of share L # during during during ] pice  BARBE
options granted from to ZEZRE  theyear  theyear  theyear =F=-F Exerciseperiod  pershare  BXAHH
RLERERS ] 2 DBB-B  RERRY REAGR  REAKN ZREt-8 8 SRiEE ZkE
HKS HKS
AT AT
Directors
iz
Wong Chi Wai 29/3/2011 RN 300,000 - - (300,000 - 20/3/2011 - 28/3/2021 2792 2710
Elite 1 D 400,000 - - - 400000 7/7/2017 - 6/7/2021 2.262 2220
112017 017 12092017 100,000 - - - 100,000 13/9/2017 - 6/7/2027 2.262 2220
9/7/2018 92018 120912018 100,000 - - - 100,000 13/9/2018 - 8/7/2028 2470 2470
Sun Kwai Yu, Vivan 20/3/2011 oty 300,000 - - (300,000 - 20/3/2011 - 28/3/2021 2792 2710
#En 9/7/2018 912018 12/9/2018 100,000 - - - 100,000 13/9/2018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2410
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul 12017 ot B0 100,000 - - - 100,000 7/7/2017 - 6/7/2021 2.262 2220
gay 9/7/2018 L 100,000 - - - 100,000 9/7/2018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2470
Cheung Wang Io 9/7/2018 912018 20/7/2018 100,000 - - - 100,000  21/7/2018 - 8/7/2028 2470 2470
ki
Other employees
AEs
In aggregate 29/3/2011 oty 650,000 - - (650,000) - 290302011 - 28/3/2021 2792 2710
ai 9/7/2018 o/ 100,000 - - (100,000) - /772018 - 8/7/2028 2470 2470
2,350,000 - - (1,350,000 1,000,000
234 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5%EAR A ANNUAL REPORT 2021 fEE 3R &
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under
the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share
Option Scheme (the “Schemes”) during the year:

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

32 lElRESE (2

RIBE BREET 8 MBS 8l ([
EHEDRERDRITEZBEREN
™ : (&)

(Continued)
2020 —E-TE
Price of the
Number of share options Cms:;yez
BREsR e
immediately
At At before the
1 Apri 31 March grant date
Vesting period 2019 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2020 Exercise 27
Date of share L 3 during during during i e RORZH
options granted from (o 3 ihe year ihe year theyear —F-TE Exercise period pershare R AHE
RERERS B 5 BA-A AERRE  RERGE  REAXE ZA=t-R ks SRARE BB
HKS HK$
AT AT
Directors
g2
Liu Tat Lugn 412010 412010 32013 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) - 41018 - 3112020 2102 2,060
Hui Ka Po, Alpx e 1032016 10/3/2016  16/2/2019 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 170202019 - 9/3/2026 1160 1160
Wong Chi Wai 29/3/2011 e /6) 300,000 - - - 300,000 29/3/2011 - 28/3/2021 279 2710
Bl 1017 Mo 2 400,000 - - - 400000 77712017 - 6/7/2027 2.062 2220
1017 017 12092017 100,000 - - - 100000 13/9/2017 - 6/7/2027 2262 220
977/2018 97018 121922018 100,000 - - - 100000 13/9/2018 - 8/7/2028 2470 2470
Sun Kwai Y, Vivian 29/3/2011 a6 300,000 - - - 300,000 29/3/2011 - 28/3/2021 219 2710
el 977/2018 97018 12192018 100,000 - - - 100000 13/9/2018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2470
Cheng Kok Kin, Paul 01 100,000 - - - 100000 7702017 - 617/2027 226 220
g8y 977/2018 100,000 - - - 100000 9/7/2018 - 8/7/2028 2470 2470
Cheung Wang Io 977/2018 97018 202018 100,000 - - - 100000 21/7/2018 - 8/7/2028 2470 2470
R
Other employees
L4
n aggregate 29/3/2011 a6 650,000 - - - 650,000 29/3/2011 - 28/3/2021 219 2710
i 977/2018 e /65 100,000 - - - 100000 9/7/2018 - 8/7/2028 2470 2470
977/2018 Mol 27 400,000 - - [400,000) - 972018 - 8/7/2028 2470 2470
977/2018 7018 87/2019 300,000 - - (300,000) - 972019 - 8/7/2028 2470 2470
977/2018 97018 8712020 300,000 - - (300,000) - 90702020 - 8/7/2028 2470 2470

6,350,000 =

(4,000,000) 2,360,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S [Z & KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &E#&EBEAR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex had resigned as an executive
director with effective from 8 July 2019.

(if) Vested upon granted.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, share options
amounted to HK$1,098,000 are lapsed (2020:
HK$2,159,000) and no share option expenses were
recognised during the year (2020: Nil).

The following share options were outstanding under
the Schemes during the year:

32 BRESE (2
Wizt

() HRREECBHENTEE B-F
—hEEANBRER -

iy WHEHESRE -

HE-_ZE-_—F=F=+—RHItEE "
1,098,000 Lz BIREE XK (ZE =
T4 ¢ 2,159,00078 7T ) & F A £ 1 3R
BhRERZ(ZE_TF : &) -

FA - S BIET M ARITEN B
m

2021 2020
—EBE-—F —ETF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options

hn#EF 15 AN
THEE BREHE TR BIREHE

HKS$ per HK$ per

share share

FRET FRAE T
At the beginning of year RE] 2.588 2,350,000 2.191 6,350,000
Lapsed during the year FREKMA 2.768 (1,350,000) 1.800 (4,000,000)
At the end of year RER 2.345 1,000,000 2.588 2,350,000
KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED & &E AR A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4 [E#R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had 1,000,000
(2020: 2,350,000) share options outstanding under
the Schemes. Should they be fully exercised,
the Company will receive HK$2,345,000 (2020:
HK$6,082,000) (before issue expenses). The
exercise in full of these share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 1,000,000 (2020: 2,350,000)
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$100,000 (2020:
HK$235,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$2,245,000 (2020: HK$5,847,000) (before issue
expenses).

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares
of the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 7
April 1998 and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

Other reserve represents the excess of the
consideration over the share of net assets acquired
from non-controlling interests.

33
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5% % 5F 8] 18 T # 51,000,00013 <_
T~ 1 2,350,00010) i RITIE 2B
BRE - MZEERERBEITE  AQ
AU R2,345,0008 L (ZE =T F ¢
6,082,000/ 7T) (RN EITHZ) °
BEARNRZHEEARERE  BHTE
7% 55 W IR I 8 BURE 9132 171,000, ooo
Hx(_?_?i 2,350,0000%) X &
Lﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬂ\%ﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁ$100 000/%73
—E T4 235,000/ TT) LMSZHxTﬁ
i (8 492,245,000 L (Z T T F ¢
5,847,000/ 7T) (RHBRETHL) °

fié 8
REBERAGE BB EF 2 R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34
AND BALANCES

(a)

Key management compensation

Key management includes executive directors
of the Group. The compensation of key
management personnel of the Group is shown

below:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

Total compensation paid to
key management personnel

Note:

e R
BEWEF
BAERESETEIHR

ENEZEBEEASR
e Rk

Further details of the directors’ and the chief
executive’s emoluments are included in Note 10 to

the financial statements.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR

BEEBALRZ K&

(a) EEEEASHMH
FEERBABBEAEENTE
FE-AEEFEEEABZEMM
™

2021 2020
—ES-—%F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
15,304 16,225

72 78

15,376 16,303

Wit

EERERTBRABHMZE—FTF
BEHR I IEREMIEEI0 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AND BALANCES (continued)

(b) Significant transactions with related

parties

The directors of the Company are of the view
that Unicon Investments Limited, a company
owned by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, is a related

party of the Group.

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

34 EEBALIXRERE SR 2

(b)

Rental expense paid to a related party [A) A B8 A + 3+

Unicon Investments Limited
(Note)

Addition of right-of-use assets
Unicon Investments Limited
(Note)

Interest expense of lease liabilities

Unicon Investments Limited
(Note)

Note:

ZHEHAX

HEREARAA

(Htet)

NEEREEE
HREREEARAT

(Btit)

HERBZMEMX

HEREBRAF]

(Htet)

The lease agreement was conducted in accordance
with the terms as agreed by both parties.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[E &
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HEERBALZEERS

ARBEERAR  AEBLELER
BERRARMBEREERRAR/A
SENBBEBAL-

2021 2020
—E_—F —ZEZTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,498 -
4,250 -

132

HE W YRR 4% 77 B8 2 1R

1T -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR R E U

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 ZRERERERKT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant (a) HEVXE - BERREBABHRE

and equipment

In the consolidated cash flow statement,

RZERERERA - LEWE -

proceeds from disposal of property, plant and BB M RGPS RIERIE ¢
equipment comprise:
2021 2020
—ES-—%F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net book amount: BRHEFE -
Property, plant and equipment WE - BENMRE
(Note 15) (K1:E15) 3,997 3,776
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BELKRE
plant and equipment (Note 6) ZEEB (M it6) (1,195) (622)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  WE K&
plant and equipment J B FTIS RIE 2,802 3,154

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

EnsEEAR AR ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S [Z R



35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

(continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F[Z#id

Net debt reconciliation

(b)

This section sets out an analysis of net debt
and the movement in net debt for each of the

periods presented:

Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 26)

Liquid investment (Note 25)

Pledged deposits (Note 26)

Bank borrowings (Note 29)

Other financing

Lease liabilities (Note 17)

Net debts

Cash and liquid investments
Pledged deposits (Note 26)
Gross debt — floating interest rate
Gross debt - fixed interest rate
Lease liabilities (Note 17)

Net debts

REeERBEELERAY
(Hizt26)

MBI E (K 5725)

BB ER (Hi226)

IRITEE (H1:#29)

Hibg &

MEBEMWZE17)

AT

A MRBERE
BRI FER (Y E26)
BRRE - 2B X
AR R — B EA X
HEREWZ17)

FER

35 ZERTRERME®

FEKHER

ANENE D S A AT YRR E

B DT AES :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
390,018 244,681
11,715 8,533
17,975 -
(659,546) (676,809)
= (32,826)
(3,772) (4,000)
(243,610) (460,421)
401,733 253,214
17,975 -
(659,546) (676,809)
-~ (32,826)
(3,772) (4,000)
(243,610) (460,421)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED Ea&EABR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 mERERERMNE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued) (b) FEXKERE)
Note: BtaE -
Liquid investments comprise current investments that MEMEERERNERMBEE 2R
are traded in an active market, being the Group’s BiE  IASEBEZRIBERIER
financial assets held at fair value through profit or FEIRZCMEE -
loss.
Cash
and cash Liquid Pledged Bank Other Lease
equivalents  investment deposits borrowings  financing liabilities Total
RBeREE

SRN RBMRE CEARR  BOEE  HERE  ARAR @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T Tz TE% T T TE% T

2021 —E--F
Net debt as at W-E-ZE=F

31 March 2020 SH-RZEEE 244,681 8533 - 676809  (32,826) (4000)  (460,421)
Cash at bank included in ~ BEREELELE

assets held for sale ZHARE 595 - - - - = 595
Net cash movement BeEHEE 137,677 — 17,309 27,113 34,042 1,762 217,893
Exchange realignment EREE 7,065 - 666 (9,850) (1,216) (146) (3,481)
Other movements ) - 3,182 - - = (1,378) 1,804
Net debt as at iy

31 March 2021 S+-BzEEE 390018 11,715 17975 (659,546) - (3772 (243,610)
2020 SEIRE
Net debt as at RZZE-NE=R

31 March 2019 =t-B2EER 222,153 14,140 - (810,106) = - (573819)
Impact on impact of RMABEBREE

HKFRS 16 BE16%F 8 7 = 3 = = (909) (909)
Net cash movement R48938 26,002 (3,936) - 17913 (33,69) 3268 119,641
Exchange realignment ERAE (2,969) - - 5,384 870 87 3,372
Transfer to assets held for BREZHERELE

sale (595) - - - - - (595)
Other movements Hib 2% - (1,671) - - - (6,400) (8,071)
Net debt as at W-ZE-FF=AH

31 March 2020 SH-RZEER 244,681 8533 - (676809)  (32,826) (4,000)  (460421)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Br 5 R M EE

36 REHE oM A

of RBERR SReRTAZREAEN
N

2021 2020
—E--& a3
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at  assets at fair assets at
value through amortised  value through amortised
profit or loss cost  profit or loss cost
RAVE 'S ¥ BRATE REE
iRz  BAGER Sk BAREZ
SREE tHEE CREE CREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Accounts and bills receivable FEYER R EE - 368,089 = 221,017
Deposits and other receivables Be R EfEWFE - 63,608 - 42,222
Cash deposits BehR = 422,138 = 271,247
Financial assets at fair value ERBEEATETIR Y
through profit or loss SREE 23,998 - 20,869 -
23,998 853,835 20,869 534,486
Financial liabilities E4 0
Financial liabilities at amortised REHKRAEZ
cost: SRBE:
Accounts and bills payable ERERRRE 562,903 360,027
Financial liabilities included in other &t A E fth & 30 B &%
payables, accrued liabilities EitaEzeRat 71,958 129,786
Bank borrowings RITEE 659,546 676,809
Lease liabilities HEER 3,772 4,000
1,298,179 1,170,622
Note: Hat -
The fair values of the financial assets at amortised cost REBERAH B S REEY A EEEE
approximate their carrying amounts. EEAE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F/E ¥ & KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&SBEBR AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 3 3% B B

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37

POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

KRR 2 MBRAR R EEE
B

Statement of financial position of the Company NN e B 3 O
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NIENGIPA: ¥ 918,370 954,147
Financial assets at fair value through BBBRIZEAFTEYEZ
profit and loss SREE 12,283 12,336
930,653 966,483
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SEANE S 1 2
Cash and cash equivalents RekReERY 28,769 92,333
Tax recoverables A] g [B % IR 195 678
Total current assets MBEERLTE 28,965 93,013
Total assets wEE 959,618 1,059,496
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity ANAEREEARELGES
holders of the Company
Share capital % A% 43,896 43,896
Reserves (Note) & (B iE) 616,068 618,909
Total equity ST 659,964 662,805
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REAEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables  fE&t B & & E fib E 1+ ZIE 4,896 5,491
Bank borrowings RITEE 150,384 192,634
Total current liabilities B A EERE 155,280 198,125
Non-current liability FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 144,374 198,566
Total liabilities waE 299,654 396,691
Total equity and liabilities BEZRERE 959,618 1,059,496

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED En&BEHBR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

37

B 75 ¥ 2= B AE

AKPB 2B BRRERREES
)/ 0€-))

(continued)
Note: Bt -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KRB EEBRENT -
Share Share-based Capital
premium payment  redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
IR A
RERZ RAEE
ROEER DES:1 ®E  BABK  REER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET TET -2 -2 TET
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R-Z-AF=A=1+—H
E-E-NEmA-A 156,015 3,927 14 104,750 365,769 630,475
Loss for the year FREER - - - - (11,566) (11,566)
Lapse of share option BRELN = (2,159) = - 2,159 =
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-Z-FF=F=+—H
RZZE-ZFMA-A 156,015 1,768 14 104,750 356,362 618,909
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - (2,841) (2,841)
Lapse of share option BRI - (1,098) - - 1,098 -
At 31 March 2021 R-E-_—-®#=fA=+-H 156,015 670 14 104,750 354,619 616,068

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the same reorganisation, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company’s contributed surplus is available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie under certain
circumstances prescribed by section 54 thereof.

ARBZEABHRERER —FHMKEZ
MERARERZAFHEEFEBLARRRR
FZERSHMBETRNEEIER -

)

N

REERE—NN—FRRE - HE5HET
BARATEETFHRTUSARBERS
SRR/ REDHIE -

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED Ea&EABR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

38 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties
(Note 16) under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms of one year.

At 31 March 2021, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

Within one year —FK
As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and warehouses under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two
years.

At 31 March 2021, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

— %y

Within one year
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)

(b) As lessee (continued)
From 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised
right-of-use assets for these leases, except for
short-term lease commitments as disclosed
above.

COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the
year but not yet incurred is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Properties under development and
investment properties

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Loss of a significant customer

On 3 May 2021, the Company announced that it
had recently come to an agreement with a significant
customer of its electrical and electronic products
business segment to end the relevant service
contract between the Group and the significant
customer on the later of 31 December 2021 and the
date by which the Company has completed all the
accepted orders placed on or before 31 May 2021
by the significant customer.
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RESULTS

REVENUE

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Income tax expense
Loss for the year from discontinued
operation

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
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Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+-HLFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“¥--%f ZT-FF “F-NF ZE-\F ZELF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TET FET
2,693,865 3,114,221 4,221,878 3,034,274 2,472,193
140,055 196,458 129,171 182,325 245,289
(35914)  (22,821)  (18,760)  (32,619) (49,048
(702) (8,272) - - -
103,439 1650365 110,411 149,706 196,241
103,626 170,049 112,384 149,821 196,375
(187) (4,684) (1,973) (115) (134
103,439 165365 110,411 149,706 196,241

As at 31 March

R=ZA=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“¥--F ZF-FRF TNF —E-N\F ZEiR
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx TET TET TET FET
1,336,631 1,325,819 1,541,484 1,240,511 927,839
1,874,202 1,548,542 1,847,987 1,623,224 1,225,984
3,210,833 2,874,361 3,389,471 2,863,735 2,153,823
(1,456,316) (1,265,474) (2,040,170) (1,264,231) (1,011,419)
(255,021)  (382,805)  (139,375)  (441,460)  (236,093)
(1,711,337) (1,648,279) (2,179,5645) (1,705,691) (1,247,512)
1,499,496 1,226,082 1209926 1,158,044 906,311
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